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We Focus, therefore We Excel.
We are Committed to
Achieving Outstanding
Returns for Employees

and Shareholders.

HPIET
We pledge to:

(1) BVRIRKIE

relentlessly pursue advantages of economy
of scale;

(2) BVoahRIKIE ;

continuously strengthen brand reputation;

(3) tHEBRIEG ;
develop cutting-edge products through R & D;

(4) BVtEREE;
always ensure the highest product quality;

(5) BIrEITER;

unleash employees’ talent and potential;

(6) BRHESRIT

adopt the high standards in corporate
social responsibility.
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Turnover

BZE2014F 128310 LFE (BREK)
For the year ended 31 December 2014 (audited)
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Earnings per share
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Final dividend ™ .. .=

15.0 21 HK CENTS
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Board of Directors
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Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Mr. Wong Kong Chi *

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie *
(passed away on 16 March 2014)

Mr. Li Chak Man *

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun *

Mr. Ng Siu Ping * (re-designated as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 January 2014)

* Independent non-executive Directors
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Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Mr. Li Chak Man

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun
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88 Queensway, Hong Kong
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| am pleased to present to all shareholders an overview business
of Yip’s Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Yip’s Chemical” or the “Group”) in
2014. During the period, as the Renminbi (RMB) exchange rate
bucked the trend of many years and dropped while demand
from the sluggish mainland market decreased, sales of the
Group were negatively impacted. Though turnover exceeded the
preset medium-term target of HK$10 billion to reach a record
high of HK$10,255,839,000, year-on-year growth was a mere
4%, the lowest in recent years. In terms of total product sales
tonnage, growth was 7% and lower than the 12% registered
in the previous year. In the year, profit attributable to owners
of the Company was HK$223,182,000, down by 11% from the
same period last year. Additionally, because international oil
price had been on a continuous steep decline since the second
half of last year, the Group had to make a conservative one-
time provision for impairment for certain raw materials and
stock at year-end closing. On the other hand, as a way to boost
competitiveness of the coatings business, the Group carried out
strategic consolidation of several related core businesses to form
a coatings group of considerable size and synergies. This group
has been in formal operation since 1 January 2015. All along, the
Group has been adhering steadfastly to the principle of sound and
prudent financial management. In the year, against a backdrop
of exceptionally harsh operating environment, we endeavoured
to strike a decent balance among developing business, seeking
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YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FERE-DEREE
Chairman’s Statement — Review & Prospects

business opportunities, keeping account receivables under strict
control and making capital investments. As a result, the Group
was able to maintain a healthy gearing ratio of 58.1%. Therefore,
in accordance with the Group’s long-held dividend policy of
actively rewarding shareholders by offering them steady returns,
the Board of Directors has, after comprehensive assessment,
resolved to declare a final dividend of HK15 cents per share.
Together with the interim dividend of HK10 cents per share, this
will give a final dividend of HK25 cents per share for the whole
year, the same as in the previous two years.

Review

With the exception of the US, global economy has stayed
lacklustre in the financial year under report. In Europe, because
of the sharp decline of the euro exchange rates, demand in
the consumer market has been weak and buying sentiments
greatly reduced. The mainland market, which is closely tied to
the prospects of the Group’s businesses, has also been under
severe stress: the Purchasing Managers’ Index (PMI), which tracks
manufacturing activities, has been hovering around the cut-
off point of 50 for a long time. Though Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) growth rate has attained expected target, it is the weakest
one since the financial crisis of 2008. In the period, the fact that
monetary supply had fallen far short of social financing demand
reflected the central government’s determination to continue
tightening money supply had not wavered. Double-hit by the
weak demand of various sectors and credit shortage, investment
incentives declined substantially. As export markets plummeted,
domestic demand softened and the downturn risks of China’s
economy rose markedly, production overcapacity was acute and
competition among industry players became more intensive. In
view of the extremely unstable market situation, the executive
team of the Group adopted a number of more measured sales
strategies to control risks, and this inevitably affected the Group’s
sales performance for the year.

After the first half of the year, the Group was still plagued by
the continued decline in the RMB exchange rate and thus it
recorded an exchange loss of approximately HK$41,388,000
for the whole year, whereas in the previous year, an exchange
gain of approximately HK$37,468,000 was recorded. Though
the exchange loss did not constitute an unfavourable impact on
the Group’s real business performance and cash flow, it was
nevertheless one of the major factors contributing to the Group’s
inferior results this year compared with the previous year. As
the Group was also determined to expand its coatings business,
during the period it had integrated the businesses of household
and architectural coatings, industrial coatings and resins into
a new coatings group. In the process, one-off special related
consolidation charges were reflected during the year, constituting
another major factor affecting the overall results of the Group.

Prospects

It is expected that the operating environment this year will still be
harsh and full of challenges. With the strengthening of the Islamic
State and the continued military conflicts between Russia and
Ukraine, regional political unrests may intensify. Other factors of
uncertainties to the Group’s operation this year include the sliding
of the euro, debt default risks, the volatility of international oil
prices and the RMB exchange rate, and particularly the fact that
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Prospects (continued)

the downturn of the mainland economy has already become a
foregone conclusion. Overall, the Group will confront difficulties
more actively. The better to seek bigger business opportunities
under adverse conditions, we will remain prudent in developing
our businesses, step up risk prevention efforts and raise our
competitiveness continuously by adopting a people-oriented
approach.

This year, though China has lowered its economic growth target
and will continue to experience downturn pressure, it is still a
market with the most vibrancy and the most business opportunities
in the world today. Having set root in China for many years and
having prepared itself accordingly, the Group should be able to
enjoy the fruit of the country’s economic boom continuously.
After consolidation, the Group’s various core businesses are
having more streamlined structures and their market positioning
is clearer, so integration benefits and synergies should surface
gradually. Meanwhile, through the series of optimising measures
implemented in recent years, the overall competitive strengths of
these core businesses have been enhanced constantly in order that
they can rise up to the inevitable challenges of competitors during
business expansion. Since the various strategies and measures
deployed for achieving the preset medium and long-term targets
of the Group’s core businesses are now being carried out in an
orderly manner, the Group is cautiously optimistic that it will
achieve better results this year.

While the Group is responding to the mainland market’'s overall
trend of actively developing water-based eco-friendly products
to replace and eliminate solvent-based ones, it is also paying
attention to improving the work conditions of its employees.
Meanwhile, investments in the Group’s flagship corporate social
responsibility project, the donation of mobile eye surgery centres,
have been increasing from year to year according to plans. With
the stationing of the sixth mobile surgery centre in Shanxi this
year, it is expected that at least 12 such mobile centres will
be donated by the Group by 2020. The Group will review the
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Prospects (continued)

operations of these mobile centres periodically so as to offer
corresponding help to ensure that they are operating with
optimal efficiencies. On another front, under the promotion and
planning of the Group Corporate Communications Department,
the number of corporate volunteers, the number of volunteering
service hours and the number of community activities in
environmental protection, energy conservation and the caring of
disadvantaged groups have all been increasing from year to year.
These meaningful activities not only serve to embody the Group's
business philosophy, but also allow participating employees a
chance to share the joy of helping people and carrying out social
responsibility.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the Board of
Directors for its leadership — its various committees have all made
excellent contributions towards the Group’s sound corporate
governance and sustainable operations by fully exercising their
functions. | am grateful to the executive team for its solidarity,
for being innovative and for rising to challenges in bringing the
Group steadily forward. | thank our customers, business partners,
bankers and suppliers for their support and trust. | would also like
to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all the staff of the Group for
their dedication and hard work.

In Deep Memory of Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan
Pong, Davie

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie, an independent non-executive
director of the Company, passed away on 16 March 2014.

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie started to serve as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004 and
later assumed the chair of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. During his service, he had contributed outstandingly in
optimising the Group’s comprehensive corporate governance and
human resources policy. For this we will forever be grateful to and
in deep memory of him.

1"
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Mr. Yip Tsz Hin
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In the year under report, sales of the Group attained the HK$10
billion milestone for the first time by reaching HK$10,255,839,000
while profit attributable to owners of the Company was down
10.9% to HK$223,182,000. In contrast to the same period in last
year, there were five special key factors affecting profits in 2014:

1. Dividend payout from an available-for-sale investment
(Lomon Corporation) was HK$66,252,000, an additional
HK$34,713,000 from a year before;

2. A net income before taxes of HK$63,487,000 from sale of
shareholding in Lomon Corporation;

3.  The depreciation of RMB brought about an exchange
loss of HK$41,388,000, whereas an exchange gain of
HK$37,468,000 was recorded in the previous year;
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4.  Because of the oil price decline, the solvents division made a
provision for impairment of HK$28,814,000 for its goods in
stock and raw materials; and

5. The coatings division had made a one-off expenditure of
HK$20,768,000 for plants consolidation.

In the year, operating environment was harsh, market was sluggish
while oil price dropped precipitously, so the prices of major
materials as well as products fell to one degree or another. Total
product sales tonnage grew 7% year on year, but sales turnover
in dollar grew only by 4%.

The reports of the Group’s three main business segments are
given as follows:

Solvents

Turnover in the year grew 7% on the year to hit a new high
of HK$6,575,516,000 and contributed an operating profit of
HK$226,657,000. Operating profit after excluding exchange
difference was down slightly by 1.6% from the same period last
year. Thanks to increased demand for eco-friendly solvents, sales
tonnage of acetates, the Group's flagship products, still maintained
a strong momentum and grew as much as 6%. Though prices fell
as a result of the sharp drop in oil prices towards the end of the
year, operating profit for this mainstay business still rose slightly,
indicating that the overall competitiveness of these products could
weather tough times.

The sales volume of butyl acrylate, another product under the
solvents division, reached the expected target of 63,000 metric
tons. Due to the year-end round of drastic drop in raw material
prices, however, there was the need to make provision for
inventory impairment. As a result, the product recorded a slight
gross loss for the year, which in turn dragged down the gross
profit margin of the solvents division to a certain extent.

Two new developments that appeared in the China market were:

1. Acetate players were contracting and fading out from the
market;

2. New capacities for butyl acrylate continued to come online,
compounding the problem of oversupply.
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Solvents (Continued)

After assessing these new situations, the management necessarily
unrolled some appropriate measures including:

()

(ii)

(iii)

Speed up construction of the new 300,000-metric ton
acetate production line in the Taixing plant in Jiangsu to
target for commissioning in the second quarter of 2015. The
aim is to bring total capacity to over one million metric tons
as a way to allow further increases in sales for this product
line and to spare room for developing other higher value-
added acetate products.

The butyl acrylate business will be run more cautiously this
year. The main consideration is to ensure that this product
line will not generate any loss and will produce synergies
with acetates, the division’s central business.

R&D investment in the above two product lines will be
expanded this year to improve production equipment

gradually so as to bring in higher gains and better effects in
energy and material saving.
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Coatings

The sales revenue in the year was HK$3,350,517,000, which was
a slight decrease from the same period in the previous year. The
main cause was the drop in selling prices due to decreases in raw
material prices. Sales volume still grew 4% while an operating
profit of HK$95,300,000 was registered. Operating profit after
excluding exchange difference was down 14.1% from the same
period in the previous year due to the one-off expenditure in
plants consolidation.

Given below are the business situations of the division’s two major
product lines — household and industrial coatings as well as inks:

Household and Industrial Coatings

Total sales volume still grew, but overall sales turnover was
dragged down by the increased sales of water-based coatings of
lower unit prices. Meanwhile, insignificant sales growths in oil-
based coatings and industrial coatings had pulled down the overall
rate of capacity utilisation, so even as the new Jinshan factory was
on stream, the economy of scale it was supposed to bring about
was not yet apparent.

The key achievement in the year was the successful establishment
of the Bauhinia Coatings Group. Structurally, three former
subsidiaries (Bauhinia Paints, Hang Cheung Industrial Coatings
and Da Chang Resins) were consolidated to create the Bauhinia
Coatings Group. In the process, specialists in the industry were
recruited to join the existing elites from the three subsidiaries
to form a new management core team which assumed full
responsibility officially on 1 January 2015. The new organisation
structure and new team will put the coatings group on a new
footing. It is expected that synergies and brand complementation
benefits from the integration of technologies, sales, procurement,
logistics and production would emerge gradually in the years to
come and will give a strong impetus to the development of the
coatings business.

Looking forward to 2015, the new coatings group will implement
a series of energising marketing activities and launch its linchpin
products. It will also grab the market aggressively in order to
establish a sharp brand image among China’s colossal young
consumer groups.
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Inks

Hampered by feeble domestic demand and isolated food
safety scares, sales volume of food packaging inks remained
flat, resulting in an unusual drop in turnover in dollar of 4%.
Meanwhile, with the popularity of digital media, market demand
for offset inks used in paper printing was slowed down, making
competition in the industry all the more severe.

In addressing the above situations, management of the inks group has
set out a number of improvement measures including the following:

(i)  Under anaemic market conditions, raw material prices may
hover at such low levels as to allow continuous modest rises
in the gross profit margin of the business. This is favourable
for striving sales growth.

(i) In adjusting to the environmental conscience trend now
coursing through China, alcohol soluble and water-based
inks will be introduced for the first time into the market for
seizing preemptive advantage over competitors.

(iii)  Following the acquisition and revamping of the Huacai Resins
plant last year, the inks group will further work on the
coordinated production of upstream and downstream materials
and products to effect a major improvement in cost structure.

In all, the key objective of the coatings division in 2015 is to fulfil
its annual profit target. It will review on a monthly basis two
factors critical in achieving this target. First, it will fully utilise
its available capacity and obtain surplus benefits through drastic
increases in sales. Second, even though expenditure was under
control last year, there is still room for further tightening, so it is
imperative that the expense ratio is lowered every year.



—ZE—[UE[EEE 2014 ANNUAL REVIEW

2014 ANNUAL REPORT

88
HAN$%15 85 €431,837,000/8 7T © HL ¥
FRIFTHTI% - SRR PETHHT R
TR SHEERREEEMNEL - LY EF
FH - EERFBRAENER - TFIER
B M2 E FE4652,0008 7T » % %
BENERONEFERESHLE  — 2B
B O EER DS - T EER BN EA A TR
- BMBeEMAES MK REEE
HERBRNIBERARBES -

mEmE  MBEN_—_T-NEIRHEDN
—F c WRIRBMYPZENE - MLE
EANTHERERENREEME - B
ERANEN—F - ZHEENERZE
ETREM —FHEREAST BE - K
EFRUEERBEENRE - BRERE
ERTEEMN A - BERE - oE
NEIRRE - BEAHEERR/TE - 7
BER  HENABALLS - KEXBEK
AREN - AR REER -

P

YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

SEHBTEESIRERE

Report of the Chairman of the Group Executive Committee

Lubricants

In the year, turnover was HK$431,837,000, down 7% from
the same period in the previous year. Beset by dismal demand
in China, turnover fell short of management expectation while
operating profit decreased markedly year-on-year. Operating profit
after excluding exchange difference was a mere HK$652,000. In
the annual review meeting just ended recently, management all
agreed that the business was under difficulties and we could not
afford to wait passively for a market upturn. Instead, we will make
serious efforts in two areas: adjust sales strategies and minimise
costs and expenses in every way possible.

To summarise, 2014 was a tough year. Though operating profit
was slightly below management’s target and expectation, expenses
were under control and capped, so it could still be regarded as
a year with achievements. The successful establishment of the
coatings group signified that the consolidation of resources in
the last couple of years had come to an end for the time being.
On the tailwind of the popularity of water-based products,
management believes that, as long as we can adhere to the
Group's three main pillars of growth: economies of scale,
branding and R&D investments, coupled with taking a sales-
oriented approach, minimising expenses and raising earnings ratio

continuously, our businesses will grow steadily, sustainably and
healthily.
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The Group’s R&D Centre in Zhangjiang, The Group's headquarters in Fanling,
Hong Kong
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Jiangsu Guangdong

R LB ILNEREE
The coatings plant in Jinshan,
Shanghai

LRI BB 2R B B
The coatings plant in Chengdu,
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Solvents form the largest part of the Group’s core businesses
and the Group is the world’s largest acetate solvents producer. A
major turn of event took place in 1993 when Handsome Chemical
Development Limited, a Group subsidiary, set sight on the
opportunities made available from the reform and liberalization
in China and formed a joint venture with Jiangmen Qisheng
Chemical Development Company Limited. By capitalising on the
advantages of a sino-foreign joint venture and by complementing
each other, the two partners were able to achieve more than 20
years of dazzling performance.

The Group produces mainly eco-friendly industrial organic solvents.
These include ethyl acetate, normal butyl acetate, mixed butyl
acetate, ethanol and butyl acrylate which are extensively used in
industries in coatings, tannery, medicine and adhesives. The annual
production capacity for acetate solvents and butyl acrylate is
800,000 metric tons and 80,000 metric tons respectively. Backed
by the solid strength of Yip’s Chemical, the solvents division has
established production bases in Southern and Eastern China. It
maintains a huge sales force and operates a sales network that
covers the whole of China and reaches overseas. By operating
mainly on a direct-sales basis, it manages not only in ensuring
thorough and satisfactory services, but also in affording its sales
team a better understanding of customer needs — a vital edge of
the business.
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EE—EERF  BEEBUARAEDN Customers have always been the Group’s main concern and the
ERNEERREREREFPZFRMERER pre- and post-sales customer-oriented services of the solvents
SR e BMBEEABMEIRESIE - K business have, over the years, won the trust and support of
BEEEMBENRME  REERE customers. We cooperate with world-class chemical companies in
£ sourcing for raw materials of superior and stable quality as a way

to guarantee product quality.

AHFBEEAMTSHR - ERETIERE Presented with China’s huge market demand, Yip's Chemical
iR - BT TR ABEISBEERL - R E grasps full advantage of the opportunity not only by expanding
FRRERESTERIN  ERHAEREERE its acetate solvents capacity to ensure its competitive edge in the
ERMRETES - WEAERAS - industry, but also by developing new related products that offer

synergic effects in order to expand product portfolio.
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The Group’s coatings business is involved mainly in the production
and sales of (1) inks: plastic printing inks used for food and drinks
packaging and offset printing inks used for paper printing; (2)
household and industrial coatings: household and architectural
paints — “Bauhinia”, as well as industrial coatings used primarily in
electronic products and furniture.

(1) Inks

Yip’s Chemical’s inks business was started in 1998. By now
it is China’s largest supplier of inks under the Bauhinia
Variegata brand and one of the top 20 ink enterprises
globally. Plastic printing inks and paper printing inks for use
in food, drinks and gift packaging and paper printing are
the main Bauhinia Variegata products. With manufacturing
bases in strategic locations throughout Southern, Eastern and
Northern China, these products are sold over a countrywide
sales network. To further broaden the business scope and to
provide additional momentum for the sustained development
of the inks business in future, a range of silk screen printing
inks for use in the printing of plastics, circuit boards and
glass was launched in 2010. In 2013, the company launched
post-printing materials to support the Group’s business
integration. The annual production capacity of inks is
102,000 metric tons.

In order to meet safety production requirements, Bauhinia
Variegata takes the lead in establishing separate aromatic-free
production plant and introducing fully piped manufacturing
mode. The Bauhinia Variegata production system is not
only equipped with the most advanced automatic controls,
but is also one of the few in China linked to an Enterprise
Resources Planning system. In addition, in its effort to protect
employee health and the environment, Bauhinia Variegata
has also become one of the first companies in the China’s
inks industry in adopting a hazardous substance process
management system.
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Bauhinia Variegata is a staunch advocate of environmental
protection and is leading the industry in both environmentally
friendly products and green technologies. It is not only
named an “Outstanding Eco-friendly Ink Manufacturer”,
its FD series of eco-friendly soy offset printing inks has also
won a “Green Technology Award” on the basis of its highly
effective environmental properties and clean operation
practices. In addition, equipped with a laboratory that has
been certified by China National Accreditation Service for
Conformity Assessment (CNAS), Bauhinia Variegata provides
a professional product testing service.

(2) Household and Industrial Coatings

The Bauhinia Coatings Group officially commenced operation
on 1 January 2015 and its business scope covers household
and architectural paints as well as industrial coatings and
resins. The Bauhinia Coatings Group is formed so that
resources in sourcing, branding, technology, supply chain and
human resources can be effectively shared and economies of
scale will be increased to better serve customers across the
country.

Household and Architectural Paints —
“Bauhinia”

There are three product series under the Bauhinia brand,
namely household paints (water-based emulsion paints and
wood paints), professional architectural paints (inner and
outer wall paints) and industrial paints (furniture paints and
anticorrosive paints). Bauhinia strives to be the leader in
China’s household paints market. With 6,800 sales outlets
covering China’s large and medium-sized cities as well as
the majority of townships, Bauhinia has won favourable
comments and goodwill from innumerable users. In the
architectural paints market, the professional products and
exceptional services of Bauhinia have gained the confidence
of many well-known property developers. With long-term
strategic partnership forged with many of these developers,
projects using Bauhinia professional architectural paints can
now be found across the country. The industrial paints of
Bauhinia have been maintaining rapid growth over the years.
Bauhinia’s superb product quality and professional services
have succeeded in eliciting a high degree of trust from new
and old customers alike.
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With the growing environmental awareness and health
consciousness of consumers, Bauhinia has been staying
innovative in order to provide consumers with a safe, healthy
and refreshing home environment. To this end, it has rolled
out a number of new eco-friendly products and developed
a range of advanced environmental technologies. Bauhinia
has successively been awarded with titles including “Most
Influential Brand in the Industry”, “Top 10 National Brands
in Wall Paints” and “Top 10 Brands in Household Wood
Paints”.

In order to meet the needs of rapid business development
in future, Bauhinia has set up a production base in Jinshan
Fine Chemical Industrial Park in Shanghai. This production
base will have an annual capacity to produce around
200,000 metric tons of coatings, complementary solvents
and associated products. Phase 1 of the production base
has been in operation since 2013, while Phase 2 came on

stream in 2015. The annual production capacity of Bauhinia
is 207,000 metric tons.
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Industrial Coatings

The Group's industrial coatings consist of a range of
products, including coatings for digital products as well as
coatings for use in toys and electronic products. The Group's
industrial coatings laboratory is an accredited laboratory
recognised by CNAS. As such, it can offer testing services
upon customer requests. It can also issue various types of
testing reports on customer products that have the same
validity as those issued by China Commodity Inspection
Bureau. This serves not only to provide solid guarantee on
product quality, but also substantially expand the room
for cooperation between the Group and the end-users or
using entities of a host of international brands. The annual
production capacity of industrial coatings is 56,000 metric

tons.

The Group also produces resins, so that vertical integration
with the production of finished coating products can be
made. This will provide the Group with more competitive raw
materials and will further raise product quality. The annual
production capacity of resins is 85,000 metric tons.
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The Group has been producing lubricants since 1992 and is now
supplying a complete range of automotive, industrial and specialty
lubricants under the Hercules and Pacoil brand names.

The Hercules lubricants consist of a range of automotive and
industrial lubrication products including engine oils, antifreezes,
system coolants, brake fluids, greases, gear oils, automatic
transmission fluids, hydraulic oils, turbine oils, heat conducting oils,
slideway oils, compressor oils and circulating oils. The lubricating
oil Hercules developed specifically for use in methanol fuel engines
have successfully been recognised as a key achievement by the
National High-tech R&D Programme (the “863 Programme”).
The high performance Pacoil specialty lubricants are mainly used

in umpteen industries in metal processing, automobiles, home
appliances, electronics, steel, toys, power generation, cement,
textiles, foundry, plastics, chemicals, paper making, glass as well
as wires and cables. With a countrywide sales network, Pacoil is
one of the competitive specialty lubricant brands in China. The
annual production capacity of automotive and industrial lubricants
is 32,000 metric tons.
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Research and Development

Yip's Chemical always strives to raise the quality of its various
products and is relentless in developing new ones, so much so that
product research and development (R&D) is regarded as one of
the mainstays of the Group’s future expansion. As early as 2011,
it had set up an R&D Centre in Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-tech Park
(the “Centre”). Subsequently, in June 2013, it acquired this R&D
building. The Centre now boasts an elite team of professionals
and an array of advanced trial production equipment and precise
testing instruments. Through stringent scientific management, the
Centre ensures the reliability and quality of new products.

The Group’s R&D personnel are active in developing innovative
products to further enhance the long-term competitiveness of
the Group. As of year end of 2014, the Centre and the technical
departments of all subsidiaries have been granted 107 patents
by China’s State Intellectual Property Office. Moreover, in 2014
the Centre applied to the “Shanghai Little Giant Science and
Technology Projects 2014"” jointly run by Shanghai Municipality
Science and Technology Commission and Shanghai Municipal
Commission of Economy and Informatisation and successfully
registered as a “Shanghai Little Giant Science and Technology
Incubation Enterprise”. In this capacity, it will be given support in
developing key innovative technologies and business models to
promote integration of new technologies, new models and new
industry developments. This new status highlights the competitive
edge of the Centre which will be instrumental in continuously
enhancing the Group’s technological innovation capability.

As market homogenisation increases, the development of new
products that meet market needs would be vital to the survival
and future expansion of an enterprise. The Group is fully confident
that, in the next three to five years, the Centre will become a
renowned R&D base in chemical technology in mainland, through
which better synergies will be created for existing businesses.
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Five Year Financial Summary

“E2-|F —2-ZF “E-CF 2—F “2-ZF “E-ZF
-A-R% —R-RZE —A—-RZ% i =K —A—AZ% mA—BZE
—3-mE —%-=F -FC i = 3-%%
t=A=t-B  fZA=t-B  +ZA=t-R  +tZA=t-A  {ZA=t-A  fZA={-A
1.1.2014 to 1.1.2013 to 1.1.2012 to 1.1.2011 to 1.1.2010 to 1.4.2010 to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2010
(1288) (1218R) (12128) (1218R) (12f8R) (ofeR)
(12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (9-month)
TEn TET TEL TR TR TATL
18 Results HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXH Tumover 10,255,839 9,876,033 8,894,409 8,275,569 7,037,970 5,654,783
IR HRATIER) Profit before taxation 371,248 391,457 421344 297,017 431,933 358,196
7178 Taxation (100,280) (79,736) (81,455) (54,850) (54,139) (41,357)
ANE /ERAAER] Profit for the year/period 270,968 311,721 339,889 242,167 377,794 316,839
FE{E A7) Attributable to
AR Owners of the Company 223,182 250,622 276,302 201,344 309,492 264,509
JERR 25 Non-controlling interests 47,786 61,099 63,587 40,823 68,302 52,330
270,968 311,721 339,889 242,167 377,19 316,839
BREH Per share data
ERAM (L) Eamings per share (HK cents)
—E7 Basic 39.7 44.6 494 363 56.4 430
~#7 Diluted 39.6 4.4 493 36.1 55.8 47.6
SRS (E(L)* Dividend per share (HK cents)* 25.0 25.0 25.0 24.0 2.0
* ZZ-—F2BRREARIBERFIRS4.0%(L -
* Dividend per share in 2011 included the special dividend HK$4.0 cents per share.
BH% L Financial ratios
THEEERRE
Return on average total assets 2.7% 33% 4.1% 3.5% 6.8% 7.3%"
Return on average shareholders' funds 1.5% 8.8% 10.6% 8.4% 14.3% 16.1%*
+ RIPIGNEABRL BRI -
+ Being annualized percentage derived from the actual nine-month percentage on a pro-rata basis.
“E-IE —E-ZF —E-CE —E-F S 23
+=B=+-H +ZA=1+-A +ZA=1+-8 TZF=1-8 +=A=1+-A
31.12.2014 31.12.2013 31122012 31.12.2011 31.12.2010
TR TERL TET TEL TAL
EERAM Assets and Liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBE Total assets 8,282,435 8,128,500 7,143,054 6,440,442 5,127,557
& &4 Total liabilities (4,881,739 (4,720,088) (4,039,783) (3,648,381) (2,534,602)
3,400,696 3,408,412 3,103,271 2,792,061 2,592,955
RRRRR EEE
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2,951,008 2,973,042 2,733,196 2,472,281 2,297,147
FERER
Non-controlling interests 449,688 435,370 370,075 319,780 295,808
3,400,696 3,408,412 3,103,271 2,792,061 2,592,955
FROBEHREL 0 E
Net bank borrowings to shareholders funds 58% 47% 52% 40% 15%
Bzt RBE-T—TF+_A=F+—BUIEFEZEEN  UEFE/HPRZBBEREX - AEEAR -2 TFEVBRFERB=A=+—BHXA+=ZA=1+—

B - SO EF R RS ERBBIELR -

Note: All the figures of the above years/period are audited except for the year ended 31 December 2010. Since the Group changed its financial year end from 31
March to 31 December in 2010, the unaudited figures for such corresponding period are provided for comparision.
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Analysis of Turnover And Segment Results For the Past Five Years

%% Turnover

—E-NF —T-=F —T-CF —2——F —T-TF —T-TF
—HA—-RZE —fF—B=% —fA—HZ® —f—HZE —A—H% WA—HZ
—E-NEF —T-=F —T-CF —T——F —T-TF —T-TF

t=B=t-B t-A=t-8 +ZA=+-A +-A=t-8 {=A=t-A f=A=f-H
1.1.2014 to 1.1.2013 to 1.1.2012 to 1.1.2011 to 1.1.2010 to 1.4.2010 to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2010

(12/88) (12185) (12f88) (12188) (1288) OFEA)

(12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (9-month)

THT TEL TR S THT THEL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT Solvents 6,575,516 6,164,413 5,315,984 5,100,110 4,281,199 3,445,502
#% Coatings 3,350,517 3,395,381 3,209,418 2,821,351 2,417,540 1,947,839
8% Lubricants 431,837 463,831 433,150 416,201 353,582 283,742
Hit Others 85,397 74,517 96,414 49,500 99,812 67,001
2 58 Elimination (187,428) (222,109) (160,557) (111,593) (114,163) (89,391)
4% Total 10,255,839 9,876,033 8,894,409 8,275,569 7,037,970 5,654,783

Mz BBEEZT—TF T _A=T—HIEFEZEEN  UEFE /BEZSBEEEER% - ARER _Z—ZF RV BFHEBER=
R=+t—B#AT+T-A=+—H SOILEFRP 2 REEZEIRIELE

Note: All the figures of the above years/period are audited except for the year ended 31 December 2010. Since the Group
changed its financial year end from 31 March to 31 December in 2010, the unaudited figures for such corresponding period
are provided for comparision.
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2 ¥ ¥ 4& Segment Results

—E-NF —E-=F —T-CF —2——F —T-TF —T-TF
—HA—-RZE —A—HE —fA—HZ® —f—HZE —A—H% WA—HZ
—E-NEF ~E-ZF —T-CF —T——F —T-TF —T-TF

t=B=t-B t-A=t-8 +ZA=+-A +-A=t-8 {=A=t-A f=A=f-H
1.1.2014 to 1.1.2013 to 1.1.2012 to 1.1.2011 to 1.1.2010 to 1.4.2010 to
31.12.2014 31.12.2013 31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2010 31.12.2010

(12188) (121848) (12184) (12{8R) (1218R) (9f8R)

(12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (12-month) (9-month)

TET THT FET FAL TAL TAL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

JAH Solvents 226,657 265,186 311,565 219,477 319,032 244,312
%% Coatings 95,300 122,706 144,679 84,530 92,008 109,836
BB Lubricants (2,934) 9,996 (6,107) 4,474 12,917 5,799
HHy Others 19,613 15,070 11,672 1,043 4,653 4,979
2 S Elimination (64) 6,780 (5,552) 3,064 (747) 4,099
#% Total 338,572 419,738 456,257 312,588 427,863 369,025

Wiz BBEE—T—TF T _A=T—HIEFEZEEN  UEFE /BEZEBEEEE% - ARER _Z—ZF RV BFLEER=
R=+t—B#AT+T-A=+—H SOILEFRP I REEZBIRIELE

Note: All the figures of the above years/period are audited except for the year ended 31 December 2010. Since the Group
changed its financial year end from 31 March to 31 December in 2010, the unaudited figures for such corresponding period
are provided for comparision.
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%ébﬂuﬁﬁﬁ1“ﬁ$ 7] R R e
IS AT EEE) A581% (ZT—=
¢+_Hf+ B :46.7%) ' LLEFER
HEANMNAMEESE - FERAREFLZIU
RITASIEZE R - BT FRH L&
1k 22 45 1% /n188,649,000/8 7T, © % fiE U BE
EURIR &% - M EARBEEELRE
RIrEZE - BAOARABRREE(ES
117,124,000/ 70 - BEHEEL R FF -
BREEEE2FLEESOREERE 77
EREMEMERRE  2FFHEEL
CREPEEE T NFEMRE &
MEBEREFEETH —RIEZLE
WEREBBETRM - EESERES T
FEBEES  BRIENEBREWRERTED
EEEH - WERBRTREIEEZEEEREN
R EEE - HEANEREER » LB
FHFRRER L - RN T E R
BWHTEES - EESIUR—BK EERT
HiAESTEER  R-E—AFEAR
MESERK 1% - IR B EERLIE ] B SRS R R ER
FHEBRBERTE  AUHBESTNED
15 REFAE -

R-B—ME+-—A=+—0  £ENH
1T 48 /K 3% /53,083,410,000/8 T( — & —
=#+_-_HA=+—0H :2,758,348,000/&
TT) B EIIRITIERR  SRITHESHRIA R
1 41,367,687,000/ 0 ( —B—=F+—
A=+—H :1,369,134,000/8 7T ) 1% -
FERITEE A1,715,723,0008 0 ( =&
—=—®%+=-A=+—8 :1,389,214,000
BIL) e WITHBRRP BR—FR
B E Z M B E R A1,811,114,000%8
W ZE—ZF+=-_A=Z+—8:
1,506,177,000/8 L) * ZEE R LAME
B FE - B 4$E1,625,000,0005 7T LA
B TE E 16,276,000 7T A A R ¥
JE 18 * 57,426,000/ 7T MA SR 7T 7E E M
112,412,000 T A E T EB( =T —
—%+=-A=+—8 :1,377,667,000

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing ratio (measured
by net bank borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the Company) was 58.1% (31 December 2013: 46.7%),
an increase of 11.4 percentage points compared to last year. The
main reason is that customers settle accounts receivables more by
banker’s acceptances, and the balance of banker’s acceptances
increased by HK$188,649,000 when compared to last year and
thus delayed the cash receipt. In addition, the translation exchange
difference caused by depreciation of Renminbi (RMB) resulted in
a decrement of equity attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$117,124,000 and thus increased the gearing ratio. However,
in retrospect of the Group’s whole year performance in managing
its working capital controls (including accounts receivables,
inventory and payables), the average working capital turnover days
had been improved in 2014, which reflects the Group’s series of
measures implemented since last year to monitor and improve
cash flow have started to take effect. The Group would continue
to effectively control its working capital, stringently monitor and
shorten the accounts receivables and inventory turnover days,
and effectively use banker’s acceptances to lengthen the accounts
payables turnover days. As for projects of capital expenditures,
after the substantial investments in previous few years, the Group
has now remaining major projects of new production lines of plant
in Taixing, Jiangsu, phase 2 of plant in Jinshan, Shanghai and the
R&D Centre in Zhangjiang, Shanghai. After the completion of
such projects in 2015, the production capacity should be able to
sufficiently meet the Group’s business development needs in the
coming few years and hence the impact on cash flow could be
gradually relieved.

As at 31 December 2014, the gross bank borrowings of the
Group amounted to HK$3,083,410,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$2,758,348,000). After deduction of short-term bank deposits,
bank balances and cash amounting to HK$1,367,687,000
(31 December 2013: HK$1,369,134,000), the net bank
borrowings amounted to HK$1,715,723,000 (31 December
2013: HK$1,389,214,000). Out of the gross bank borrowings,
HK$1,811,114,000 (31 December 2013: HK$1,506,177,000) were
short-term loans and repayable within one year. Such loans were
denominated in four currencies, namely HK$1,625,000,000 in
Hong Kong Dollar, HK$16,276,000 in RMB, HK$57,426,000 in
Australian Dollar and HK$112,412,000 in US Dollar (31 December
2013: HK$1,377,667,000 in Hong Kong Dollar, HK$35,236,000 in
RMB, HK$62,392,000 in Australian Dollar and HK$30,882,000 in
US Dollar). Long-term loans repayable after one year amounted to
HK$1,272,296,000 (31 December 2013: HK$1,252,171,000), of
which HK$1,243,583,000 were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar
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and HK$28,713,000 in Australian Dollar (31 December 2013:
HK$1,158,582,000 were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and
HK$93,589,000 in Australian Dollar).

In order to support the capital expenditure and working capital
requirement for the Group's expected future growth, as well as
the needs of refinancing some of its maturing term loans, the
Group has obtained 4 to 5-year bilateral long-term loans in total
of HK$750,000,000 in 2014. As at 31 December 2014, mid to
long-term loans accounted for 65% of the total bank loans. Since
some of the borrowings of the Group carry interests at floating
rate, the funding costs are subject to interest rate fluctuation. The
Group therefore used interest rate swaps to fix the interest rate
of some of the 3 to 5-year bilateral long-term loans and 3-year
bilateral mid-term loans to hedge against the risk of interest
rate fluctuation. Furthermore, as stated in previous reports, the
Group used currency swap to convert its 3-year bilateral mid-
term Australian dollar loan drawn in 2013 to Hong Kong Dollar
denominated repayment loan at the drawdown date to hedge
against the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

As at 31 December 2014, a total of 21 banks in Hong Kong and
PRC granted banking facilities totaling HK$5,209,158,000 to the
Group and provided sufficient funds to meet its present working
capital and expansion requirement. 79%, 13%, 6% and 2% of
these banking facilities were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar,
RMB, US Dollar and Australian Dollar respectively. The Group
arranges Hong Kong Dollar bank loans in Hong Kong for its China
operations to leverage on the lower borrowing rate in Hong Kong
and higher deposit rate in the Mainland so as to enhance return.
The economy of United States has been gradually recovering and
it is likely to start the interest rate hike cycle in 2015. However,
the three months or shorter Hong Kong Dollar inter-bank interest
rate still maintains at a low level. Besides, the Group is exposed to
RMB exchange rate risk as the Group’s assets are mainly located
in the Mainland and most of its income is generated in RMB.
Although RMB against Hong Kong Dollar has been depreciated
about 2.6% during 2014, it is expected that there shall not be
continuously sharp depreciation of RMB against Hong Kong
Dollar in the long run due to the internationalization of RMB. The
management considers that the Group can still refinance its bank
loans at a desirable interest rate in Hong Kong instead of remitting
back its RMB funding from PRC operations for loans repayments
to incur realised exchange loss. Costly hedging measure against
RMB exchange loss is thus considered unnecessary by the
management and yet the management will closely monitor its
fluctuations. The Group will strike a balance between lowering
borrowing costs and minimising currency exposure by structuring
an optimal combination of Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar, RMB
or other foreign currency bank loans. Also, the Group is actively
exploring the possibility of cross-border cash pooling arrangement
to enhance the flexibility of its funding transfer.

Y|



42

ER{EIEERRAE T FEFR

B
Awards

MAsia E#EHong Kong
¥ &4 Corporate Governance/

¥ 2 E 1 Corporate Social Responsibility

1. (EHEH) Asiamoney

2014 EREREE R

- ?/%E%%EEY1 %Eq/zﬁﬂ

- BEREEARENEHEE —H
— EAREEEEREEGRMESE %
— BEREREEBRE—F
Corporate Governance Poll 2014

— Overall Best Company in Hong Kong for
Corporate Governance

— Ranked 1st in the “Best for Disclosure and
Transparency in Hong Kong” category

— Ranked 1st in the “Best for Responsibilities of
Management and the Board of Directors in Hong
Kong” category

— Ranked 1st in the “Best Investor Relations in
Hong Kong” category

2. (EEMNEUE) Asiamoney
EEREEE AR -
BREREEE/NEEEHAE
Best Managed Companies in Hong Kong —

Small Cap - Best of the Best Managed Company in
Hong Kong — Small Cap

3. (BiE) The Asset

2014 FE{h¥EREE—
BIERIR - CEER  HE2EMT -
REEARKREEMESE

The Asset Corporate Awards 2014 —

Gold Award for Financial Performance, Corporate
Governance, Social Responsibility, Environmental
Responsibility and Investor Relations

4.

HbOthers

(M ER) Corporate Governance Asia

2014FEF T EEMNEREARE - CRERHRE

2014£FE%IJ=EE/JHEE7@%
RECEHEEME

— REREET

— ZEREEBEAF

— EMRETBAE(REERIR)

10th Corporate Governance Asia

Recognition Awards 2014 -

Asia’s Icon in Corporate Governance

4nd Asian Excellence Recognition Awards 2014

— Best CSR

— Best Environmental Responsibility

— Best Investor Relations Company

— Asia’s Best CEO (Investor Relations)

#EEFE Social Welfare Department —
2013F &5 THES AT IR

Bronze Award for Volunteer Service 2013

EELEREHEE The Hong Kong Council
of Social Service

5 Plusl B SRR B E 1555
5 Years Plus Caring Company Logo

(EEMEZEETR)

Corporate Governance Asia
20145 EFRETMEREFARE
(REEFEEERELE)

5th Asian Corporate Director Recognition Awards
2014 (Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Chairman of the Group)
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FE A # Mainland China
TEHESET
Corporate Social Responsibility

1.

FEARESEHES

China Charity Festival
2014 FERER EmiER
Best CSR Brand Award 2014

(REREER)

China Philanthropy Times

2014 B XM S B FEFR

China Outstanding CSR Case Awards 2014

HEAHMCEIEBKESS
China Petroleum and
Chemical Industry Federation
2014 EHhBAMAET o
PEARBRE 2 mR2RE

2014 China Petroleum and Chemical Industry Model
Corporate Citizenship Awards — Branding Award

LT ALBEERGE

Shanghai Public Relations Association
PETELEESRAHBREIFERE

The 7th Outstanding CSR Case Award of Shanghai
— Silver Award

E=EhENSEE

The 3rd China Finance Summit
20145 (=T (FHE
2014(FT%) A mE 2N

Best CSR 2014

Best (Industry) Brand 2014

Hith
Others

6.

EBTEEBEEREHAZTER
FREWEITERS

Shanghai Corporate Credibility
Promotion Activity and Shanghai
Chemical Industry Association

EamEERE

Designated as a “Shanghai Trustworthy Enterprise”

ChEtt )

Ink World

ER(ETE2EFAR —FEFHAZE
EFZOM@@%E\H% P IR A3

Yip's Chemical’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
“Bauhinia Variegata Ink”, is ranked 13th among
The Top International Ink Companies 2014

o B P8R

China Coatings News
04FEERAEERE - KHAREED
AR B - AR BRERAE B R

The 5th Golden Paint Award 2014 -

Distributors” Most Favourite Top 10 Chinese Brands
for Wood Coatings
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HC360.com
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The 10th Top 10 Awards Ceremony of Coatings Raw
Materials & Machinery Equipment 2013 —
Top 10 Additive and Solvent Brands
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In its constant striving for higher business performance and
sustained development, Yip’'s Chemical is also committed to
reciprocating society and helping the underprivileged so as to
strike a balance between the two endeavours. The Group takes
it as its responsibility to undertake corporate social responsibility
(CSR) and sees CSR as a long-term worthy commitment. It is
also committed to incorporating the concept of sustainable
development into its business operations and management
processes to better achieve an all-win situation and comprehensive
development for the economy, society and the environment.

Workplace Practices
Safety First

Since its inception in 2012, the Group Health, Safety and
Environment Committee (the “Group HSE Committee”) has been
raising the Group’s performance in health, safety and environment
(HSE) continuously while striving to safeguard the health and
safety of its staff and various stakeholders in its operations. In the
year, the Group HSE Committee reviewed and revised the Group’s
HSE Policy. Related key systems, terms of reference and guidelines
were elucidated so that HSE targets and criteria become more
specific and the HSE Policy conforms to people-centred principles.
The Group HSE Committee held a meeting once every quarter to
discuss and review the safety and health status of the Group and
its subsidiaries. Members of the Group HSE Committee also carried
out safety inspection in three plants during the year.

Set up in 2010, the Health, Safety and Environment Department
(the "HSE Department”) is mainly responsible for supervising
health and safety matters within the Group and in all subsidiaries.
The HSE Department carries out factory safety inspections on a
regular basis. Last year, a total of 23 inspections were conducted,
followed by the giving out of recommendations and corrective
action requests to the factories visited.
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Safety Training

Certain production personnel in the Group have to undergo
occupational health checks on a regular basis to ensure that they
are healthy. All factories are also required to report periodically
their safety prevention measures and hours of safety training
conducted. Last year, 114,864 hours of HSE related trainings were
carried out by the Group and its subsidiaries.

Staff Development and Welfare

It is the conviction of Yip’s Chemical that personnel are an
important factor in maintaining the competitiveness and vitality of
a corporation. For this, it regards employees as its lifeblood and
their training and caring are of crucial importance.

As a way to support staff training and development, the Group is
offering Yip’s Management Training Programme (the “Programme”)
to provide its management personnel with the necessary skills and
knowledge to enhance their everyday work efficiency. At the same
time, the Programme boosts management skills and functional
knowledge commonly used by these personnel in order to support
the long-term development of the Group’s businesses. These
skills and knowledge are provided through four modules, namely
the New Managers Module, the Core Management Competence
Module, the Specialist Functions Module and the Leadership
Module. In 2014, the Programme provided in total 2,848 hours of
training in sales, target management, leadership, team building,
time management and R&D skills to 393 employees of subsidiaries.
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The Group is also active in organising training activities aimed at
building and boosting team cohesion. In the year, 268 group and
subsidiary staff participated for the first time in the Hangzhou
International Marathon. Through various team building games and
competitions, employees were able to strengthen communication
among themselves and increased their sense of belonging to the
Group.

The independently-run Yip’s Care Extension Foundation (the
“Foundation”) was set up in 2011 by three founding shareholders
of the Group through the donation of four million shares of
Yip's Chemical. It has since been independently managed
by a management committee formed by professionals from
different disciplines within the Group. In addition to helping
the descendants of needy employees receive better and higher
education, the Foundation also wants to offer more benefits to

every retiring employee.

The scope of sponsorship covers full-time vocational secondary
school and senior secondary school education as well as junior
college and undergraduate programmes. Eligibility for both Hong
Kong and mainland employees is that the salary of an applicant
should not exceed 3.5 times the local minimum wage. In 2014,
all mainland sponsorships were reckoned in RMB instead of Hong
Kong dollars. With sponsorship amount figures remaining the
same, this means that sponsorship level in the mainland has been
raised by more than twenty percent.
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In addition, the Foundation has added a retirement gratuity
programme to recognise the contribution of retiring employees.
The granting of retirement gratuity applies to all Group and
subsidiary employees from Hong Kong and the mainland who have
reached statutory retirement age and there is no service period
restriction. The one-time payment is
calculated by multiplying the qualified
continuous years of service by a
specific amount in RMB.

In 2014, the management committee
approved 159 cases of regular
applications for education sponsorship.
Together with 12 cases arising from
sudden changes in financial situations,
the total sponsorship amount was
about HK$792,000, up 30% from
last year. In the year, a total of 13

HafnENnan
EmivARsEARNE

employees from the Group and
subsidiaries qualified for retirement
gratuity and a total of RMB165,000
retirement gratuity was dispensed.

Environmental Protection
Clean Production

The Group pursues energy conservation and emission reduction
vigorously. Clean production is keenly enforced in its factories
and no effort is spared in minimising pollution generated during
production.

The Zhongshan plant of Bauhinia Variegata Inks, a Yip’'s Chemical
subsidiary, underwent technological upgrade in 2014 and started
employing automatic raw material feeding equipment in its
production. By utilising digital computer technology that allows
precise calculation, the equipment can effectively ensure product
quality while minimising the generation of dust and odour during
the feeding process. At the same time, the laboratory in the
Zhongshan plant also started using a “Fresh Air Heat Exchanger”.
In this device, a paper core total heat exchanger is installed in
the air-conditioning system not only to minimise cooling output
and indoor concentrations of carbon dioxide and volatile organic
chemicals, but also to raise power consumption efficiency.
Furthermore, the closed pipeline mode of production can reduce
environmental pollution to a substantial extent and contribute
towards an eco-friendly work environment.
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Research and Development of Green
Products

The coatings subsidiaries of Yip's Chemical have been adhering
to the objective of developing “eco-friendly, low carbon and high
performance” coatings and relentlessly developing quality coating
products suitable for the China market. In 2014, a host of good
selling value-for-money products such as “Bamboo Charcoal
Odourless Paint”, "All-in-one Glossy Paint” and “Water-based
Eco-friendly Wood Paint” were launched by Bauhinia Paints. In
addition, it also rolled out for its industrial customers a range
of eco-friendly coating solutions including water-based and UV-
curable coatings for wood.

In 2014, Bauhinia Paints launched a super-odourless and anti-
formaldehyde all-purpose wall paint. By adopting Bauhinia Paints’
innovative odour removal technology and no-additive technology,
the product is odourless because the amount of harmful
substances such as formaldehyde, benzene and other volatile
organic matters is lowered to undetected level. This product also
possesses formaldehyde removing properties that can effectively
adsorb and rid formaldehyde, toluene and other harmful
pollutants present in indoor air, thus bringing a comfortable and
safe environment to household residents and construction workers
alike. Bauhinia Paints also introduced an eco-friendly water-
based wood paint for household wood furniture. By adopting an
advanced technology, the wood paint is heat-resistant, yellowing
resistant and chemical resistant while the level of volatile organic
compounds is kept to 30% below international limit. In other
words, this water-based wood paint possesses both eco-friendly
and high performance properties.
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The development of eco-friendly products is also the focus of
Bauhinia Variegata Inks. In 2014, it introduced a GE series of
alcohol soluble polyurethane eco-friendly composite ink. This
product is particular suitable for use in food packaging where
requirements for solvent residues are stringent. Besides, it has
superb ink printing controllability and is easy to use. Another
product it launched successfully is the Non Volatile (NV) series of
offset printing ink. With one of the lowest volatile organic matter
levels in the world (less than 1%), this 100% vegetative oil-based
ink will meet the latest international environment regulations. In
order to offer more high-performance eco-friendly ink products
to the market, Bauhinia Variegata Inks does not use benzene or
ketone type of solvents in its production.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to raising the environmental
consciousness of its employees by encouraging them to adopt
good energy housekeeping and minimise waste systematically at
the job and personal levels.

In the area of energy conservation, following the replacement of
all T8 fluorescent tubes with T5 ones in the Group’s headquarters
in Hong Kong, some T5 fluorescent tubes were replaced by LED
lights in the period to further reduce power consumption. Also,
it has been decided that whenever outdoor temperature drops
to below 20°C, all indoor air-conditioners will be turned off. In
addition, to better encourage employees to adopt environmental
practices in work procedures so as to minimise electricity and
paper usage, tips on environmental protection were disseminated
to remind employees of green lifestyle practices at all times.
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Active Support of Environmental Activities

Yip's Chemical actively supports and participates in activities
organised by various environmental bodies in Hong Kong and the
mainland to heighten staff awareness on low-carbon living and
environmental protection. For nine straight years since 2006 “Yip's
Chemical Volunteers”, the corporate volunteer team (the “Team”),
has been participating in the Tree Planting Challenge organised
by Friends of the Earth Hong Kong, and for three consecutive
years since 2012 they have participated in the Earth Hour energy
conservation activity run by World Wide Fund for Nature. In the
year, the corporate volunteer team also arranged mainland staff
members in eastern China to clean up beaches in Shanghai.

Operating Practices

In 2014, the board of directors of
the Group adopted the “Group Vi

Code of Ethics and Conducts”

which, by outlining the Group's '.“!@'I" T
core values and standards of
behaviour, provides guidelines

for all systems, decisions and
conducts within the Group,
thereby protecting the reasonable
interests of all its stakeholders
including investors, creditors,
employees, customers, suppliers
as well as society at large.

Cultivating an “Ethical and Merit-based
Behaviours Culture”

To support the long-term development of the Group’s businesses,
employees at all levels must be both competent and ethically
reliable. Effective team building and the promotion of the Group’s
core values will be important strategies for the Group.

In 2012, 18 codes of conducts that assert the importance of
ethics and competence were drawn up to help employees at all
levels understand how best to demonstrate responsible and ethical
behaviours towards clients, shareholders, superiors, subordinates
and other stakeholders. To ensure that all employees understand
the concept of an ethical and merit-based culture, the Group
conducted talks, held essay competitions, issued publications and
provided training. Last year, a micro-film production competition
under the theme of “Ethical and Merit-based Behaviours” was also
held so that employees could bring out the 18 codes of conducts
in a light-hearted and interactive way, the better to remind
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every employee in the Group and its subsidiaries the importance
of revering ethical behaviours and cherishing competence. The
competition received a total of 24 micro films from employees.
The Group will compile all 24 entries into a video disc for
distribution to the whole staff so as to share the message behind
each story and extend the spirit of revering ethical conducts and
cherishing competence.

Community Involvement

The board of directors of the Group adopted the “Policy on
Community Investments, Sponsorships and Donation” in 2014.
Applicable to the Group and all its subsidiaries, this policy aims at
setting up consistent guidelines and standards in the allocation of
resources to community investments, sponsorships and donation
with the view to further promoting the strategic and effective
use of resources so that, while contributing towards community
development at the localities of operation, balanced and healthy
development of businesses can also be achieved.

Mobile Eye Surgery Centre Donation
Programme

The Group involves actively in supporting the vision restoration
and poverty alleviation campaigns in the mainland by offering
practical assistance to help those in need improve their health and
quality of life. Based on this conviction, it is implementing an “Eye
Surgery Centre Donation Programme”—a long-term project aimed
at helping the multitude of cataract patients in the mainland

restore vision.
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Since 2008, the Group has been providing eye surgery to
impoverished cataract patients living in remote areas in the
mainland through the donation of one mobile eye surgery centre
worth about HK$2.5 million every year. After donating the first
two mobile surgery centres, the Group entered into an agreement
with Asian Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness (AFPB) and
China Disabled Persons’ Federation (CDPF) for implementing a
“Ten-Year Mobile Eye Surgery Centre Donation Programme” in
2010. Under this agreement, Yip's Chemical plans to donate 10
mobile eye surgery units in the decade beginning 2010 to CDPF
through AFPB for the benefits of mainland cataract patients.

Up until 2014, the Group has donated six such mobile units
respectively to Jiangsu, Shandong, Inner Mongolia, Yunnan,
Heilongjiang and Shanxi, amounting to about HK$15 million in
total donation.

Up to 31 December 2014 since the launch of the programme, the
six mobile eye surgery units have successfully provided cataract
removal surgery for around 37,800 patients.

Apart from being a donor of mobile units, every year Yip's
Chemical Volunteers calls on employees of the Group and
its mainland subsidiaries to pay a three-day visit to province
receiving donation of the mobile surgery units to gain a better
understanding of the significance and effectiveness of their work.
In the period under report, 18 members of the team went to
Heilongjiang to carry out cataract prevention education and visit
cataract patients and ex-patients.
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Corporate Volunteer Team

Since its inception in September 2011, Yip's Chemical Volunteers
has been upholding the principle of “From the Community, For
the Community” in promoting volunteer work. They regularly
organise and participate in a range of volunteer activities and
encourage their colleagues to go into communities and help
people in need.

In 2014, the target service recipients of the corporate volunteer
team was extended to include seniors—by taking an interest
in the livelihood of senior citizens, services were offered to
those in need. In the period, the Team cooperated with Hong
Kong Lutheran Social Service (HKLSS) in carrying out dementia
assessment for about 30 seniors. In addition, through a charity
sale day, the Team raised money for HKLSS elderly centres for
use in their refurbishing. The Team also joined the senior citizen
home visit and telephone greeting programme run by the Senior
Citizen Home Safety Association. They were involved in phoning
150 seniors to understand their daily life situations and help pass
on all-is-well messages to them. In the mainland, the senior citizen
services of the Team covered 100 seniors living in an elderly centre
in Pudong New Area, Shanghai. Team members showed their care
by cooperating with the centre’s seniors in making paper-cuts of
zodiac signs.

In addition to senior citizen services, the Team also supported the
“Physically Handicapped and Able-bodied Love Carnival” hosted
by a charity, Silver Lining Foundation, to raise funds for the
rehabilitation training of mainland cerebral palsy children.

The Group is committed to capitalising its specialty to help
improve communities. In the year, Bauhinia Paints donated paints
to the Community Art Centre for Orphaned and Disabled Children
of the Alumni of The University of Hong Kong for painting 500
sg. m of walls in the reading room, parlour, handicraft room and
music room. After the refurbishing, children took delights in using
the art centre.

Mainland members of the Team are also active in participating
in volunteering services, with promoting green living and caring
disadvantaged groups being their service themes. In the year, they
organised such activities as rubbish collection and classification
in mountain areas, ocean protection, visitations of seniors and
households in difficulties. They also donated daily use items and
learning aids to poor needy pupils.
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In 2014, Yip's Chemical employees in Hong Kong and the
mainland and their relatives and friends contributed a total of 1,269
hours of volunteer service involving 285 participants. Since the
establishment of Yip’s Chemical Volunteers in September 2011,
the accumulated hours of services and number of participants are
4,194 hours and 848 persons respectively.
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Student Sponsorship and Scholarship

Yip's Chemical well understands that the next generation is
the master of future society and is therefore keen to sponsor
education.

For nine straight years since 2006 Yip's Chemical has been
carrying out a student sponsorship programme in Jiangmen,
Guangdong. In 2014, the Group donated about RMB600,000
for sponsoring 94 poor needy students who excelled in the
matriculation examination, for awarding scholarship to the top 15
students from the arts stream and science stream in matriculation
classes and for recognising 22 outstanding teachers of graduating
classes.

Yip's Chemical is also actively involved in the “Seagull Scholarship
Programme” by offering summer internship to undergraduates
sponsored by the non-profit organisation running the programme.
In 2014, the Group provided one-month internship for 30
Seagull-sponsored undergraduates at various departments of its
subsidiaries. On top of getting paid for their work, each intern was
also given free meal, room and board as well as transportation
expenses.
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Employees

As of 31 December 2014, the Group has a total number of 4,258
employees. 103 employees are from Hong Kong and 4,155 are
from different provinces in China.

The Group places great emphasis on the management and
development of human capital. The employees are encouraged
to strive for improvement through internal and external training
program, on-the-job training and participation in the Group’s
educational subsidies, allowing for self-development in knowledge
and skills and to maximise their potential in their work. We offer
excellent platform for development of highly committed and
capable employees, regardless of their background, geographical
region or educational levels. Through versatile experience in
challenging roles, the current leadership of the Group has come
through the ranks to advance to positions of management. Besides
the focus of developing employees internally, the Group seeks not
only to attract talent from outside but also recruit top graduates
from the best tertiary institutions in Hong Kong, Mainland China,
and abroad as well as provide them with training and development
opportunities. The Management Trainee Program has been
implementing for a number of years. Some of the management
trainees have demonstrated their excellence capabilities and been
advanced to positions of leadership within the Group.

The Group offers a challenging work environment, sets up
different programs for motivating employees to strive for
improvement and to upgrade their skills in order to sustain the
development of business. From time to time, the Group will make
reference to market trends for the review of remuneration policy
so as to ensure reasonable and competitive compensation and
benefits. These include basic salary and performance-based bonus
to attract and retain talents.
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Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

Chairman, Non-executive Director

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, aged 67, is the chairman and the co-founder
of the Group and Mr. Ip was re-designated as the chairman
of the Group and a non-executive director of the Company on
1 January 2012. Mr. lp focuses on the leading of the Board,
the Group’s long-term development strategy and the planning
and inheritability of human resources of the Group. He is the
brother of Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, the deputy chairman of the Group,
an executive director of the Company as well as the chairman of
the Group Executive Committee and the father of Mr. Ip Kwan,
a member of the Group Executive Committee. In 2006, Mr. Ip
established “lp Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited” with the
objectives of fostering education in China and providing care for
the underprivileged groups in Hong Kong.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, aged 56, joined the Group in 1977. Mr. Yip
is the deputy chairman of the Group and an executive director
of the Company. Mr. Yip was appointed as the chairman of the
Group Executive Committee on 1 January 2012. Mr. Yip has
over 30 years of experience in the manufacture of and trading
in petrochemical products. He is the brother of Mr. Ip Chi Shing,
the chairman of the Group and a non-executive director of
the Company.
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Mr. Ho Sai Hou

BEREE
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wong Kam Yim, aged 54, joined the Group in 1996 and has
been an executive director of the Company since 2002. Mr. Wong
was appointed as a member of the Group Executive Committee
on 1 January 2012 and was appointed as the general manager of
the Lubricants group on 1 January 2013. He graduated from The
University of Sheffield in the United Kingdom with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Business Studies and obtained a Master's Degree in
Business Administration from The University of Wales in the United
Kingdom. He has over 20 years of experience in marketing and
management.

Mr. Ho Sai Hou, aged 48, joined the Group as the chief
financial officer in 2010. Mr. Ho was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 1 January 2011 and a member of
the Group Executive Committee on 1 January 2012. He was also
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 1 March
2015. Mr. Ho obtained a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in
Accounting from The University of Hong Kong and completed
his EMBA with The China Europe International Business School in
2007. Previously, Mr. Ho had worked for several listed companies
in Hong Kong as their chief financial officer, executive director
and company secretary. He is a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He
has over 20 years of experience in accounting, finance, taxation
and company secretarial work.

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu, aged 50, joined the Group in 1987 and
has been a member of the Group Executive Committee since 1
January 2012. Mr. Kwong was appointed as the managing director
of the Hang Cheung group on 1 January 2013 and was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1 January 2014.
Mr. Kwong obtained a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration
from The Open University of Hong Kong, and has over 20 years
of experience in the field of marketing and management of
petrochemical industry.

57



58 ER{IEEBRAT

EERTHRAEHN

Directors’ and Management Executives’ Profiles

T -FEFR

BEREE
Mr. Tong Wui Tung

FHITES

BEREE  BESTHE R—AN=
FRZERARBBILIFNITES » TN
“RENFREBFTANARIFFRITES
ERERKREE  BER - BIMEETT
ZERA - REE  BER - EIAEE
IRAKEZEELZER  YEHT
AEBZ BB —REREE - FELRE
RBEBVEZN  EEBREBEBE=1
FUREELTARNEERZERERA
B2 IFITES -

BMYFHITES

BEESELE  AFL LR R -AN=
FRZERARBBIIFNITES - KA
ARG AR ERGEREEGT
BhAE & - EALRERBEART
EBTZF  AN—NA=FERIK - &R
EWEEEEM ETHARERESR -

FERSE  BEStm RZ2EN
FRZERANRRBIIFNTES - Tt
ERBEEREMNEIARSHNGAS2ELE
e FRENR _TTIMFRR - RKAT
MMEIABRBBEB —+HF  EOR - K
BBE  AFMTRIFIEASEN
Ko MEBEER L ERBERHBE 2R
BZF BAOEPCLERZL2ESR -
FRAVEZETHM EHARERNES
B o

Mr. Wong Kong Chi

TEREE
Mr. Li Chak Man

Non-executive Director

Mr. Tong Wui Tung, aged 65, was elected as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 1993 and was re-
designated as a non-executive director of the Company in 2004.
Mr. Tong is a partner of the law firm, Messrs. Cheung Tong &
Rosa Solicitors, legal advisers of the Group on Hong Kong Law
which receives usual professional fees in connection with services
rendered to the Group. Mr. Tong has been practising as a solicitor
in Hong Kong for over 30 years and is also an independent non-
executive director of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited,
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kong Chi, aged 57, has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 1993. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong retired in 1993
after working in the merchant banking industry for over 10
years. Mr. Wong does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies.

Mr. Li Chak Man, aged 67, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2004. Mr. Li obtained a
Master’s Degree in Statistics from Texas A&M University. Mr. Li
retired in 2004 after having worked in the petrochemical industry
for over 25 years, accumulating extensive experience in logistics,
procurement, management, personnel and administration. He
was a representative to the Association of International Chemical
Manufacturers to promote safety distribution of hazardous
chemicals. Mr. Li does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies.
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Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Independent Non-executive Directors
(Continued)

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun, aged 63, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Ku graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and began his career at Shell
Chemicals. Mr. Ku has extensive managerial experience in the
oil & petrochemical industries in the Greater China region. He
was a Director of Shell Hong Kong Limited, a Board Director of
the Business Environment Council and the Chairman of Tianjin
International Petroleum Storage and Transportation Company
Limited. Mr. Ku does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies.

Mr. Ng Siu Ping, aged 56, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company since 1992.
Mr. Ng retired on 1 July 2011 and was thereafter re-designated as
a non-executive director of the Company. He was re-designated
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 1
January 2014. Mr. Ng obtained a Higher Diploma in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and a Master Degree of Science in
Corporate Governance and Directorship from the Hong Kong
Baptist University. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience in the field of auditing
and accounting. Mr. Ng does not hold any directorship in other
listed companies.



60 EX{LCIEBARAT

EERTHRAEHN

T -FEFR

Directors’ and Management Executives’ Profiles

3 S
Mr. Ip Kwan

THAER

BHELE  BRF=+5 RZETLHF
MARERMAEBEEPHBETA T ——
F—-A—BAAEENBRREEEATH
BORFE)BRARZBEIRE - EhAS
AR —E——F—A—HERZZFT—HF—
A—BEZEASERTZESZERE
FIERRERZBE - HAEEEFEHRIE
PITESEERAELEZ T - BEHEERBUE
EBRAE RBURE T BA - EIAER
AT REEBARERITITE=F -

BRXKE BFA+—m RZE—F
FMAREE - BEERBEBERAS
BREE - RN -_ZE——F—-A—HEE
EREENTEEEERE - FRARAK
BRBEESETBUNERABREST
BERRLTEMN - tRKEFTERIK
BMNEEASMBERIBEREEIEEX
B BEERBRZHOANEREEL
B BRIRAEREERE BRER ASTER
MEBBEE - b BHERK - Am{ETM
BEEZETENBERERARELIE -
MAREER - BEERBE-—RLTA
AINEBANERMAE -

BRIKE
Mr. Fung Ping Kwong

Management Executives

Mr. Ip Kwan, aged 32, joined the Group as an assistant to
director of the Group in 2007 and has been the general manager
of Hong Kong Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing (Greater China)
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, since 1 January
2011. Mr. Ip was appointed as a member of the Group Executive
Committee and the president of the Bauhinia Coatings Group on
1 January 2012 and 1 January 2015 respectively. He is the son of
Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the chairman of the Group and a non-executive
director of the Company. He graduated from the London School
of Economics with a Bachelor’'s degree in Government and
Economics. Before joining the Group, he had worked in the
investment bank industry for three years.

Mr. Fung Ping Kwong, aged 51, joined the Group in 2010.
Mr. Fung is the head and senior leader of Group Human
Resources. He was appointed as a member of the Group Executive
Committee on 1 January 2012. He obtained a Bachelor's Degree
in Science (Economics) from The University of London, a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from The University of Warwick
and a Diploma in Training Management jointly conferred by
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and The Institute of
Personnel and Development, United Kingdom. Mr. Fung has
extensive experience in different human resources areas including
organisational development, management development, talent
management and employee relations. He worked in a number
of multi-national companies from insurance, petrochemical and
pharmaceutical industries. Before he joined the Group, he was the
Group HR Director of a Hong Kong listed company.
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Mr. Wong Yuk, Nat

Management Executives (continued)

Mr. Feng Shun Quan, aged 43, joined the Group in 2000,
and was appointed as the general manager of the Yip's Ink
& Chemicals (Group) Limited on 1 July 2011. Mr. Feng was
appointed as a member of the Group Executive Committee on 1
January 2014. Mr. Feng obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
Administration from Zhong Shan University of Guangzhou.
Mr. Feng has nearly 20 years of experience in the fields of
marketing and management of ink industry.

Mr. Wong Yuk, Nat, aged 52, joined the Group as the Deputy
Chief Executive Officer in 2015 and was appointed as a member
of the Group Executive Committee on 8 April 2015. Mr. Wong
obtained a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering from
The University of Hong Kong and completed a Master in Business
Administration with The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1992. Before he joined the Group, he was the Managing Director
— China Strategy and Investment of Methanex, a global market
leader in methanol. He had also worked with Shell for over 26
years and was its General Manager — Shell Specialities China/
Hong Kong and China Local Senior Downstream Representative.
Mr. Wong has nearly 30 years of extensive experience in the
petrochemical industry.

Mr. Leung Wing Ching, Isaac, aged 47, joined the Group in
1996 and is the financial controller of the Group. Mr. Leung is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy
from The City University of Hong Kong and has over 20 years of
experience in the field of auditing, finance and management.

Mr. Zhao Chu Bang, aged 53, is an experienced engineer.
Mr. Zhao joined the Group in 1993 and has been the managing
director of the Jiangmen Handsome Chemical Development
Limited since 2005. He graduated from The South China University
of Technology. Mr. Zhao has over 30 years of experience in the
chemical industry and has extensive experience in management.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading
in solvents, coatings and lubricants. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 94 and note 11 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. An interim dividend of HK10 cents per share was paid
to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) during
the year. The Directors propose the distribution of a final dividend
of HK15 cents per share totalling not less than HK$84,413,000 to
Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members at
the close of business on 12 June 2015 and the retention of the
remaining profit in reserves.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 97 of the consolidated financial statements.
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Reserves (Continued)

The Company's reserves available for distribution of the final
dividend represent the share premium, special reserve and
retained profits. Under Chapter 22 of the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is available
for distribution of or paying dividends to Shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividend,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
share premium and retained profits of the Company, which
amounted to HK$634,576,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$656,364,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Properties

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in notes 13 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2014 are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors and Service Contracts

The Directors during the year and as at the date of this report
were:
Chairman, Non-executive Director:

Mr. Ip Chi Shing

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, Deputy Chairman
Mr. Wong Kam Yim
Mr. Ho Sai Hou
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu
(appointed as an executive Director on 1 January 2014)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Tong Wui Tung
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie
(passed away on 16 March 2014)

Mr. Li Chak Man

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun

Mr. Ng Siu Ping
(re-designated as an independent non-executive Director
on 1 January 2014)

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ip Chi Shing and Mr. Tong Wui Tung, being non-
executive Directors and Mr. Wong Kam Yim and Mr. Ho Sai Hou,
being executive Directors, will retire by rotation at the annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM") and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the AGM. All
remaining Directors will continue in office. The non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term until the closing of the next annual general meeting at which
each of them is being re-elected by the Shareholders.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The fees of the non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors are determined by the Board.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors and their
respective associates in the shares of the Company (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have taken under such provision of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded
in the register to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO;
or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:

sy Long positions
LERRGEA
Number of Ordinary Shares

R=B-mE
T=A
=+-AH
AT
BRTRA
ZBRK
Percentage
of the issued
Share Capital
of the
AR RiEER DR Company
Personal Family Corporate fy as at
BEpg Name of Directors Interests Interests Interests Total  31.12.2014
EEmAE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 149,342,532 8,802,000(a) 24,380,000 (b) 182,524,532 32.43%
Erera Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 34,240,248 20,000,000 (c) - 54,240,248 9.64%
HRERE Mr. Wong Kam Yim 1,008,000 - - 1,008,000 0.18%
It REE Mr. Ho Sai Hou - - - - -
BEREE Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu ! - - - - -
EEREE Mr. Tong Wui Tung - 700,000 (d) - 700,000 0.12%
BEERA Mr. Wong Kong Chi - 100,000 (¢) - 100,000 0.02%
BGEALE? Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie 2 - - - - -
TEREE Mr. Li Chak Man - 150,000 (f) - 150,000 0.03%
HEAEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 20,680 14,000 (g) - 34,680 0.01%
RATRE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 2,532,000 50,000 (h) - 2,582,000 0.46%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(d)

(e)

®

Out of these shares, 6,796,000 shares are jointly held with Madam
Liang Bih Yu, the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing and 2,006,000 shares are
held by his wife.

These shares are held respectively by Ip Chi Shing Charitable
Foundation Limited, a charitable organisation (20,300,000 shares)
and Yip's Care Extension Foundation Limited, a limited company,
(4,080,000 shares). Mr. Ip Chi Shing controls 50% (together with his
wife control 100%) and 60% (together with his younger sister and
brother control 100%) of the voting power at the general meetings
of Ip Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited and Yip's Care
Extension Foundation Limited respectively. He is therefore deemed to
be interested in these shares held by these two corporations.

These shares are held by Madam Yip Tso Ka Lai, Brenda, the wife of
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin.

These shares are held by Madam Lau Mui Sum, the wife of Mr. Tong
Wui Tung.

These shares are held by Madam Jim Siu Wai, the wife of Mr. Wong
Kong Chi.

These shares are jointly held with Madam Cheng Yee Ha, the wife of
Mr. Li Chak Man.

These shares are held by Madam So Yim Ha, the wife of Mr. Ku Yuen
Fun.

These shares are held by Madam Siu Oi Li, Maicy, the wife of Mr. Ng
Siu Ping.

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu was appointed as an executive Director on 1
January 2014.

Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie passed away on 16 March 2014.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Securities (continued)

Details of the share options held by the Directors under the
Company’s existing share option scheme are shown in the next
section headed “Share Options”.

Each of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Madam Liang Bih
Yu, the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, holds one non-voting deferred
share of Yip's H.C. (Holding) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in
subsidiaries held by Directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors,
chief executive nor their associates held any interests or short
positions in the securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO.

Share Options

The Shareholders at the AGM held on 25 May 2012 approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the old share option scheme
(the "Old Share Option Scheme”, together with the “New Share
Option Scheme”, collectively known as “Share Option Schemes”)
which was adopted by the Company on 3 September 2002.
The New Share Option Scheme will expire on 24 May 2022.
Options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme prior to its
termination will continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the rules thereof. The main purpose of the New Share Option
Scheme is to recognise and motivate the contribution of eligible
participants, to provide incentives to them, to help the Company
retain eligible participants and recruit additional employees and to
provide them with a direct economic interest in attaining the long
term business objectives of the Company. Particulars of the New
Share Option Scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Share Options (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, movements in the number
of options which had been granted to certain Directors and employees

B E 2 #8mT under the Company'’s Share Option Schemes are as follows:
BREYE
Number of Share Options
R-B-m% £RE R=E-mF
-A-H KM/ TZR=+-H
HRTE EREHR i HRTE
Outstanding Exercised Lapsed/ Outstanding
REAE k& as at during Cancelled as at
Date of grant Exercise price 1.1.2014 the year  during the year 31.12.2014
BT
HKS
B2
Directors
gy ZEIRFRATEA
Mr. Wong Kam Yim 17 May 2004 1.590 300,000 (300,000) - -
ZEERETAZTOA
24 October 2005 2.004 200,000 - - 200,000
“EREEMAZH
3 April 2007 4.050 200,000 - - 200,000
ZEINETA=T-H
31 October 2008 1.950 100,000 - - 100,000
ZEENETARA
5 October 2009 4536 200,000 - - 200,000
“E-ZE-Af-H
11 January 2013 5.942 200,000 - - 200,000
& %4 ZE-Z5-A+-H
Mr. Ho Sai Hou 11 January 2013 5.942 200,000 - - 200,000
BEREE “E-=5-At-H
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu" 11 January 2013 5.942 200,000 - - 200,000
1,600,000 (300,000) - 1,300,000
BT “EEMERATEA
Employees 17 May 2004 1.590 100,000 (100,000) - -
ZERRETAZTEA
24 Qctober 2005 2.004 376,000 - - 376,000
“ERHEMAZH
3 April 2007 4.050 478,000 - - 478,000
ZZENETA=T-H
31 October 2008 1.950 440,000 - - 440,000
ZZEAETATA
5 October 2009 4536 1,280,000 (74,000) (20,000) 1,186,000
“2-=f¥-A1-H
11 January 2013 5.942 6,830,000 - (350,000) 6,480,000
9,504,000 (174,000) (370,000) 8,960,000
11,104,000 (474,000) (370,000) 10,260,000
Bt Note:
1 BEBLEEN-_TE—NF—F—H# 1 Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu was appointed as an executive Director on 1

ZERWITESE - January 2014.
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Share Options (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no option was granted
to Directors or employees. In respect of the options exercised
during the year, weighted average closing price of the shares of
the Company immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised was HK$5.529.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2014, the register of substantial Shareholders
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company
disclosed above) maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows
that, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors, the following Shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO:
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Substantial Shareholders (continued)

Ha Long positions
R=Z- ﬂE
+=A=
{EZM‘EE
BITREAZEDT
Percentage of
the issued
FERAEE share capital
TERRER % Number of of the Company
Name of substantial Shareholder Capacity shares held as at 31.12.2014
EE L ERBEA 47,592,000 8.46%
Ms. Ip Fung Kuen Beneficial Owner
FMR LLC REEE (M) 33,654,105 5.98%
Investment Manager (Note)
P - Note:
BIEEEFLEEED - —mE+=-/= Under the SFO, as at 31 December 2014, FMR LLC was deemed to be

+—H " FMR LLC%&%EZ%%E%BB,GMJOSHXZK
AR 2 % - TE P Fidelity Management
& Research Company##32,254,105/% * Fidelity
Management Trust Company, Pyramis Global
Advisors LLCRII#75 1,400,0004% -

BN BERGE(EFBRIERITES) R
B E (e i%)fﬂ-ﬂﬁz’i A
KRR D 2 = ROR B W ERBFES &
Hﬁff‘ﬂW%XV*W’\M_ = EmA AT
HEERLL—HFIEER&Ea1THAR
MBS 2w ROKE INER)

B EXFTIEN  R_T—NE+ /A=
+fE'%Turfﬁﬂ§$&%%ﬁﬁ

ABRBHEZERRARIERE R
Oh - BEEATBRAAR IR HEEAQR
%@#m%&&&@%mﬁ B5 R EAE K
BlEE 336155

interested in 33,654,105 shares of the Company, of which 32,254,105
shares were held by Fidelity Management & Research Company and
1,400,000 shares were held by Fidelity Management Trust Company,
Pyramis Global Advisors LLC.

In addition, Mr. Ip Chi Shing (the chairman and the non-executive
Director) and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (the executive Director) had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO (as
disclosed above in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Securities”).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person,
other than the interests disclosed above in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities”,
had notified the Company of an interest or short position in the
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group's total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

As at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors, their associates
or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Corporate Governance

Report on the Company’s corporate governance is set out in
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 73 to 91.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout the year
ended 31 December 2014 and at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s total
issued shares capital as required under the Listing Rules.

Donations

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group made
charitable and other donations amounting to HK$3,574,000.
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Connected Transactions and Directors’
Interests in Contracts

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group paid rent
of HK$960,000 and HK$600,000 to Goldex Investments Limited
and Galsheer Investments Limited respectively in which Mr. Ip
Chi Shing (the controlling shareholder of the Company and
the Director) and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (the Director), have beneficial
interests respectively.

Other than disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director and a controlling shareholder of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
IP CHI SHING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 17 March 2015
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Statement of Compliance

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance so as to achieve the Group’s objectives of
maximising values for its employees, customers, suppliers, business
partners and shareholders, and safeguarding the interests of
them. The Company has complied with “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2014
except that the Company does not have a nomination committee
on the grounds as stated below (CG Code provisions A5.1 to A5.4)

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiries, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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The Board

The Board’s principal duties are setting policies, monitoring
the execution of such policies, and providing supervision and
assistance to the overall management of the Group.

Composition of the Board

As of at the date of this annual report, the Board is chaired by
Mr. Ip Chi Shing and comprised a total of ten Directors, namely,
four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and four
independent non-executive Directors. The number of independent
non-executive Directors represents more than one-third of the
Board as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. All non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a specific term until the closing of the next annual
general meeting at which each of them is being re-elected by the
shareholders of the Company (the "Shareholders"). The list of
Directors with their roles and functions is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu was appointed as an executive Director
and Mr. Ng Siu Ping was re-designated as an independent non-
executive Director on 1 January 2014. The Board considers Mr. Ng
is independent because he does not have any relationship with any
other directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company and and no longer involves in the
daily operation, management and business of the Company.During
the year ended 2014, Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie was also
an independent non-executive Director of the Company before he
passed away on 16 March 2014.

Biographic details of the Directors are set out in the section of
Directors’ and Management Executives’ Profiles on pages 56 to
61. Mr. Ip Chi Shing is the brother of Mr. Yip Tsz Hin. Save as
disclosed above, the Directors are not otherwise related to each
other.

The Company has received annual confirmations from all
four independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
still considers the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent. In particular, although Mr. Ng Siu Ping was a non-
executive Director immediately prior to his re-designation as an
independent non-executive Director, the Board still considers that
Mr. Ng is independent because he had resigned all executive post
and ceased to perform any executive function when he became
the non-executive Director on 1 July 2011, and since then his roles
and responsibilities were the same as those of an independent
non-executive Director.

Two of the existing independent non-executive Directors possess
the appropriate professional accounting qualifications and related
financial management experience.
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The Board (Continued)
Composition of the Board (Continued)

The Board regularly reviews its composition and membership to
ensure that it has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group's
business and discharge its responsibilities effectively. Currently, the
Board is responsible for the nomination and appointment of new
directors. The Company considers it is more beneficial and efficient
for the full Board to perform the functions of the nomination
committee.

The Board adopted the Group’s Communication Policy together
with Inside Information Policy and established an inside information
control team. Also, the Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Policy is summarised as follows:

o The selection of candidates of the Board will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

e  The Board will report on the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Policy.

e The Board will review the Policy on appropriates times so as
to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted procedures for the Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expenses. Mr. Kwong, a newly appointed executive
Director is offered a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
upon his appointment.

Directors and officers liability and company reimbursement
insurance coverage has also been arranged.
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The Board (Continued)
Operation of the Board

P

TEEee Directors meeting were held by the Board. The attendance of each
Director at these Board meetings is shown in the table below:

During the year ended 31 December 2014, six regular Board
meetings, eight other Board meetings and one Non-executive

T
BITESE: Executive Directors:
EXSEHERLER EREgHMSRUER
Regular Board Other Board
Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
e tad Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 6/6 7/8
HmRIBTAE Mr. Wong Kam Yim 6/6 0/8
(CIRER= S Mr. Ho Sai Hou 6/6 8/8
BB FR ST A Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu’ 6/6 0/8
FHITES : Non-executive Directors:
ETSEHERLERE E=SHMSBRUER
Regular Board Other Board
Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
BEEREEER) Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman) 6/6 1/8
EERR £ Mr. Tong Wui Tung 5/6 1/8
BAUFHTES : Independent Non-executive Directors:
ESSEReRtER EEgHMERUER
Regular Board Other Board
Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
EERLE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 6/6 1/8
IR 55 B B 5 A2 Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie? 1/6 0/8
FERLE Mr. Li Chak Man 6/6 1/8
HERAEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 6/6 1/8
REATF A Mr. Ng Siu Ping? 6/6 1/8
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The Board (Continued)
Operation of the Board (Continued)

Remarks:

1. Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu was appointed as an executive Director on 1
January 2014.

2. Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie passed away on 16 March 2014.

3. Mr. Ng Siu Ping was re-designated as an independent non-executive
Director on 1 January 2014.

* Six regular Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2014, which involve the active participation, either in
person or through electronic means of communications, by all the
attending Directors. Besides these regular Board meetings, eight
other Board meetings were convened during 2014 to approve routine
business or discuss any matters that required the Board's timely
attention.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Chairman of
the Board held a meeting with all non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the role of the
company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
Ms. So Sze Wan, Lisa, included, amongst others, ensuring that
the Directors had access to all necessary information and that all
Board procedures were followed. She was also responsible for
offering opportunities of continuing professional development
to all Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to help ensure that their contribution to the Board remained
informed and relevant. Directors were also provided with monthly
updates on the Company's performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. The Company Secretary, Ms. So, was a full time employee
of the Company. She confirmed that she fulfilled the requirement
of taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year under review. Ms. So resigned as the Company
Secretary on 1 March 2015 and Mr. Ho Sai Hou was appointed as
the Company Secretary on the even day.
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The Board (Continued)
Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The Company, from time to time, provides in-house trainings for
the Directors in the form of seminars, workshops and reading
materials on the latest development of applicable laws, rules and
regulations, management, financial and business issues to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.

In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in various
professional development seminars and courses. A summary of
training received by Directors during the year ended 31 December
2014 according to the records provided by the Directors is as
follows:

AR
Bx: Directors: Type of trainings
BER/ S
8RR
matE
Seminars ETE B M R
and/or HER r@Les
REEH  conferences Corporate Reading
In-house and/or events or  and on-line
training forums visits studying
EEMTE(ER) Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman) v v v
Erergst Mr. Yip Tsz Hin v v v
Ekachits Mr. Wong Kam Yim v/ v v
AESEE Mr. Ho Sai Hou v v/ v v
FBEU AR S A Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu’ v v v
EERTAE Mr. Tong Wui Tung v v v v
BEELAE Mr. Wong Kong Chi v v v v
R 5 B HB 5 A2 Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie? v/ v v
FTEREE Mr. Li Chak Man v/ v v
HESEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun v v v
REBF R Mr. Ng Siu Ping? v/ v v v
ek - Remarks:
1. BEBEER-_Z—NF—A—BEZ 1. Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu was appointed as an executive Director on 1

IRITES -

2. BBEARER-T-—MEZATAH
Bt -

3. RAFEER-_T—NF—A—HAE
R IFHITES -

January 2014.

2. Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie passed away on 16 March 2014.

3. Mr. Ng Siu Ping was re-designated as an independent non-executive
Director on 1 January 2014.
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The Board (Continued)
Delegation by the Board

The Board, as the highest governing board, is collectively
responsible for leading, planning and controlling the businesses
of the Group, and also for performing the corporate governance
duties and functions as more specifically set out in the list
of matters reserved for the Board. The Board is chaired by
Mr. Ip Chi Shing. The position of the Chairman of the Board
is held by Mr. Ip Ching Shing while the position of the chief
executive officer is held by Mr. Wong Kam Yim. As disclosed in
the section below, the Company established the Group Executive
Committee and the chairman of which is Mr. Yip Tsz Hin. The
above structure is to ensure a clear distinction between the
Chairman’s duty to manage the Board and the management’s
duty to oversee the overall internal operation of the Group.

Group Executive Committee (“GEC") is chaired by
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, the deputy chairman of the Board. The Board
has delegated to GEC with board management responsibilities
including, but not limited to, formulating and implementing
policies and business strategies, as well as supervising the
performance of the Group’s different business segments. GEC
currently comprises a total of eight members, four of which are
executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin,
Mr. Wong Kam Yim, Mr. Ho Sai Hou and Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu.

A formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board is maintained
and is subject to regular review. The more important matters
include:

o setting of long term objectives and strategies

° approving preliminary results announcements

o approving annual budgets

o approving major capital expenditure, acquisitions and
disposals

o establishing risk management policies

o approving connected transactions

o declaring and recommending the payment of dividends

° appointing new directors

o establishing Board committees

e reviewing and monitoring of internal control and risk
management

e reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices on
corporate governance

o approving major policies and guidelines
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The Board (Continued)

GEC

GEC members

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Kam Yim

Mr. Ho Sai Hou

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu (appointed on 1 January 2014)

Mr. Ip Kwan
Mr. Fung Ping Kwong
Mr. Feng Shun Quan (appointed on 1 January 2014)

Mr. Wong Yuk, Nat (appointed on 8 April 2015)

Duties and responsibilities

The GEC operates under a clearly defined set of terms of
reference and normally meets on a monthly basis.

Other than the matters reserved for the Board, GEC has the
power to manage all the business operations of the Group,
the major items being: assisting the Board in setting policy
and strategy, implementing the policy and strategic plan
set by the Board, stimulating and controlling the business
of the sub-groups, monitoring and supervising the Group
support functions or corporate services and co-ordinating the
operations of the sub-groups in order to achieve best returns
for the Group.

The Board currently has three committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Health, Safety
and Environment Committee. All the Board committees are

empowered by the Board under their own terms of reference.
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The Remuneration Committee and
Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Remuneration Committee was formed in June 2005.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee consisted of two non-executive Directors and four
(five before Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie, the former chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, passed away on 16 March
2014) independent non-executive Directors. On 24 June 2014,
Mr. Ng Siu Ping was appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Ip Chi Shing resigned as a member
of the Remuneration Committee on 1 January 2015. Major roles
and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

o establishing a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy

o making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management

o determining the remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
available on the Company’s website, HKEx's website and from the
Company Secretary upon request.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings and the attendance of each
member at these meetings is shown in the table below:

RE
HER Members Attendance
RIAFEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 2/2
B 5 B B A Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie 12
BERESE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 2/2
EEREE Mr. Tong Wui Tung 12
BEESLE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 2/2
FERSE Mr. Li Chak Man 2/2
HERF L Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 2/2
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The Remuneration Committee and
Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management (continued)

In these meetings, the Remuneration Committee:

e reviewed the reward schemes for the GEC and the
management of the subsidiaries

o reviewed the principles and policies of the remuneration
structure of the Group’s executive Directors and senior
management with reference to an external consulting
report, and submitted recommendations to GEC for further
discussion

o approved the remuneration packages of the Group's
executive Directors and senior management effective from 1
January 2015 after considering market remuneration levels of
comparable companies in the market

Directors’ emoluments consisted of payments to Directors in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The fees paid to each Director and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed in November 1998. During the
year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee comprised
two non-executive Directors and four (five before Mr. Au-Yeung
Tsan Pong, Davie passed away on 16 March 2014) independent
non-executive Directors and was chaired by Mr. Wong Kong Chi.
Mr. Ip Chi Shing resigned as a member of the Audit Committee
on 1 January 2015. Major duties of the Audit Committee include:

e reviewing financial information of the Group

o overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and
internal control procedures

o monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its
external auditor

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on
the Company’s website, HKEx's website and from the Company
Secretary upon request.
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%V%E%(@) The Audit Committee (Continued)
ERZEEREBE_T—NF+=A=+ The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended
*EJLEE%TTT@/X?% F BRKERAE 31 December 2014 and the attendance of each member at these
Mom s LB AEHI T meetings is shown in the table below:
=]

HER Members Attendance
HEELSE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 4/4
EEREE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 4/4
EERRE Mr. Tong Wui Tung 4/4
BLS B A A Mr. Au-Yeung Tsan Pong, Davie 1/4
FERLAE Mr. Li Chak Man 4/4
HIRFAE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 474

RIBTFFHE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 4/4
rmEesd  BREEg: In these meetings, the Audit Committee:

s ERFEE-_Z-=FFER_-ZT
—OFEPHEERREEGHIER
HHETERRN EETEHNBE
T ERZEEHRINAEERE
HEFEEZERRBE UALH
B RERERETRRZIIER
B M TEEMRE

o EHANESEHzMmE  HAME
SRR ERERERETIR - B
MEPEET B EIRE D B 5 R it E

WERERT AT &

s RERAZESIREFENEENA

EREEIR R

o ERE[E 7 SNIE AR BIED L iR AT B
T RERFE LM Z BR
PRGBS MEETTRE - A RimET E
PRt 2 IFRBUR TS #E

o IEREEZINERHBEIHBE

BERZESER _T—RF=A1= EIZ
ERZBeeR LRHAKEHE_T
ME+ - A=1t—BILFENEERES
BATEERE o

o reviewed the 2013 annual and 2014 interim results before
submitting to the Board for approval and in doing so, the
committee focused on material deviations of the Group’s
performance from past year's results, major areas of
judgment, selection and application of accounting policies
and compliance with regulatory requirements

e received reports from the internal audit department,
discussed material findings with the head of internal audit,
reviewed the adequacy of resources of the internal audit
department and approved the internal audit plan

o reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
system in accordance with established guidelines and
procedures

o discussed the audit plan with the Group’s external auditor
and assessed its independence with reference to its policies
for maintaining independence and reviewed the extent of
non-audit services provided

e approved the audit fees paid to the Group's external auditor

An Audit Committee meeting was held on 12 March 2015 to
review the Group's audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Health, Safety and Environment
Committee

The Health, Safety and Environment (“HSE”) Committee was
established on 1 January 2012 in order to enhance the importance
of the health, safety and environmental protection works to
the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2014, this HSE
Committee comprised two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors members, who were Mr. Ip
Chi Shing, Mr. Wong Kwong Chi, Mr. Ku Yuen Fun, Mr. Ng Siu
Ping and Mr. Li Chak Man and was chaired by Mr. Ku Yuen Fun.
Mr. Ip Chi Shing resigned as a member of the HSE Committee on
1 January 2015. Major duties of the HSE Committee include:

e the adoption and renewal of the Group’s health, safety and
environment policies

e the determining of the Group's appetite for health, safety
and environment risk

o managing the Group’s monitoring environment for health,
safety and environment matters, including organization
structure, reward and punishment systems, resource inputs,
operation culture, etc.

The terms of reference of the HSE Committee is available on
the Company’s website and from the Company Secretary upon

request.

ZEERBE_ZT—NF+_A=+—H During the year ended 31 December 2014, the HSE Committee
WEFERTTRREE  SKERBHES held four meetings and the attendance of each member at these
HEZEEREHETOT meetings is shown in the table below:

K&
HE = Members Attendance
HERAEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 4/4
BEEKEE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 1/4
mEELE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 3/4
TERGTAE Mr. Li Chak Man 4/4
REBTFHE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 4/4

.« BURERSBREE

« BHREERFERERBERG
FARE

« ERRERERREENEHLL
FHERR2UE

In these meetings, the HSE Committee:

o reviewed the HSE policies

o reviewed the monthly reports drafted by the Group’s HSE
Department

o supervised the implementation of HSE policies as well as
attended safety inspection of an operating site
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Accountability and Audit

Directors’ and Auditor’s responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Group and their announcements
to Shareholders and commit to the presentation of a balanced,
clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects. The Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Auditor’s reporting responsibilities are stated in the Auditor’s
Report on pages 92 to 93.

Internal Control

The responsibilities of designing and implementing an appropriate
system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and
efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations rest with the management as directed by the Board.

The internal audit department was set up in 1997 to monitor
independently the implementation of the internal control
procedures, compliance with group policies and to make
recommendations on the effectiveness of the internal control
system. The head of internal audit reports to the GEC and to the
Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has
reviewed the internal control policy and also conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group
following the guidance note on the Group’s Internal Control
System
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Auditor’'s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the fee paid/payable to
the Group's external auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is
set out as follows:

b/ EREME

FRiRfit = FR 7S Services rendered Fee paid/payable

FHET

HK$'000

BIZRS Audit services 4,360
FEEIZIRTE Non-audit services

FEH P EmE Interim review 740

ELP YN Audit of provident fund 20

B REm
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the
same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The
rights of the Shareholders are set out in, amongst other things,
the restated articles of association of the Company (the “restated
Articles”) and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders
to convene a General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 68 of the restated Articles, a general meeting
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
Shareholders deposited at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company which carries the rights of voting at the general
meeting.

A general meeting may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one Shareholder which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at the
general meeting of the Company.
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Rights and Procedures for Shareholders
to convene a General Meeting (continued)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 28 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 116 of the restated Articles, no person other
than a retiring Director shall, unless recommended by the Board,
be eligible for election to the officer of Director at any general
meeting unless, during the period, which shall be at least 7 days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing by a
member of the Company (not being the person to be proposed),
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given, of his intention to propose such person for election and
also notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected.

Right to put enquiries to the Board and
Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meeting

Shareholders may send their written enquiries to the Board and
proposals to be put forward at shareholders’ meeting by post
(Company’s head office and principal place of business: Yip's
Chemical Building, 13 Yip Cheong Street, On Lok Tsuen, Fanling,
New Territories, Hong Kong) or via e-mail through the Company’s
website (please refer to “Contact Us” at www.yipschemical.com.
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Shareholders’ Meetings

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meeting to

communicate with Shareholders directly.

The 2014 annual general meeting (“"AGM") was held on 24 June
2014. The attendance of each Director at this meeting is shown in
the table below:

BITES: Executive Directors:
AGM Attendance
BERRAEHER
EFELAE Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 1/1
mRMELE Mr. Wong Kam Yim 1/1
fAtEsEE Mr. Ho Sai Hou 1/1
BB PR 4 A Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu'’ 11
FHITES Non-executive Directors:
AGM Attendance
BAERRASHER
BREREE(ERE) Mr. Ip Chi Shing 11
EEMSTE Mr. Tong Wui Tung 1/1
BUFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors:
AGM Attendance
BAFRRAGHESR
EHEERLE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 11
FEREL Mr. Li Chak Man 171
mRFEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 1/1
REAT Fe A2 Mr. Ng Siu Ping? 11
B3 Remarks:
1. BEREER-ZT-—NF—A—HEZ 1. Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu was appointed as an executive Director on 1
ERNITES - January 2014,
2. RBVFEER-Z—NF—A—BHT 2. Mr. Ng Siu Ping was re-designated as an independent non-executive

RBIIFRITES -

Director on 1 January 2014.
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Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there is no change in
the Company’s constitutional documents. The latest version of the
Restated Articles of the Company is available on the Company’s
website, Stock Exchange’s website and from the Company
Secretary upon request.

Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders

The Group strives to maintain a high level of corporate governance
in every facet of its business; provide investors and Shareholders
with accurate, transparent and timely information; and seek good
two-way communication with stakeholders.

The Group fully understands the importance of maintaining
timely communication with investors and Shareholders. For this,
the Group's Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department regularly holds meetings with investors and
Shareholders so as to build a good long-term relationship through
continuing dialogues. Immediately after the announcement of
interim and annual results every year, the Group will hold an
investor briefing. A webcast will also be hosted subsequently so
that investors and Shareholders from Hong Kong, the mainland
or the overseas will be able to learn timely of the Group's
operating performance and major development. After the results
announcements the Group will also take the initiative to arrange
meetings or teleconferences with investors and Shareholders where
the management will answer their questions to ensure that they
have a thorough understanding of the results and development.
In the annual general meeting of Shareholders every year, the
Group is able to maintain good interactive communication with
Shareholders through direct and open dialogues.

In 2014, Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department arranged around 40 face-to-face meetings or
teleconferences with Shareholders, institutional investors, fund
managers and analysts from Hong Kong, the mainland and the
overseas; the department met around 80 investors from Hong
Kong, the mainland and the overseas in the year. The department
also organized visits of the Group’s plants for investors and
shareholders on a regular basis so that they can understand the
production process of each of the business and gain a better
grasp of its operational situation.
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In addition to meeting with institutional investors, the Group also
values its communication with retail investors. Therefore media
conferences in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Beijing were held in the
year to update media the Group’s latest development and to raise
the Group's profile at the retail investor level. To ensure the timely
and fair announcement of important information about the Group,
the Group is extensively using its corporate website for uploading
interim and annual financial statements, announcements, press
releases and presentation materials. Investors and Shareholders
can thus quickly and easily browse or download the information
they need so that they can keep abreast of the latest development
of the Group.

The Group has received widespread recognition from the
investment community for its excellent investor relations work.
It was honoured by Asiamoney, a renowned international
financial magazine, the “Best for Disclosure and Transparency
in Hong Kong” and the “Best Investor Relations in Hong Kong”
in Asiamoney Corporate Governance Poll 2014. The Group was
also awarded “Gold Award for Investor Relations” in The Asset
Corporate Awards 2014.

The Group shall continue to abide by a principle of timeliness,
fairness and openness in maintaining two-way communication
with investors and Shareholders through effective channels so as
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance and a high
degree of corporate transparency.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yip's
Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 94
to 204, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility (continved)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors of the Company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HEZZ—WFE+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014
— ik —E=F
2014 2013
=S THET FHTT
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000
—F 3] Turnover 5 10,255,839 9,876,033
SHE A Cost of sales (8.747,525) (8,368,879)
EF Gross profit 1,508,314 1,507,154
H A Other income 139,052 141,986
H At U o5 & 518 Other gains and losses 7 (1,667) (20,327)
HERKHEEB R Selling and distribution expenses (404,268) (396,611)
—MRRITEEA General and administrative expenses (808,625) (789,536)
T2 & A Interest expense 8 (61,558) (51,209)
B3 B A Profit before taxation 371,248 391,457
Fi1E Taxation 10 (100,280) (79,736)
REHLF Profit for the year 270,968 311,721
Hb 2w () e : Other comprehensive (expense) income:
HigresihoiEE Item that will not be reclassified
BEERIEE ¢ subsequently to profit or loss:
ETEE2RE Exchange differences arising on
MEEZELZ5 translation to presentation currency (117,124) 125,910
(117,124) 125,910
HA —Jﬁ‘é EH Items that maybe reclassified
DIERIBRMIER ¢ subsequently to profit or loss:
e MR AR Net adjustments on cash flow hedges 178 11,514
E & i E & Exchange differences arising
2 [EH Z5E on translation (6,205) _
(6,027) 11,514
ANEHMPE (L H)UEE  Other comprehensive (expense)
income for the year (123,151) 137,424
NE2ER LT Total comprehensive income for the year 147,817 449,145
REMFIEIEDER Profit for the year attributable to:
VINNGT 351 Owners of the Company 223,182 250,622
IR Non-controlling interests 47,786 61,099
270,968 311,721
RNEZEUWZEEEDEE © Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
PN/NE )33 Owners of the Company 113,809 374,448
FEIE IR A Non-controlling interests 34,008 74,697
147,817 449,145
BRREF Earnings per share 12
—EAR — Basic HK39.7 centsEfll  HK44.6 centsill
— 8 - Diluted HK39.6 centsBfll  HK44.4 cents/S{l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZF—MFE+=A=+—H At 31 December 2014

—ZT—F —F—=
2014 2013
b FExT FHIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
M - WE K& E Property, plant and equipment 13 1,650,410 1,625,958
ARt S Prepaid lease payments 14 244,139 268,359
L&Y Investment properties l5 73,800 66,300
Bl Goodwill 16 69,574 69,574
EEE Intangible assets 17 3,825 6,111
A ERE Available-for-sale investment 18 - 24,113
BEYE - BB MR&RE Deposits paid for acquisition of
N+ AR & property, plant and equipment
and land use rights 130,666 56,731
HEMIERBEE Other non-current asset 19 4,600 4,600
2,177,014 2,121,746
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 20 802,870 980,245
FE U BR 7R &% fE U = 4% Trade and bills receivables 21 3,527,009 3,317,777
H e BE X R TB 518  Other debtors and prepayments 21 401,713 323,146
a0 TS Prepaid lease payments 14 6,142 6,193
HHIRITER Short-term bank deposits 22
— =R REIEA - with original maturity
within three months 88,440 288,999
—ZR={A R &35 — with original maturity
more than three months 24,964 51,252
RITHEBRIIRE Bank balances and cash 22 1,254,283 1,028,883
6,105,421 5,996,495
Y EEERENEE Asset classified as held for sale 23 - 10,259
6,105,421 6,006,754
REBEE Current liabilities
FEERRRETER Creditors and accrued charges 24 1,693,829 1,861,610
FERIBER Taxation payable 64,641 57,600
TESRT A Derivative financial instruments 25 17,107 3,063
BE - —FREIH Borrowings — amount due
within one year 26 1,811,114 1,506,177
3,586,691 3,428,450
RBEERE Net current assets 2,518,730 2,578,304

BEERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 4,695,744 4,700,050
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZT—mF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2014

—2-nmF —F—=
2014 2013
B3 FET FHIT
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
THESmTE Derivative financial instruments 25 9,563 27,353
B8 — —F1& 55 Borrowings — amount due
after one year 26 1,272,296 1,252,171
BEFRIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 27 13,189 12,114
1,295,048 1,291,638
3,400,696 3,408,412
B F#E Capital and reserves
%N Share capital 28 56,276 56,228
B Reserves 2,894,732 2,916,814
AARRREMLER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 2,951,008 2,973,042
FEERER Non-controlling interests 449,688 435,370
3,400,696 3,408,412

FIAREF204B L HERUBREER =
T-RF=ATCRESEGIERIRE
T WHNATRERZEE

EE EE
BEEH A% EFHR4E

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 204 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17
March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
Mr. Ip Chi Shing Mr. Yip Tsz Hin
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014
SENEATRR 2 ER
Attributable to owners of the Company
BhE TR EAEE  MEER .
Ei L L B FERES
BE  BOEE  Shae  Non  HHEE EXGE EREE  Cpital  Propety RERA Non-
Share  Share  option distributable  Hedging Translation Legal redemption revaluation  Retained 23 controlling aif
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reserve  profits  Total interests  Total
TEn TR TEn T TR TEn  TEn TR TR TR TE TR THn
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
At 1 January 2013 5,186 633578 175 67715 (15571) 469930 39973 5416 38321 143589 27331% 300075 3103211
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - B0622 250622 6109 31172
Exchange differences arising o translation that
will not be redlassifed to proft or oss - - - - - 131 - - - - 12312 13598 125910
Net adjustments on cash flow hedges - - - - 1151 - - - - - 1154 - 1154
Total comprefensive income for the year - - - - 1514 1231 - - - 50622 34448 74697 449145
Sub-total 5,186 633578 1754 61115 (4057 58,24 39973 5416 38321 1686516 3107644 447D 3552416
Recognition of eqity-settled share-based payments
- - 381 - - - - - - - 381 - 381
Shares lssued at premium upon exercse of share options
30 1312 (158) = = = = = = - 1,184 - 1,184
AmESZER  bapensesincurred in connection with issue of shares - B - - - - - - - - B - B
FEREER  Share options cancelled and transfer to retained profits - - 1) - - - - - - 9 - - -
) Acquisttion of a subsidiary (note 36) - - - - - - - - - - - 9331 9331
Reserves released upon deregistration and
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - (34059) - - - 3405 - ) 2)
Transfer - - - - - - 9,016 - - (9,016) - - -
Dividends paid
- by cash ® (1319 ® o ® = ® o - (132,346 (139,660) - (139,660)
- by share alternative 12 874 - - - - - - - (886) - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholder
KERE of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - () (187
RZE-=E+-A=-H At31 December 2013 5,228 628441 538 6115 (4057) 548181 48,989 5416 38320 1578414 2973002 435370 3408412
HELH Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - W M 41786 270968
i3 Exchange differences arising on translaton thatwillnot be
reclassfied to profitor loss - - - - - (103,346) - - - - (103346)  (13778)  (117,124)
Exchange difference that may be
reclasifed to profit or loss - - - - - (6209 - - - - (6209 - (6209
Net adjustments on cash flow hedges - - - - 18 - - - - - 1 ° 17
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 178 (109551) - - - W38 113809 34008 147817
Sub-total 56,228 628,447 5382 61115 (3879) 438636 48,989 5416 38321 180159 3,086,851 469378 3,556,209
Recognition of eqity-settled share-based payments
- - 3878 - - - - - - = 3878 - 3878
Shares issued at premium upon exercise of share options
1] 919 (55) - - - - - - - m - m
Expenses incurred in connection with issue of shares - (5 - - - - - - - - (5 - (5
Share options cancelled and transfer to retained profits - - (369) - - - - - - 369 - - -
Reserves released upon deregistration of subsidaries - - - (49) - (35639) - - - 35687 - - -
= Transfer - - - - - - 8,058 - - (8059) - - -
BREAARERS Dividends paid to owners of the Company - (62) - - - - - - - (18253) (140,688) - (140,688)
BAHBATEERRERS  Diidends paid to non-controling
shareholder of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - (19690) (19,690
BE-MEFZA=1-H At3! December 2014 56,276 566,986 8836 67,666 (3879) 402998 57,047 5416 38321 1751341 2951008 449,688  3,400,69

TRDIRFEEEES O BEAREANHEA
MAREARBRERIA TSR
ZE® (VR AEFEBRL)EARE

AR R B

EEE -

AR BT R] IR 2R TE [ R B 7B AN
B R AR A B M B 2R T 2RBA

)

The non-distributable reserve represents capitalisation of retained
profits of certain subsidiaries established in Mainland China for

capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and funds shall be
used to (i) make up prior year losses or (ii) expand production
operations.

The legal reserve is non-distributable and represents the transfer
of profits of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong pursuant to the legal

requirements in the relevant place of registration.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZ—WFE+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

—E-mF ZT—=F
2014 2013
FisE TERT TAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
REEB RS Cash flows from operating activities
BRE AR A Profit before taxation 371,248 391,457
AT - Adjustments for:
BB E#H Amortisation of intangible assets 2,194 4,588
FET L S 5 Release of prepaid lease payments 6,361 5,040
PARRID T HE RERE IR Equity-settled share-based payments 3,878 3,877
V¥ BERREZTE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 129,967 115,212
BEMER BN Increase in fair value of investment properties (7,500) -
WE - BEREE Impairment loss of property,

ZREER plant and equipment 13,863 =

MRFEEEEFE Written down of inventories to

net realisable value 28,814 -
TESRMIARAREZE/  Fair value change on derivative financial

instruments (3.568) 26,359
WEEES 2 #EWE K E Gain from a bargain purchase arising on

acquisition 36 - (6,308)
HETHHERE 2z Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investment (63,487) =
MEER Interest expense 61,558 51,209
FBUWA Interest income (29,863) (16,953)
AHHEREZREBA Dividend income from

available-for-sale investment (66,252) (31,539)
HE FEEME  MENEE  Net loss on disposalsiwritten-off of property,

Rt E R EREE plant and equipment and land use rights 11,889 20,535
HERELEEEN KR Gain on disposal of asset held for sale (11,214) -
HERBARMNERE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 37 - 828
RERER Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 38,306 34,062
el B VR BREMR 2 708 Amount recovered from doubtful debts (6,543) (507)
HEVAE/ HERER Impairment loss recognised in respect of

ZREEE intangible assets/goodwill = 3,014
WEERRRIRF&# Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

ZIERERE on intra-group balances 26,874 (30,428)
RETEEESEEH Operating cash flows before movements

WASE S S in working capital 506,525 570,446
FERAGEM) Decrease (increase) in inventories 124,677 (83,377)
FEMRBR T e FE MR SR 3 Increase in trade and bills receivables (317,980) (188,334)
H M BR R % (Increase) decrease in other debtors

FERAZEOE ) and prepayments (93,255) 3,035
ERERRETER (Decrease) increase in creditors

(R m and accrued charges (119,729) 222,228

BEMELCRS Cash generated from operations 100,238 523,998
(ZH)EREBHEH Hong Kong Profits Tax (paid) refund (3) 3,720
TRPBEAREZ MEMER Enterprise Income Tax in Mainland China paid (90,546) (98,288)
REEBMEEZFES Net cash from operating activities 9,689 429,430
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—E-mF —E—=fF
2014 2013
B = FET FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
KEFEB RN Cash flows from investing activities
A B EREE WIS Dividend received from
available-for-sale investment 66,252 31,539
2 U F & Interest received 29,863 16,953
HERE L RIETF Deposits received from disposal of
BlkET € leasehold land and buildings 23 = 13,710
&S AR Disposal of subsidiaries 37 = 7,113
HEME - BEKEE Proceeds from disposal of property,
K 4 FRREPT IR plant and equipment
ZFIA and land use rights 22,200 6,114
RENZ R = & A & 28] Withdrawal of short-term bank
Z R HARITIE K deposits with original maturity
more than three months 53,452 460
HERHEERE Proceeds from disposal of
FrfS5k18 available-for-sale investment 87,372 =
HESARBIELE Proceeds from disposal of asset
Z BEFTSIE classified as held for sale 7,859 =
U BE — BB A A Acquisition of a subsidiary 36 = (4,538)
BFAZR={EA1E2H Placement of short-term bank deposits
2 FEERERATIE SR with original maturity
more than three months (27,164) (32,584)
T b FH & 38 0 Addition to prepaid lease payments - (43,101)
WEEME - R Deposits paid for acquisition of
BEX TR property, plant and equipment (130,666) (56,731)
BEYE - BERE&E Purchase of property, plant
and equipment (174,460) (171,562)
WEXBERZFRE Net cash used in investing activities (65,292) (232,627)
BMEXBCRER Cash flows from financing activities
EEBRITER Borrowings raised 3,019,376 2,090,903
BITRMD S FRIE Proceeds from issue of shares 972 1,184
BORNHER Share issue expenses (5) (3)
TR A A Dividends paid to non-controlling
FERRR AR BR AL B shareholder of subsidiary (19,690) (5,898)
SEapll=t Interest paid (61,558) (51,209)
SARE Dividends paid (140,688) (139,660)
BREE Repayment of borrowings (2,694,314) (1,742,068)
BEEBHEL ZFIH S Net cash from financing activities 104,093 153,249
e RIS EFEFEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 48,490 350,052
REPR 2 RS Cash and cash equivalents at
MR ER beginning of the year 1,317,882 947,172
EREHTELZZE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (23,649) 20,658
NERFEZIRE Cash and cash equivalents at end
MR ER of the year 1,342,723 1,317,882
BE MBS EREEHON  Analysis of balances of cash
and cash equivalents
IRITHEB MRS Bank balances and cash 1,254,283 1,028,883
R=1EAREIE 2 %2 5 Short-term bank deposits with
RITER original maturity within three months 88,440 288,999

1,342,723 1,317,882
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General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars while the functional currency of the Company
is Renminbi (“RMB"). The reason for selecting Hong Kong
dollars as its presentation currency is because the Company
is a public company with the shares listed on the Stock
Exchange, where most of its investors are located in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading
in solvents, coatings and lubricants.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

HK(IFRIC*) — INT 21 Levies

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 “Recoverable
amount disclosures for non-financial
assets”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36
“Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets”
for the first time in the current year. The amendments to
HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose the recoverable
amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had
been allocated when there has been no impairment or
reversal of impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the
amendments introduce additional disclosure requirements
applicable to when the recoverable amount of an asset
or a CGU is measured at fair value less costs of disposal.
These new disclosures include the fair value hierarchy, key
assumptions and valuation techniques used which are in
line with the disclosure required by HKFRS 13 “Fair value
measurements”.

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
standards that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)
Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Financial instruments'
Regulatory deferral accounts?
Revenue from contracts with customers?
Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations®
Disclosure initiative*
Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation®
Agriculture: Bearer plants®

Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions*
Equity method in separate
financial statements®
Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®
Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation and exception*

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle®

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle*

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle®

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

with limited exceptions. Earlier application is permitted.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities for
derecognition, and further amended in 2014 to include the
new requirements for hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in
the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 will
not affect the classification and measurement of the Group's
other financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2014.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.
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HEZZ—WFE+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
“Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation”

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that revenue is not an
appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset.
This presumption can only be rebutted in the following two
limited circumstances:

1) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

2) when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Currently, the
Group uses the straight-line method for depreciation
and amortisation for its property, plant and equipment,
and intangible assets respectively. The directors of the
Company believe that the straight-line method is the most
appropriate method to reflect the consumption of economic
benefits inherent in the respective assets and accordingly,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
38 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.



Bt 7§63 % FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2014 ANNUAL REPORT

el RRIETE BT
& ZE B ([ FB IR
FEA WEA®

ARG EAFE275 218
Al B BWE e
% |

ZIET A - EERNEB I
BT REAT S ARRANE A
- AACERBERRZRE

DN

s REFBMBMEERFNHR
[EBTA] (REBGFTER
F3RI ST A BER KT
B (HAREABTERBRE
ERFEORMERME)) - X

o RABEEFENFE28HEI RN
BERRINAEELENKRE ]
Pt Fy 2%

BETDEERIBRERIVER

HIEATIRE  BBAATBAR
ARBARARARRS  HAS
TS DY A RRRENED -

BREBEFTERFE27R BRI
HB 2R ERIFE 285 TE L HEE
71 DA R BB M IS IR RS
10 EMBHREZEEER M
BEMBHREERE 1R & RRA
BRMBHREER I TIELARER
] e

ARAEEHE - RABBRIL
RIZ279 2 RSB AR Y AEE
BAMBREEEEARE -

B EXPIEBREIN  AARIESRE
Hi - ERE IR MEERTER A
BUHAEENEERWEIONESE
EAFE-

2.

YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FEMBREME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 “Equity
method in separate financial
statements”

The amendments allow an entity to account for investments
in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate
financial statements

o At cost

o In accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”
(or HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” for entities that have not yet adopted
HKFRS 9), or

o Using the equity method as described in HKAS 28
“Investments in associates and joint ventures”.

The accounting option must be applied by category of
investments.

The amendments also clarify that when a parent ceases to
be an investment entity, or becomes an investment entity, it
shall account for the change from the date when the change
in status occurred.

In addition to the amendments to HKAS 27, there are
consequential amendments to HKAS 28 to avoid a potential
conflict with HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
and to HKFRS 1 “First-time adoption of Hong Kong financial
reporting standards”.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of these amendments to HKAS 27 will have
a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

Other than those disclosed above, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the other new
and revised standards will have no material impact on the
results and financial position of the Group.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties that are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

3 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

3 has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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HEZZ—WFE+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted (i.e. the non-controlling interests’ share of
recognised identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition)
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes”.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

GOOdWI" (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
whenever there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress
and freehold land) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purpose are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of prepaid lease payments during the construction period
is included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties include land
held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held
for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at deemed cost
(i.e. fair value at date of transfer). Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item
is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets other than goodwill below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the non-current asset is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value
less costs of disposal.

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly classified into one
of the two categories: loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and bills
receivables, other debtors, short-term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments. The Group classified equity
investment held for an identified long term strategic purpose
as available-for-sale investment.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period.
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BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

e  breach of contracts, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors that are assessed not to be impaired individually are,
in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of debtors
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit period granted, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost (i.e. available-for-sale
investment), the amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade or other debtor is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of allowance amount are recognised in
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss.
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YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FEMBREME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL of the Group are mainly derivative
financial instruments.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of an
identified financial instrument that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors and borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing
of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedging relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the
cash flow of floating-rate bank borrowings (i.e. interest rate
swap contracts).

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives
and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument attributable to the hedged risk is highly effective
in offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as other gains and losses and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit
or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised
in profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged
item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow
hedging reserve are transferred from the cash flow hedging
reserve and included in the initial measurement of the cost
of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes
the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised when the hedged
risk affects profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasi Ng (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is released over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when goods
are delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
re-translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not re-translated.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the re-translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss
on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences
arising on the re-translation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of
a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

On the disposal of an operation, its exchange differences
accumulated in equity resulting from the translation of
the functional currency into the presentation currency are
reclassified to retained profits.

127



128

ERCLIEEMARLA

ZEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FESHBEw

&)

R-ZZRFMA-BHARE R
Ys B T I 36 75 B T ot KB T S8R B
EELEZEHBERAAERET
BARZBIMNEEREBZBEERA
1B - MR e B R 2 i T R
T8 ELEZELZRTINEL
FEEATER o

R-ZEZERFMA—BZA R
BEINRBE M UE R B EE
MELEZBEBBERRAAERETS
EREENIEEH ZIVEIEE - I
VAYER B B0 SE AR SR

BRI

WhE  BERLEERBREE(RA
MARRENEEERERERLT
HEEZEE) CEREBHEERA
AFARBTEEZRA  BEEZEE
ERMAIEEHEETEREXAHLY
ERRL BEEEESREER
BEMXA  RIFEMREMRTZ
RERANBRABRENLZEE
PRARRHIRR -

PrBEEMEERATINEEEHM
RSP HER

BB <

EAAEREAKRERENEBA
1 B 2 FAT P 15 4 K% W R 48 B 2 B -
BB & 77 SR

MEDELAFXHBEIAANEE
RGLANES B 5 E Bh I A% & B & 48
MERZEEBAMIE  RKR
e AR A IR ER R

—T-mrEsR

HEZZ—WFE+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on acquisition of foreign operations before
1 April 2005 are treated as non-monetary foreign currency
items of the acquirer and reported using the historical cost
prevailing at the date of the acquisition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to
how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Share options granted and vested before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in
the profit or loss in respect of the value of options granted.
Upon the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares
issued are recorded by the Company as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess
of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of
the shares is recorded by the Company as share premium.
Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise
date are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Share options granted and vested on or after 1 April
2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make various estimates based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information. The key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of goodwill
was HK$69,574,000 (2013: HK$69,574,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.

Estimated impairment of trade
receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2014, the
carrying amount of trade receivables is HK$2,075,262,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$88,269,000) (2013:
carrying amount of HK$2,054,679,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$65,340,000).
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YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FEMBREME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The management
of the Group is responsible to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The management of the Group works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model, and will
report the valuation findings to the board of directors of
the Company to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.
Notes 15 and 30 provide detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of various assets and
liabilities.
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Turnover and Segment Information

Turnover

Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for
goods sold to customers during the year, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group’s operations are
currently classified under the following business divisions,
namely solvents, coatings, lubricants and others. These
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its
operating segment information.

Principal activities of the Group’s reportable segments are as

follows:

Solvents - manufacture of and trading in solvents and
related products

Coatings - manufacture of and trading in coatings and
related products

Lubricants — manufacture of and trading in lubricants
products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of interest income, dividend income, fair
value change on derivative financial instruments, fair value
change of investment properties, gain or loss on disposal of
corporate assets, central administration costs and interest
expense. This is the information reported to the Chairman
of Group Executive Committee of the Company, the Group's
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by
reportable and operating segments for the year under
review is as follows:

B3 b

Reportable
BH 2y EEH  segment B x5EH &a
Solvents Coatings  Lubricants total Others  Elimination ~ Consolidated

TEn TET T TET T Tn TE7
HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§000

NEbsE
e
HEmEE

%

25
BEE

fTEEBTA
MEZR
(Kizt7)

RENENL(E
Ll
(Hizt7)

HETHEERE

W (HTR18)

AAEHA
LR

iyl

Year ended 31 December 2014

Segment revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total

Results
Segment results

Fair value change on derivative
financial instruments (note 7)

Gain on fair value change of
investment properties (note 7)

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

investment (notes 7 and 18)
Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses
Interest expense

Profit before taxation

6388329 3350517 43159% 10,170,442 85,397 - 10255839
187,187 - 4 187,428 - (187,428) -

6,575516 3350517 431837 10,357,870 85,397 (187,428) 10,255,839

226,657 95,300 (2.934) 319,023 19,613 (64) 338,5m

371,248
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5. EXBER7EER® 5. Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)
¥Bo¥E@ Segment information (continued)
(a) DEEEH£ENEEB) (a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
2B
. Reportable
By 28 belep seqment iff Rk G4
Solvents Coatings~ Lubricants total Others ~ Elimination  Consolidated
T TEL T ThEn Tin Thn TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEZE-ZE  Yearended 31 December 2013

t2B=1-H

2355
HEERE Seqment revenue

e Bxternal seles 5003404 3395381 462731 9801516 74517 - 9876033

e Inter-seqment sales 21,009 - 1,100 22,109 - (222,109) -
% Total 6,164,413 3,395,381 463831 10,023,625 14517 (222,109 9,876,033
< | Resuls

VLS Segment results 265,186 122,706 9,99 397,888 15,070 6,780 419,738
fiEeRIE Fair value change on derivative

MEzEL  finandial instruments (note 7)

G2 (26,359)
AARAA Unallocated income 84,426
AEER Unallocated expenses (35,139)
flEEH Interest expense (51,209)
BHALER Profit before takation 391,457

7> JR ] 1 6 B3 SN K 5 19 165K

AT

Inter-segment sales are charged at the similar terms as
external sales.
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Turnover and Segment Information

(Continued)
(B 0¥ Segment information (continued)
(b) HfbER (b) Other information
RetE0 BB EEER Amounts included in the measurement of segment
BETIIEE profit or loss or segment assets:
EYvEC
Reportable LEER
BH 23 EEE segment Bfh  Corporate £
Solvents Coatings  Lubricants total Others level  Consolidated
TEn Thn Thn Thn Thn Tin Thn
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BZ-E-ME  Yearended 31 December 2014
t=A=t-A
£33
ERHEERE  Additions to non-current assets (note)
(HzE) 164,165 120,952 11,665 296,782 204 8,140 305,126
0% BER&E  Deprecation of property, plant and equipment
L 46,036 11,624 4,686 122,346 670 6,951 129,967
BRHHESES  Release of prepaid lease payments 2,105 4,25 - 6,361 - - 6,361
BAEZESE  Amortisation of intangible assets 1,018 1,151 - 2,169 - 25 2,19
HE/3HEME - Loss on disposalwritien-off of propert,
BERABR  plant and equipment and land use rights
iR
LEE 4,25 6,805 830 11,887 - 2 11,889
$0E BER  Impaimment loss in respect of property,
EZHESE  plantand equipment - 13,363 - 13,363 - - 13,863

REMENRE  Gain on fair value change of

bl investment properties
HETEBERE  Gain on disposal of
e available-for-sale investment
HERBELERE  Gain on disposal of asset held for sale
s
HFElEE Written down of inventories
EREE 10 net realisable value

BZ-E-=£  Yearended 31 December 2013

t=B=t-A
LLEE
JERHEERE  Additions to non-current assets (note)
(h)
% FEREE  Depreciation of property,
L& plant and equipment

Efftf4ARE  Release of prepaid lease payments

ERAEZES  Amortisation of intangible assets

HE /EEME « Loss (gain) on disposaliwritten-off of
HERRE property, plant and equipment
LER(EH)

SEVEEREA  Impaiment loss recognised in
LAEEE respect of intangible assets

st SERBEETEEERMTA

- o - - - (7,500) (7.500)

- = = - - (63,487) (63.487)

- (11,214) - (11,214) - - (11.214)
28814 = = 28,814 = = 28814
137,030 133,540 16,712 287,282 67 37,859 325,208
41418 63,332 3,747 108,497 064 6,051 115,212
1690 334 = 5032 = 8 5040
1726 2831 = 4,563 = 25 4,588
6,491 6,666 9,350 2,507 = (1972) 20,535
957 2,057 = 3014 = = 3,014

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.
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(Continued)

5. Turnover and Segment Information

Segment information (continued)

(c) An analysis of the Group’s segment assets

HNoBEERSEERES and segment liabilities by reportable and
ek operating segments is as follows:
BHE 7BH VbR e
Solvents Coatings Lubricants Consolidated
TERT TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZE-—DNF At 31 December 2014
+=A=+—H
BE Assets
2N BEEE Reportable segment assets 3,368,627 3,096,917 262,981 6,728,525
Hit Others 27.212
B ARDEEE Other unallocated assets 1,526,698
REHBEE Consolidated total assets 8,282,435
BE Liabilities
2nEaE Reportable segment liabilities 806,252 806,132 51,735 1,664,119
Hib Others 7,350
e R Taxation payable 64,641
EILFHIER R Deferred tax liabilities 13,189
HiAPE ARG Other unallocated liabilities 3,132,440
TABAR Consolidated total liabilities 4,881,739
R=-B—=F At 31 December 2013
t=A=+-H
BE Assets
2 DIEEE Reportable segment assets 3,162,057 3,100,975 259,750 6,522,782
Hith Others 65,216
HiRAHEEE Other unallocated assets 1,540,502
FAMEE Consolidated total assets 8,128,500
BfE Liabilities
23N EAE Reportable segment liabilities 937,872 830,537 61,235 1,829,644
HAh Others 8,524
JE LR Taxation payable 57,600
RIEFRIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 12,114
HEiRDEEBE Other unallocated liabilities 2,812,206

~ =
Relaf

Consolidated total liabilities

4,720,088
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Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

(d) For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources
between segments:

e  all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than short-term bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, investment properties, other non-current
asset and the unallocated assets; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities,
derivative financial instruments, borrowings and
the unallocated liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was substantially generated from
customers located in the Mainland China (place of domicile
of the group entities that derives turnover) amounting to
HK$9,985,049,000 (2013: HK$9,565,910,000). Substantially
all of the Group’s non-current assets excluding financial
instruments were also located in the Mainland China (place
of domicile of the group entities that holds such assets)
amounting to HK$2,075,174,000 (2013: HK$2,001,316,000).

Major customers

No individual customer of the Group has contributed over
10% of the turnover of the Group for both reporting
periods.
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6. EEMEREEME

6. Directors’ Remuneration and
Employees’ Emoluments

EENFIIR(ZE—=F : 11 The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 (2013:
BI)EEZHMEHT ¢ 11) directors were as follows:
ERER
F50 i1 EER g AR BV BER EEE  AuYeung 3ER 23 AiERE
Ip Yip Wong Ho Kwong Ng Tong Wong ~ Tsan Pong, li Ku A3 Management
Chishing ~ TszHin ~ KamYim  SaiHou KwokChiuf  SiuPing  WuiTung  Kong Chi Davie"  Chak Man  Yuen Fun Total  executives
TR TEn Tn TR TEn Tn TR TEn TEn TR TR TEn Tn
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000 HK$000
BE-8-1% Year ended
TZAZT-BLEE 31 December 204
FEL Fees - 400 400 400 400 200 30 500 [ 200 300 3,161 -
EMe Other emoluments
FEREMER Salaries and other benefits 1,449 3,000 1909 1,663 1,449 - - - - - - 9470 8350
FelRRAAR,  Discetionary bonus
- 354 i 183 16 - - - - - - 674 2903
Share-based payments - - 1 13 il - - - - - - 39 -
150 Retrement benefit
scheme contributions - 05 176 n 135 - - - - - - 593 35
ik Total emoluments 1449 3959 279 2,446 PAVE] 200 N 500 1] 00 300 14,267 11,618
55 £ EOE 2R fit% RAT EER ERE  AuYeung 2ER i ERERE
) Yip Wong Li i Ho Ng Tong Wong ~Tsan Pong, l Ku &5 Management
Chi Shing TszHin KamYim  Man, Peter* SaiHou  SuPing  WuiTung  Kong Chi Davied ~ Chak Man — Yuen Fun Totdl  executives
Tin T T Tin T T Thn Thn Tn Thn T T T
HKF000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKF000  HKS'000  HKY000  HKE000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
I et Year ended
TZA=1-BLEER 31 December 2013
EEL Fees = 400 400 399 400 200 30 500 200 200 300 3319 -
Hfie Other emoluments
EEREMER Salaies and other benefits 147 2906 1789 1714 1592 - - - - - - 9448 11458
FEHIERENAR  Discretionary bonus
2 - 918 510 510 459 - - - - - - 2397 4,151
RiE Share-based payments - - 13 13 13 - - - - - - 39 -
BAGHAEEA  Retrement benefi
scheme contributions - 1% 165 159 B - - - - - - 593 54
Hete% Total emoluments 147 440 2981 2905 2641 200 0 500 200 200 300 16,126 16,133
Bt Notes:
@ BEZF-MF+-A=1— Elﬂ: (@) The directors’ salaries and other benefits above included
FE - PREEZHE RAMEF operating leases rentals of HK$1,560,000 (2013: HK$1,560,000)
QAN T A i —
BIELEHEE 21,560,000 T for the year ended 31 December 2014.
(ZZ—=% : 1,560,000/ T ) °
(b) FERHNERBN DB 2 TEALENLE (b)  The discretionary bonus is determined with reference to the
=3 WAL A g ¥
FREZEERE  BAARRREY operating results, individual performance and comparable
RS 2 et BIRTIRTE © market statistics during the year.
© RTHEERARARZEEMATE (©)  Mr. Yip Tsz Hin is the Chairman of Group Executive Committee

BEXF  HMSO N EXHE -

of the Company, and his emoluments had been disclosed
above.
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6. Directors’ Remuneration and
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

# Appointed as an executive director of the Company on 1
January 2014.

A Passed away on 16 March 2014.

* Retired as an executive director of the Company on 31
December 2013.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2013: three) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments of
the remaining one (2013: two) individual(s) were as follows:

—E—NF —T—=
2014 2013
FET FHBT
HK$’000 HK$'000
e REAET Salaries and other benefits 3,287 6,492
RIREFIGT BN Retirement benefit scheme contribution = 23
3,287 6,515

FELA EMER & R - ANEES &
BHZAB(BRESR) WREHK
BB LA S| BN A E E A KRE
B8 B Sk BER R AR o ubSh OB
BE=EMERS MR A REEM
< o

FHRRERBZMe®EMNT

During both reporting periods, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. In addition, no director
waived any emoluments during both reporting periods.

The emoluments of the management executives were within
the following bands:

—E-mF —T—=F
2014 2013
BEAH EE A
No. of No. of
employees employees

T IT21,000,0008 70

1,000,001 7C2 1,500,00078 7T
1,500,001 7C%2,000,0007% 7T
2,000,001/%&7C%=2,500,0007 7T
2,500,0018 7L £3,500,0007% 7T

HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 - -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000

N[ a2 NN
0 IN N = W
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7. Other Gains and Losses

7. it R EE

REEH A (B1R) 845

The Group's other gains (losses) comprise of:

—ET—F —FE—=F
2014 2013
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
INEEREEZIEH Exchange (loss) gain arising from a

(E518) ez (BIREG)) foreign currency bank loan (Note (i) (2,396) 26,496
R EE 8 2 HTHE Fair value gain (loss) on derivative

SRMTECZARE financial instruments of a cross currency

Wz (B18) swap contract (Note (i) and note 5)

(B () B2 i 3E5) 3,568 (26,359)
a5y Sub-total 1,172 137
HiNE LR R R 5 Net exchange (loss) gain arising

EEZFER from other foreign currency balances

(518 ) Uz and transactions (41,388) 37,468
FIEIREEEEE (MH5EG)  Allowance for bad and

doubtful debts, net (Note (ii)) (31,763) (33,555)
HEREERR Impairment loss recognised in

ZBEEE respect of intangible assets - (3,014)
HE TEME  BE Net loss on disposal/written

T &t Ko b (E PR RE off of property, plant and equipment

ZIREE and land use rights (11,889) (20,535)
HEHBAR] Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 37)

Z BB (FE37) - (828)
SEMENRBELEE Gain on fair value change of

2 Weas (B EES) investment properties (note 5) 7,500 -
HEFSEHEME RS Gain on disposal of asset held for sale 11,214 -
& Al it S 1R A i as Gain on disposal of

(B5ES) available-for-sale investment (note 5) 63,487 =

(1,667) (20,327)
Mk - Notes:
() RZE—Z=ZFNA  x&£EEZ () In April 2013, the Group raised a new bank loan in

Australian dollar (“AUD"”) of AUD24,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$198,648,000). In order to minimise the exposure to foreign
currency risk, the Group entered into a cross currency swap
contract to hedge economically against the foreign currency
bank loan. Details of the fair value of the cross currency swap
contract and the foreign currency bank loan are set out in
notes 25 and 26 respectively.

E—EHxBR (BT EIT
& 24,800,000 T( #H & »
198,648,00075 7T ) ° A#EINE R BR
BREREK  ANEBEFZEEESHE
HI AR b SRz NS SRITE K ©
BEERHEHNA R ERINERITE
K FEIE D RIS E25 %26 °

(i) AR BRBBETEHREUWER 2 B U (i)  The directors of the Company assess the recoverability of
LR WRBHEBRAZBESR the trade receivables on a regular basis and determine the

248 B % B 2K 0 T 5t 1R R R
B -

allowance for bad and doubtful debts after taking into
accounts of the repayment history and settlement situation of
the relevant debts.
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8. Interest Expense

= —F=%F
2014 2013
T T
HK$’000 HK$'000

ARAFRNTBREE
ZIRITIEEBFE

2 1 B TE 0% 5
BB REL
A 2 3 8

BR B¢ A 2

Interest on bank borrowings

wholly repayable within five years 52,695 42,521
Net loss arising on interest rate swaps

designated as cash flow hedges of

floating rate debts 8,863 8,688

61,558 51,209

9. Profit Before Taxation

—E-NF —=—=
2014 2013
FERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAE AR A B MR 5 Profit before taxation has been
B8 arrived at after charging:
E A Amortisation of intangible assets 2,194 4,588
1% S A B <& Auditors’ remuneration
—ARFE — current year 4,488 4,530
— A FELREE — underprovision in prior year 969 359
Y% MENEREZITE  Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 129,967 115,212
Y - BB REE Impairment loss of property, plant
TR BEEIE and equipment 13,863 -
FEMIRZ Al &858 Written down of inventories to net
realisable value 28,814 -
MEMEZKLEHE Operating lease payments in
S FRIE respect of rented premises 20,365 20,819
BT LA S B Release of prepaid lease payments 6,361 5,040
ETIKA > BIEESE Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration
[EACETY) (note 6) 704,628 709,162
WHEE A GEA and after crediting
EA): (included in other income):
T2 U A Interest income 29,863 16,953
THRE 2 BUTHES Government compensation for a
(P E) factory relocation (Note) = 18,288
EHERZBNMEE Government grants recognised 11,522 26,765
HeWACREEZ T Rental income (excluding direct
489,000/ 7T outgoings of HK$489,000
B4 (2013: HK$490,000))
490,000/ 7T )) 3,143 2,823
UGB —rEff B ARIEL 2  Gain from a bargain purchase
R EUWEEIES (F1FE36) arising on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) = 6,308
AEHEREHEUW A  Dividend income from
available-for-sale investment 66,252 31,539
Mz - ZeBEEAEHREKRE —FIK Note: The amount represented compensation from the relevant PRC

(BER=Z——Fxl)mihEAE
R AR PIERG RO BR (B -

government authority as a result of a factory relocation in PRC
which was completed in 2012.
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10. %18

10.Taxation
== —E=F
2014 2013
FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$°000
FSH —&BE Current tax — Hong Kong
IRE Current year - 3
FEDIREE Underprovision in previous years - 595
— 598
PSR — P BIR R Current tax — Mainland China
NG Current year 107,741 102,777
ROl 1 F R Reversal of provisions in previous years (8,536) (24,480)
99,205 78,297
99,205 78,895
RIERIE (PFE27) Deferred taxation (note 27)
B Hong Kong 66 46
o B AR Mainland China 1,009 795
1,075 841
100,280 79,736

B NS B 1R R F 1 51 FE SR A4 A
16.5%=1 8 °

RiPEARAMBEEEMEHE
(TRERBBE D) REEREHA
BRG] - REIREN B AR ZH
EE_ZTEN\F—F—HER25% °

REBETRHERERLS 2B
RERERIEREHRMER A
BERIS%ZAEHRE - PEKE
CEMEHERFAZERGESR
BRIEHBAE -

Hth FARE R 2 BIR Ty IR A B Rl
R ERAREE -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China are eligible as High and New Technology Enterprise,
and are entitled to an income tax rate of 15%. EIT of
Mainland China has been provided for after taking these tax
incentives into account.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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10-&1,5(%5) 10.Taxation (continued)
M HERRNOT : A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
—ET-NE —T—=fF
2014 2013
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R A% A& A Profit before taxation 371,248 391,457
B PFS X 25% Tax charge at the domestic income

SFTEZRIEY tax rate of 25% (2013: 25%)

(ZT—=% :25%) 92,812 97,864
A FEERERE Overprovision in previous years (8,536) (23,885)
AT H0FR B9 5 2 1 R 7% Tax effect of expenses not deductible

R for tax purposes 46,431 43,442
4 5 R O U S AR T Tax effect of income not taxable

B for tax purposes (18,157) (21,348)
KT AERB T IEEE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

"Bz & 33,023 20,952
A Z B ARFERHTIE Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

IR 2 & previously not recognised (5,700) (6,812)
UREMEEER Effect of different tax rates of

WEBATTRBEZFL  subsidiaries in other jurisdictions - (4)
BB AR ZER Effect of income tax on concessionary

HEEMASH 22 rates for certain subsidiaries (44,358) (36,807)
AR DB im A TR Effect of withholding tax on

2B undistributed profits 3,940 4,260
Hh Others 825 2,074
REEHIA Taxation for the year 100,280 79,736

A PR AS B AR R T8 A A SR ELK AP
MEGAERNEER 2B

The domestic income tax rate is a tax rate in the jurisdiction
where the operation of the Group is substantially based.
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1.8 11.Dividends
—E-NE =
2014 2013
FET FA&TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERNERERE 2 IS © Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
ZE—NFFHERE Interim dividend for 2014 of HK10.0 cents
ZHR10.058M (2013: HK10.0 cents) per share
===t
&%10.0/&(U) 56,275 56,228
—E——FHREKE Final dividend for 2013 of HK15.0 cents
ZR15.0581 (2013: final dividend for 2012 of
(ZZF—=4%F: HK15.0 cents) per share
—E——FHRRE
&8 15.0814) 84,413 84,318
140,688 140,546
EFEEBKEEFEREE T —T The final dividend equivalent to HK15.0 cents per share

F+-_A=+—HLFEEHRK
BEHRIS0OEN BB TALR
84,413,000/ 7T + I 45 A% 3R £ BN %
BOZRRRAFAG ERE]

i@ o forthcoming annual general meeting.

totalling not less than HK$84,413,000, in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2014 has been proposed by the
directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
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12.Earnings Per Share

AR AR B B E A M E R The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

BRMTIRE TIIEMETHE

attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

—E-NF —=—=
2014 2013
FET FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000
RERQNRIREEMLALF  Profit for the year attributable to owners
FErtESRER of the Company and earnings for the
RESER Bz &R purposes of calculating basic and
diluted earnings per share 223,182 250,622
REE
Number of shares
A& AR
‘000 ‘000
FTESRERZF Weighted average number of shares
ZINFEFGBREL for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share 562,620 562,094
Al gE LR IDEE
JEERE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
B RS A Share options 1,211 2,668
STEERREER AT Weighted average number of shares
2 I AR 28 for the purpose of calculating

diluted earnings per share 563,831 564,762
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—OEEFR
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13.Property, Plant and Equipment

B £B
RHAZE
HELH B
REF  Furniture,
#EBIBZ  Leasehold fixtures AE BER#E
Construction land and  and office Motor  Plant and A&t
in progress buildings  equipment vehicles  machinery Total
TR TET TR TR THER TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ﬁSZZME AT COST
RZZ—=5—-f—H At 1 January 2013 247,849 651,326 148,242 66,564 892,200 2,006,181
@\\D gxwE Currency realignment 7,335 18,399 3,782 1,303 26,327 57,146
RIELERESH Reclassifications to asset held
A% (ME23) for sale (note 23) - (19,635) - - - (19,635)
é%ﬁ \*E Reclassifications (257,683) 194,081 5,360 - 58,242 -
NE Additions 36,859 1,123 22,627 1,944 182,732 245,285
Wik — Acquisitions of a
NG =) subsidiary (note 36) - 18,297 473 118 19,538 38,426
HEH B E (K &37) Disposals of subsidiaries (note 37) - - 3) (7,076) - (7,079)
HE /Ha Disposals/written off - (16,148) (13,127) (8,969) (56,033) (94,277)
R-B—=F At 31 December 2013
+-A=1+—H 34,360 847,443 167,354 53,884 1,123,006 2,226,047
MNEEEZE Currency realignment (642) (21,878) (3,660) (1,025) (31,245) (58,450)
ENNE Reclassifications (11,685) 1,111 = = 10,574 =
NE Additions 90,995 4,030 17,981 4,326 113,859 231,191
HE Disposals/written off (11,886) (224) (6,684) (9,831) (30,698) (59,323)
AT —pNE At 31 December 2014
+ A=+—H 101,142 830,482 174,991 47354 1,185,496 2,339,465
HERREES DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
A\—F—=%—f—H At 1 January 2013 - 144,558 79,380 38,489 290,223 552,650
INEREZTE Currency realignment - 4,087 2,326 538 9,300 16,251
ERNNE Depreciation for the year - 29,279 17,073 5,739 63,121 115,212
RIELERE Reclassifications to asset
o8 IE23) held for sale (note 23) - (11,445) - - - (11,445)
HEHB A R Eliminated on disposals of
3K (EE37) subsidiaries (note 37) - - - (3,593) = (3,593)
HE /GRS Eliminated on disposal/written off - (12,567) (10,746) (5,722) (39,951) (68,986)
R-E—=& At 31 December 2013
+-A=+—-H - 153,912 88,033 35,451 322,693 600,089
INEEEZET Currency realignment - (4,494) (1,247) (1,272) (11,316) (18,329)
ENFE Depreciation for the year - 29,230 19,296 4,661 76,780 129,967
FRREBE Impairment loss in the year - 1,363 2,932 - 9,568 13,863
HE /R Eliminated on disposal/written off - (48) (6,244) (8,059) (22,184) (36,535)
RZE—ME At 31 December 2014
+ZA=+— - 179,963 102,770 30,781 375,541 689,055
BRI B CARRYING VALUES
it i3 At 31 December 2014
+-A=+—-H 101,142 650,519 72,221 16,573 809,955 1,650,410
R-ZE—=& At 31 December 2013
+=—A=1+—-H 34,360 693,531 79,321 18,433 800,313 1,625,958

EXPFrittz % - BB KR BEE

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

TINBEBRRIEA T ERPTE - depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:

HELH AREAD 2 1ef $h4F HA sk Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining
2% - BREEE term of the lease or 2%

EF PATHAY 2 12 8RS sk Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
2.5%  NBEEFE term of the lease or 2.5%

i KE 45%%25% Furniture, fixtures and 4.5% to 25%

PN office equipment
AE 9%%25% Motor vehicles 9% to 25%

= R es 6%Z20% Plant and machinery 6% to 20%
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13.Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)
—E-lmE —T—=F
2014 2013
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
AREB 2 YEREZRBIE © The Group's property interests comprise:
EEERAZTHEE Leasehold land and building held in
T FNEF Hong Kong under medium-term leases 8,291 8,673
(LFATE B AN [ 55 Buildings located on land held outside
BRHHE T BT Hong Kong under medium-term leases 642,228 684,858
650,519 693,531

HE-_FT—WF+=—A=+—8"
HRRNEERB S PEBESEYR
BERZERE  OE  BER
R RERIRE 18 13,863,000 7T

During the year ended 31 December 2014, an impairment
loss of HK$13,863,000 (2013: nil) was recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment as a result of the relocation
of plant and equipment due to the Group’s business

(Z—ZE—=F : &) o integration in coating segment.
14.78F LA 14.Prepaid Lease Payments
—ET—F —E—=F
2014 2013
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
AREEFENMN LIS BIE © The Group’s prepaid lease
payments comprise:
BEBEIMEEIES Leasehold land outside Hong Kong under:
e+ -
hEHE Medium-term leases 250,281 274,552
AITERE RS Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MENEE Current assets 6,142 6,193
EMENE EE Non-current assets 244,139 268,359
250,281 274,552
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15. R &M

15.Investment Properties

FAT
HK$’000
DARE FAIR VALUE
R-—Z—=F—H—H At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013
;ZT—=%
+=-—RA=+—8” 66,300
NTRI=R: il Increase in fair value 7,500
RZT—mHF At 31 December 2014
+t=A=+—R

REMEMREE - ToAPHABL
A e

AEBEBREYMEZ AAETIRER
SEYEBE B A EREEM
BE > ZFBERFEERRAE R
BEHRRETZHEETE -

HEDERERLEEEE - IR
RELMERDDE2REEMS
FAHEEBREERZERER R T
RELE BEULBEREENR
U Z KR EL 3 Bh 2 5T B 7 45 7] 8
BR5 - REHMEZRIAER
MEZ R RRERERBRRE -

AEBURBENREMENRA
EDBRAABEFE=R -

TREIINR _T—WF+-_A=+
—BR-_ZFE—=Ft+"A=+—H
ERNMEEZSAABOCEEM
ERNGERTMEEARR) - Uk
AREFERRBRAAREBEHENTA
BENABEREREETIRNAA
BRRNENER -

73,800

The investment properties were situated in Hong Kong and
were held under medium-term leases.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties have
been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out at the
end of the reporting period by an independent qualified
professional valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited, not connected
with the Group.

The valuation was arrived at by using direct comparison
approach assuming sale of the properties in their existing
states with the benefit of vacant possession and by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market. The direct comparison approach is based on
market observable recent transactions of similar properties in
similar location. In estimating the fair value of the properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties situated
in Hong Kong is classified as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The following table gives information about how the fair
value of these investment properties as at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013 are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.
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15.Investment Properties (continued)

RENEZEEE EIRRRAREEL
Carrying value of investment AEZBR
properties held by the Group ~ ARERF REFERTEGARE Relationship of
in the consolidated Fair value Valuation technique(s) EABEBERANE unobservable inputs
statement of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) to fair value
R=%-ME+=A=1-H
At 31 December 2014
BAERILIAR!  2R3E EE ERUBARRERATHER  STARERNT22008122500%  SEARERHEAEA
73,800,000 BEREETS LAREHZA T RRTSERATNEEE Uik BRELLE
BHBHERS - R A ERIRE(fIA)  BFR
i BE Bk
1st, 2nd and 3rd Floor of Yip's Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square feet, using market direct A slight increase in the
Chemical Building in Hong Kong assuming sale in their existing comparables and taking into account of price per square feet will
HK$73,800,000 states and by reference to location and other individual factors such increase significantly the
comparable sales transactions as size, building facilities, levels, age of fair value.
as available in the relevant building, etc., which is ranging from
market. HK$2,200/5q.1t to HK$2,500/sq.t.
ATE-—=F+-A=1-H
At 31 December 2013
BEERMIAR! 2R3 =0 ERUBERRERATHER  BYAREEATI600ETE26008  BTAREBHUARK
66,300,000/ BRREETHS LAREHZT T RATSERANEEE YR BREARE
BHBHERS ERABERRZ(RIA)  BFR
i BE - BkE)
1st, 2nd and 3rd Floor of Yip's Level 3 Direct comparison method Price per square feet, using market direct A slight increase in the

Chemical Building in Hong Kong
HK$66,300,000

AREHRERFEURRESHER
éf$i@2$'§ BrAMFEERY

REAREEREAFE
RIREYE

SRRl

assuming sale in their existing
states and by reference to
comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant
market.

comparables and taking into account of
location and other individual factors such
as size, building facilities, levels, age of
building, etc., which is ranging from
HK$1,600/sq.ft to HK$2,600 sq.ft

price per square feet will
increase significantly the
fair value.

All the Group's property interests held under operating

leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.
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16.F58 16.Goodwill
TEx
HK$'000
BAME AT COST
R-_ZT—=F—f—H" At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014
“E—=ft+-fA=1—H
RZZ-—ME+-A=+—H 71,462
AE IMPAIRMENT
R—E—=%—HF—H" At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014
—Z—=F+-A=1+—H
RZZ-—ME+-A=+—H 1,888
BREE CARRYING VALUES
RZZ—ME+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2014 69,574
A—T—=%#+-"H=+—H At 31 December 2013 69,574

RER A GFUIE 2 8RB
PEEBMERZEBEHPR
BrHeELBU(ReELE
fiil) - HEZEEESHENT

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGU"s) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

—E-QmE —T—=fF

2014 2013

FET FA&TT

HK$000 HK$'000

R EERA Manufacture of and trading in solvents 59,479 59,479
BUEREERK Manufacture of and trading in coatings 10,095 10,095
69,574 69,574

HeEEBEM 2z b8 RE The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from
FREAENETE TEFEBEER value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value

%%Zixﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ$W2%ﬁ

ERERNTEREEEREEK
$Z """"" AB) A R] o B 1R LA A] = AR
REMSIHESKRERZESE
A B8 7 FfT TED 9 4 °E R B 2 5 A EE R
HEAIRER - EERTIERHER
ZERERMmMEL - HEEBENREE
AR 2 B EYRIAR R B T 18 ) & T8 5
BAiEmH 2B MET -

RBREFGZEN  NEEKRRE
EEEMNECEREEEBN &K
MY BEESEZRRAF(Z
T—=F: AF)ReREN " I
FEABIRES19% (=T — =4 :
9.34%) + R BR T 5 IR ¥ B &K
@m%%&ﬁﬁéiﬁu%ﬁﬁ%
ERR - ERNAEBITEZERTE
B BEEERNT5%E12% (=
gf_ﬁ 5%E12%) % &
E_E—NF+_A=+—HILHF
& AEEWEEREADRERIE °

in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct
costs during the year. Management estimates discount rates
using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs.
The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

For impairment assessment purpose, the Group performed
impairment review for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts
derived from the most recent financial budgets for the next
five years (2013: five years) for each CGUs approved by
management using a discount rate of 8.19% (2013: 9.34%)
which reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates per annum range from 5% to 12% (2013: 5% to
12%) in light of the Group’s industry growth forecasts. No
impairment loss has been recognised by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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1.8 &EE 17.Intangible Assets

THREHR BEREE

Y pIES Non- EFM@fE  Trademarks
Technical ~ competition Customer and patent Bt
knowhow covenants  relationship brands Total
TER TET TER TAT TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BAE AT COST
RZE—=F—H—H At 1 January 2013 13,210 19,152 9,573 4,146 46,081
9\\@ ExE Currency realignment 38 482 - - 520
—=F

JF A=+—H At 31 December 2013 13,248 19,634 9,573 4,146 46,601
WNEHEEE Currency realignment (34) (457) - - (491)
i Written off (2,633) - (9,573) (2,194) (14,400)
RZE—ImF

+-A=+-A At 31 December 2014 10,581 19177 - 1,952 31,710
BELRE AMORTISATION

AND IMPAIRMENT

RZE-=%5-A—-H At 1 January 2013 9,544 14,839 7,026 1,457 32,866
57\\ %S%ﬁ%%&i Currency realignment 22 - - - 22
FREE Provided for the year 1,290 1,316 1,570 412 4,588
ENERNRESE Impairment loss

recognised in the year 1,029 - 977 1,008 3,014
—T—=%

ﬂ'* =t—H At 31 December 2013 11,885 16,155 9,573 2,877 40,490
INELE =T Currency realignment (23) (376) = = (399)
FREE Provided for the year 1,045 954 - 195 2,194
| Written off (2,633) - (9,573) (2,194) (14,400)
etk

+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2014 10,274 16,733 - 878 27,885
REE CARRYING VALUES
R-E—E

+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2014 307 2,444 - 1,074 3,825
RZZ—=%

+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2013 1,363 3,479 = 1,269 6,111

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following periods:

Technical knowhow 4.5 - 10 years
Non-competition covenants 3 — 10 years
Customer relationship 6 years
Trademarks and patent brands 10 years

Technical knowhow represents technical knowledge and
techniques acquired from independent third parties to
manufacture certain insulating varnish, ink and screening

products.
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17. 8B EE =

THFHBEAENKEIRR - R
HEENHE TR EEI RN T3
EN0FZFEFHA AR ERR
E

BEPBRNVERTPEBRANY S
& At RBEBREME
FEMZIBERRMRRENK -

RERmEERE 2 mE A - %
EmERTENESERA LA
BE e

HE_Z—=F+-_A=+—HL1
FE - AEBEBETHNE BEFHE
BRETZEHERNEERDE
([BREEFEE]) BRAREEIE
3,014,000/8 7t » "R B RBETIH
REAFLEAZSREEFEE
FTEK °

18. At HERE

17.Intangible Assets (continued)

Non-competition covenants represent the right to restrict
the vendors of assets or acquirees, after acquisition of the
entities, to carry on the same business for specific periods
ranging from 3 to 10 years.

Customer relationship represents the customers, which
are buying specialised types of paint and thinner used in
audio visual equipment, cosmetics, mobile phone and other
electronic products.

Trademarks and patent brands represent the brand names
acquired which have high recognition and awareness in the
market.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
recognised impairment losses of HK$3,014,000 in relation to
technical knowhow, customer relationship and trademarks
and patent brands of certain products of coatings (“Impaired
Intangible Assets”). Such impairment was recognised as a
result of the cessation of use of those Impaired Intangible
Assets in the year.

18.Available-for-Sale Investment

=k —T-=F
2014 2013
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R B ABERIE EMMZA  Unlisted equity interest in Mainland China,
B WKARUREEE  at cost less impairment loss - 24,113

ARG ZSERECERR BN
FEEZBREEA=HEERE ML
EiRERELTRGD  ARRZ
EERAREATRHEEEL AR
B R —_FE—=F+=_A=+
— BIRRANRBR R ERT £ o

RAFE  AEERZEIREFH
BRREEESEATHEEHRE (KD
BERRKARBREINNER)  REA
87,372,000/ 7L - RAFE » &
2 UWr7563,487,0008 LA B 5 ERR ©

The above investment represented investment in unlisted
equity interest and was measured at cost less impairment
at 31 December 2013 because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates was so significant that the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that the fair value could not
be measured reliably.

In the current year, the Group disposed of its entire available-
for-sale investment, which had been carried at cost less
impairment before disposal, to a shareholder of this investee
at a consideration of HK$87,372,000. A gain on disposal of
HK$63,487,000 has been recognised in profit or loss in the
current year.



Bt 7§63 % FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.

20.

21

2014 ANNUAL REPORT

HFERBDEE

HEBNEARERAEMES L
PR R 10 ¥ 5 AR 1R P AR R &R

YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REMBREMRE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

19.0ther Non-Current Asset

The amount represents the cost of club debenture held
by the Group and is measured at cost less accumulated

BEEB(IME)TE impairment losses, if any, at the end of the reporting period.
7E 20.Inventories

—ZT-mEF —F=F

2014 2013

FET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

R Raw materials 453,370 545,266

TE&m Work in progress 40,376 48,512

B4k an Finished goods 309,124 386,467

802,870 980,245

JEWRRA K BRI

21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

HibEWRMR KA Debtors and Prepayments

=h IE
TA -E

—EF-mE —E=F

2014 2013

FHET FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

JFE U AR X Trade receivables 2,163,531 2,120,019

o RERAEME Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (88,269) (65,340)

2,075,262 2,054,679

e Z g Bills receivables 1,451,747 1,263,098

3,527,009 3,317,777
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AR EWERE -
AM@WE AR FEf
I ()
FE U BR TR

RBERRZERERBERASRZ
FREcDMTEAT

21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Trade receivables

An aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—EF-mE —F=F

2014 2013

FExT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

ZE={@H 0 - 3 months 1,664,668 1,680,229
POz E A 4 — 6 months 340,345 315,608
~NMERB A E Over 6 months 70,249 58,842
2,075,262 2,054,679

AREBE BT A ERET P RHE30K
EOARNEFEZEEY - "EEHE
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%z&%ikﬁﬁg
FPRTERENEED

fEEWNEMTE PR - NEBE A
EEEH RS eHEERFPZ2E
B EZfecInERBEREAR
FPEEEERBEREESH - TP
ZPREEE EHIERE] o K4V65% (=&
—=F : 71%) ZFEWER R BRERE
HEEE EREABEARSEE
FIRAZEEZEG RS ZEEK
RRETARTEER -

ANEEEREERBIEE s H M E K
BRI - #ABRTEE A735,789,000/8 7T
—ET—=1F : 602,160,000/87T) °

ZEC A2 B ER RS W R B
RWRBBATKEBRAREEENZ
BRA Bt AEBWERZER
HEL REBERE - RNEBZ
FEAITERSEEAERR -

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days
to its trade customers. A longer credit period may be granted
to large or long established customers with good payment
history.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit control system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors
has delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for
customers. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Approximately 65% (2013: 71%) of the trade
receivables are neither past due nor impaired as they were
assessed to be of good credit rating attributable under the
credit control system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are past due
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$735,789,000
(2013: HK$602,160,000). These past due debtors are all
closely monitored and by past experience, they will eventually
settle their debts, so the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, which
are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting
period based on the invoice date:

—2-nmF —E=F

2014 2013

FHET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Z=={@AH 0 — 3 months 379,364 304,660
=75 {E A 4 — 6 months 286,176 238,658
~EA A E Over 6 months 70,249 58,842
735,789 602,160

FERETE FEWRR SR 2 AT M B 1 B - B
ERFRREEEREREEH A
SHERRUERERER2EM
BH  ARAEERL AEEY
BEEXEERRNET  AHERAR
HARERZGITREF DB °

In determining the recoverability of the trade debtors, the
Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade
debtors since the credit was granted and up to the reporting
date. The directors of the Company considered that the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers.

RERZEE Allowance for doubtful debts:
—ZT—F —T—=F
2014 2013
FExT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F4) At beginning of the year 65,340 36,949
INELEHE ETE Currency realignment (1,666) 1,728
MR ZBEERE Impairment losses recognised 38,306 34,062
RARFERE W E 2 78 Amounts recovered during the year (6,543) (507)
EEHA AT Y B 2 FR0E Amounts written off as uncollectible (7,168) (6,892)
FR At end of the year 88,269 65,340

HRERF RN B AW 22 &
WERKIELRIE - AEEBZFE
R A A IR

Impairment is made for trade debtors that have been placed
under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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21. BRI R BEREE

Lt 8 W B R % TR A

I (@)

W RE

FEWEE AR ANRITHA L RERA
R RITHEAESR - AEEIZER
BRESE P ABENIRITEN ZE
TR EREREERIRR -

HRBASBSERAEE ZRITA
AEZENHARRTEENEAA
B RITAREZRH T ERTE
BARITRAERITRZFRITA
HERBIHA ST

R—ZE—NFE+=-_A=+—8"
REBRBERBAESESE AR
557,922,000/ ;o( = F — = F:
577,190,000% JT ) & iR 17 2 5, (&
ZCNEERNEENER . B
b AEBEBEREEE ZRITE
HEZ2HEAARBKER  WHER
ENEEAZHBRE EE25E
IRITANIER 2 F|HIE -

—T-mrEsR

HEZZ—WFE+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Bills receivables

Bills receivables represent #:7 7747 FEZE (“banker’s acceptances”),
i.e. time drafts accepted and guaranteed for payment by PRC
banks. The Group accepts the settlement of trade receivables by
customers using banker’s acceptances accepted by PRC banks
on a case by case basis.

These banker’s acceptances are issued to or endorsed to the
Group and with maturity date not longer than six months
from the date of issuance. The banker’s acceptances will
be settled by the banks, which are state-owned banks or
commercial banks in the PRC, on the maturity date of such
banker’s acceptances.

At 31 December 2014, the Group endorsed certain banker’s
acceptances with an amount of HK$557,922,000 (2013:
HK$577,190,000) to creditors to settle the trade payables to
them. Accordingly, the Group continued to include the full
amount of these endorsed banker’'s acceptances under bills
receivables and recognised the relevant payable to creditors
until the maturity date of the endorsed banker’s acceptances.
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21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Transfer of financial assets

The following were the Group’s bills receivables that were
either discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers with full
recourse. As the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating to these receivables, it continues
to recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables.
The Group has recognised the cash received on the bills
receivables discounted to banks as a secured borrowing.
These receivables are carried at amortised cost in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position.

159

B2EBREE REIABREREEE
HRFRITNERSE BETHEBNERER
Bills receivables Bills receivables
discounted to banks endorsed to suppliers @t
with full recourse with full recourse Total
ZE-mF —“T--% ZE-IFf -"T--f ZB-WNF —T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

TET TAT TET TAT TR TAT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PEE&EEEE  Carrying amount of
transferred assets 16,277 - 557,922 577,190 574,199 557,190

Carrying amount of
associated liabilities

FRaR EAE

(16,277) = (557,922)  (577,190)  (574,199)  (557,190)
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21.

22.

EWIRR K ERREE
Lt 8 W B R 2 TR A

I (@)
HiEWER R TFANRE

HERERE BN FRREIERRE
BENHERRE  BAHtERAS
N EN A TR (B R

JFE M5 Bl R e W R 4 e Lt R MK R
RERTILEABTRER AR Z
WREEMEEZFOR

21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Other debtors and prepayments

Other debtors and prepayments mainly consist of payments
in advance to suppliers, commission receivable from suppliers
and value-added tax recoverable.

Included in trade receivables and bill receivables and other
debtors are the following amounts denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the group entities to
which they relate:

—E-IF —T-=F

2014 2013

FET FAET

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT Hong Kong dollars 5,711 7,545
EVAE A, United States dollars (“USD") 28,035 26,009
HE(TBE] Japanese Yen (“YEN") 219 =

THMITIFR » BRITHE
BREE
EHETERRBTERERE D

FENAFEABEEERR 26
B EEZHRA

22.Short-Term Bank Deposits, Bank

Balances and Cash

Included in short-term bank deposits and bank balances and
cash are the following amounts denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the group entities to
which they relate:

—E-MF —E—=fF

2014 2013

FBT FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EIT usD 25,352 59,850
BIT Hong Kong dollars 2,564 3,250
AR RMB 114,965 238,986

BRZN={AR%I M BHEITHE
TARFEFEK3.23% (ZE—=4:
2.86% )5 BN - BT TIRITIERK
FRERZR0.001%E4.45% T F:1 8
(ZZ—=%F :0.001%%5%) °

Other than short-term bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months carrying interest at 3.23% (2013:
2.86%) per annum, all remaining bank deposits carrying
interest ranging from 0.001% to 4.45% (2013: 0.001% to 5%)
per annum.
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R=ZF—=FNA=+EHA &%
EHE—2BYUE=FFLEEW
& RESREAR17,000,000
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BAREFEETUREBEINET
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FHE - R_FTE—=F+=-_A=
+—H AEEBEWRIEFET®
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EFEHER-—Z—MELE)R

—ET—=F+ZA=1+—HA AR
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RAREEER BENERE

B EBAESRBREREMNER
1,253,480,000/8 ;o =& — = 4 :
1,426,764,000% L) » —_ T —=F
FEAT BT B A 7 — B IEFE AR AR 3R 2 IR
512,813,000 jo( =& — /0 & -

wm) - —FWBHBARZNK
82,210,000 0( — = — U4 : )
F—E—=FHEMRE L NETF

W% z&fﬂ3ﬂomm%nt_;—
PUeE : %) - RE T ERETERES
BRAZ BNEIHEREA - E
NHERS  BARRREERS -

RBESHREENERERARZ
FREcDMTEAT

YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FEMBREME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

23.Asset Classified As Held For Sale

On 25 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of the Group’s certain land and buildings outside
Hong Kong with a carrying amount of HK$10,259,000
at a cash consideration of RMB17,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$21,782,000). As at 31 December 2013,
the Group received deposits amounting to HK$13,710,000
from the purchaser. Respective leasehold land and buildings,
which were expected to be sold in 2014, had been classified
as asset held for sale as at 31 December 2013. Such disposal
was completed in 2014 and a gain of HK$11,214,000 was
recognised.

24.Creditors and Accrued Charges

At the end of the reporting period, the balance of
creditors and accrued charges included trade creditors of
HK$1,253,480,000 (2013: HK$1,426,764,000), dividend
payable to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of
HK$12,813,000 in 2013 (2014: Nil), consideration payable
for acquisition of a subsidiary of HK$2,210,000 in 2013
(2014: Nil) and deposit received from disposing leasehold
land and buildings of HK$13,710,000 in 2013 (2014: Nil).
Remaining balances mainly consist of receipts in advance
from customers, payable of staff salaries and benefits, sales
commission, storage and transportation, etc.

An aged analysis of trade creditors at the end of the
reporting period based on the invoice date is as follows:

—E—MF —E—=F

2014 2013

FET FA&T

HK$’000 HK$'000

T ={@H 0 — 3 months 1,037,240 1,257,189
N = 4 — 6 months 203,909 159,460
7518 A A Over 6 months 12,331 10,115
1,253,480 1,426,764

%H%%&%TWE#ME%%@
REZ B EE KA

Included in creditors are the following amounts denominated
in currency other than the functional currency of the group
entities to which they relate:
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24. FESERARA R EEFTE R )

24.Creditors and Accrued Charges

(Continued)

—E-[mE —T—=
2014 2013
FExT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EIT usD 154,220 221,851
25.0TE€®m I A 25.Derivative Financial Instruments
B ERE
Current Non-current
—E-OF —T-=F ZZT-—-MNF T =£F
2014 2013 2014 2013
FHExT T FET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DA Derivatives under
BB THE hedge accounting
M Z=E B A 4 Interest rate swap contracts 2,354 3,063 1,525 994
HfTHETHE Other derivatives (not under
(FE LA EH hedge accounting)
BiHEEE)
BEEEHAY Cross currency swap contract 14,753 - 8,038 26,359
17,107 3,063 9,563 27,353

LIREREY 2R 2=
HEH

AEBEZEBHERTILZ AT
RiIFHA K BBKERN EREin
REENE  FIRITZETHEITE
SBRITEEZRSKBEREER
K- ZFANZHERKHEDREAY
MIRITIEE 2 Rk —B(ANE(E R
TEEZAEZHE  BERMNEER
HR) - EERA/NEEHENES
MEH TR - SWRBE PG EHELE
ERETEAABRSRELHTTA -

o

Interest rate swap contracts under cash
flow hedges

The Group entered into a number of interest rate swap
contracts with the commercial banks to minimise its exposure
to cash flow changes of its floating-rate Hong Kong dollars
bank loans from banks by swapping floating interest rates
to fixed interest rates. The terms of these contracts were
negotiated to match with those of the hedged bank loans
with the same notional amounts to principal amounts of
bank loans, currency and interest rate index. The directors
consider that the interest rate swap contracts are highly
effective hedging instruments and have designated them
as cash flow hedging instruments for hedge accounting
purpose.
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U\iﬁﬁuméﬁiﬂlﬂ 2R EE
A4 #)

HREAFNEEB 2 RS TRERRKM
T EHNAREER - BE-T—
mWE+—_A=+—HLFE B
B 0 38 2% 58 45178,00008 T
(Z=2—=%: H5M0m%ﬁ)
A H th 2 T UR 26 A FE AR AR 2
2 - EEBEH R ﬂ%%ﬁi
B 1% AR R B HAER R A N B B #3 R
BEEAAR °

PR HIR - M SE26FTH BB 2 $R1T
EEBERERELHFEBET 2R
B 71,444,584,00006 T( —Z & — =
£ :1,251,250,000% 7T ) © % &
NIReREH R 2 FEREHELH 2

YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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25.Derivative Financial Instruments

(Continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash
flow hedges (continued)

The hedges were highly effective in hedging cash flow
exposure to interest rate movements. Net adjustments
on cash flow hedges of HK$178,000 for the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013: HK$11,514,000) have been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity. The directors expected the accumulated sum is to
be released to profit or loss at various dates in the coming
maturity periods after the reporting period.

Included in borrowings as disclosed in note 26 were bank
loans of HK$1,444,584,000 (2013: HK$1,251,250,000) which
were under cash flow hedges and the major terms of the
interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

TEERAT

LD BHA WEEE IRER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
R-Z-m&E+-A=+-A

At 31 December 2014

261,000,000 7T T FNA=FH BIL=EAZEBRITRERE 1.83E
HK$261,000,000 30.09.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR* 1.83%
29,000,000/&7C T FAA=TH BIL=lA 2 EBRITRERE 1.958
HK$29,000,000 30.09.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 1.95%
41,667,0007% 7T —T—"E—RA=thH BIT=EA 2 EBRITRERE 2778
HK$41,667,000 29.01.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.77%
80,000,000/ 7T —E-R"F=ZA=1+Z=H BL=EAZBBRTRERE 2.70E
HK$80,000,000 23.03.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.70%
42,750,000 7T —T—X"FMA+=AH AL A2 BBRITRAZERE 2748
HK$42,750,000 12.04.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.74%
28,500,000/ 7T —T—X"¥MA+=A BIL=EA 2 BERITRERE 2228
HK$28,500,000 12.04.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.22%
110,000,000/ 7T —tEN\A+HMA BIL=EA 2 BBRITRERE 2612
HK$110,000,000 14.08.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.61%
50,417,000/ 7T —tFNA=+—H BT=EAZBEERITRAERE 2.62[2
HK$50,417,000 21.08.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
41,250,000/ 7T —tENA+=H BILT=EA 2 EBRTRERE 2.62F2
HK$41,250,000 13.09.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
70,000,000 7T —tE&+A+NA BIL=EAZBEBRTRERE 2.67E
HK$70,000,000 19.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.67%
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5074/ T A 25.Derivative Financial Instruments
(Continued)
J«)&E@u.bgﬁ;‘qﬂ ZRZEE Interest rate swap contracts under cash
Ha ?R,J (%) flow hedges (Continued)
[ELE) ZH#A [8: 5=\ IHRER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
R-E-mF+=-A=+—H
At 31 December 2014
60,000,000/& 7T “T—tE+RA=1+—H BIT=EA 2 BBRITRFFE 2.68E
HK$60,000,000 31.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.68%
24,000,000/ 7T —Z—R"FRATEtH BT ANER 2 BBRITRERE 2.262
HK$24,000,000 17.05.2016 HK$6-month HIBOR 2.26%
56,000,000/ 7T e N = BITAEA 2 BARITRERE 1.692
HK$56,000,000 17.05.2016 HK$6-month HIBOR 1.69%
300,000,000/ 7T —hERA=1H BL=ER 2 BEARTRERE 3.05&
HK$300,000,000 30.05.2019 HK$3-month HIBOR 3.05%
100,000,000 T —\fHA=1=H BIT—EA 2 EBRITRERE 2.54F
HK$100,000,000 23.05.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.54%
150,000,000/ 7T —N\EXRA+=R BT—EAZEBRITRERE 3202E
HK$150,000,000 13.06.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.22%
AfE ZH#A WEEE THER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
R=%-=%+=A=1-H
At 31 December 2013
387,000,0008 7T —E-R"EAA=1H =R 2 BAERITRSERFS 1.832
HK$387,000,000 30.09.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 1.83%
43,000,000/ 7T “Z-RFAA=TH BIL=EA 2 BBRITRERE 1.95
HK$43,000,000 30.09.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 1.95%
75,000,000/ 7T —T—R"F-RA=t+hAH BT=EA 2 BEBRITRAERE 2.77E
HK$75,000,000 29.01.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.77%
140,000,000/ 7T —E—RF=ZA=+=H BIL=ER 2 BEARTRERE 2.70E
HK$140,000,000 23.03.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.70%
69,750,000/ 7T T "FMA+Z=AH BIT=EA 2 BERTRERE 2,74
HK$69,750,000 12.04.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.74%
46,500,000/ 7T - RFMA+=H BT=ERZBEBRTRERE 222
HK$46,500,000 12.04.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.22%
98,000,000/ 7T T ~FRA+tH BILAER 2 BBRITRERE 1.692
HK$98,000,000 17.05.2016 HK$6-month HIBOR 1.69%
120,000,000/ 7% “T—+FN\A+MA BIL=EAZBERITRERE 2.64[2
HK$120,000,000 14.08.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.64%
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25.Derivative Financial Instruments

(Continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash
flow hedges (continued)

[ELED ZH#A [8:5=3-\ THRHES
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
R-E-=%+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2013

55,000,000 7% —ET—+FNA=ZT+—H BIL=EA 2 BERITRERE 2.65E
HK$55,000,000 21.08.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.65%
45,000,000/ 7T “T—+tFART=H BIL=EA 2 BBRTRERE 2.66F2
HK$45,000,000 13.09.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.66%
70,000,000/ 7T —T—+E&+A+NH BIL=EA 2 BARTRERE 2.67E
HK$70,000,000 19.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.67%
60,000,000/ 7T S s Bl e = BIL=EA 2 BEARTRERE 2.68E
HK$60,000,000 31.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.68%
42,000,000/ 7T ZE—"FRATtH BITANER 2 BBRITRERE 2.262
HK$42,000,000 17.05.2016 HK$6-month HIBOR 2.26%

BHEHEHN
B

AEBFIUEERREH  ERE
BEHEENE
RSN B A R A 87 & S S B
RITERXR - R=ZT—WF+=A=
T—B ANAREEHES 2K
#3,568,000/8 TT( —F — =4 : &

B R EEE — B0

*

HIBOR represents Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

Cross currency swap contract

Cross Currency Swap

The Group entered into a cross currency swap contract as
part of the Group’s treasury operation for the purpose of
minimising the exposure to foreign currency risk and to
hedge economically against the foreign currency bank loan.
As at 31 December 2014, the change in fair value of the
contract recorded a gain of HK$3,568,000 (2013: loss of

826,359,000/ 7T ) B A 18 2 A T
R RANEAREET LREHEE
BEER Bt - @EBEERE
HMEERSESNBRARER
HELKRSSNER  A5EEERE
TEHI A S sk E IR RS D TER &Y
HATR S 4R 5 BR O BE SR 1T B SR EE £ Y
HNE YR 25 ok EF IR 8E o

HK$26,359,000) which was recognised in profit or loss. The
agreement, when contracted by the Group, was locked in a
pre-determined return. Accordingly, although the valuation
of the cross currency swap contract may give rise to a gain
or loss at a particular date within the term of the contract,
the management of the Group expected that such gain or
loss will eventually be substantially offset with the exchange
gain or loss arising from the foreign currency bank loan at
the end of the contract.
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5.7/ T B

BUEEHEHN e

M S HA ()
RMEEIR - REBEREZ HARRZ
W ERA H 2 EEMT

25.Derivative Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Cross currency swap contract (continued)

Cross Currency Swap (Continued)

The notional amount of the outstanding cross currency swap
contract to which the Group is committed at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

HE FH A WEE S XHFE E=
Notional amount Maturity Receiving floating Pay floating  Exchange rates
R-Z-—DF

+t=A=t+—-H

At 31 December 2014

BT=1EA BIL=@Az B/ #Brs.01
BBR - BBSW + &EBIRITRIZERF S+
1.25% 1.80%

AUD 3-month HK$3-month AUD/HK$8.01

BBR - BBSW + 1.25% HIBOR + 1.80%

£13,527,00027T —T—REF
MA=+1H

Buy AUD13,527,000 29.04.2016

R-ZE—=F

+=A=t+-H

At 31 December 2013

§22,545,000;27T —E-REF
MmAE=+hA

Buy AUD22,545,000 29.04.2016

BT =1{E A BILE=EAZ BT,/ 7578.01
BBR - BBSW + EBRITRIFRFE+
1.25% 1.80%

AUD 3-month HK$3-month AUD/HK$8.01

BBR - BBSW + 1.25%

HIBOR + 1.80%

AEHE BRI ER LN RETERE
HIR I W E E AR RE -

EROTETADRAAEFE - 1R
BARERRN R-T—HF+=
A=+t—RBELlEFEIAZFESD
BERE R (GFHBEHF2HME30)

The Group does not currently designate any hedging
relationship on the cross currency swap contract for the
purpose of hedging accounting.

The above derivatives are measured at fair value. The
classification of the measurement of the above derivatives at
31 December 2014 is Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy (see
note 30 for details).
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26.6 & 26.Borrowings
—ET—F —E—=F
2014 2013
FET FA&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEBFBRITER Borrowings included bank loans
METER and an entrusted loan:
RITER Bank loans 3,067,133 2,723,112
BBt 2 B3R 2R Discounted bills with recourse 16,277 -
LZEER Entrusted loan = 35,236
3,083,410 2,758,348
45 Unsecured 3,083,410 2,758,348
RITERERN The bank loans are repayable as follows*:
LA B R
—FR Within one year 1,794,837 1,470,941
—FREMER More than one year but not
exceeding two years 612,977 709,392
MEBRERFNRN More than two years but not
more than five years 659,319 542,779
3,067,133 2,723,112
ARIR @ AN T+ ¢ The discounted bills are
repayable as follows*:
—F R Within one year 16,277 _
ZAERER The entrusted loan was
LA EEE repayable as follows*:
—F R Within one year - 35,236
3,083,410 2,758,348
B AR —FNFE Less: Borrowings due within one year
WENERBEE shown under current liabilities
ZEE (1,811,114) (1,506,177)
WA EREBEZEE  Borrowings shown under
non-current liabilities 1,272,296 1,252,171

* A BRENRGETE M EIE *
ERAHEE -

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates
set out in the borrowing agreements.

REEBRITERZFEFNEA()EBR
TREFRBEIN0.I0%EFBHRITR
EF/EM2.05% (ZF—=F : FF
BITEEFREMOI%EEBIRITHE
EWRWBM2%) : (i) F s RITRE 2
FEIN.25% : (i) IR 1T R EIF
BN1.4% : K (iv);BITBBR-BBSW N
1.25% ° A E KR T MEZ6(EA
(Z2E—=F: EmMAZ6MA) &
F—R - R-_ZBE—=F+_-_H=+
—H ZXEREREEFENEL 1%
=

The Group’s bank loans carry annual interests at the
range of (i) HIBOR plus 0.90% to HIBOR plus 2.05%
(2013: HIBOR plus 0.9% to HIBOR plus 2%); (ii) Singapore
Interbank Money Market Offer Rate (“SIBOR") plus 1.25%;
(iii) London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 1.4%;
and (iv) AUD-BBR-BBSW plus 1.25%. Interest is repriced in
the period from two weeks up to six months (2013: two
weeks up to six months). As at 31 December 2013, there
was an entrusted loan which carried annual interest at a
fixed rate of 4.1%.
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261%%(%5) 26. BorrOWingS (Continued)
—ET-mF —F=F
2014 2013
BB FI= Effective interest rates
FEEEE Fixed-rate borrowings 1.16% £2.79% 1.16%%£4.10%
1.16% to 2.79% 1.16% to 4.10%
EEEE Variable-rate borrowings 1.28%%2.37% 1.69%%2.77%

1.28% to 2.37% 1.69% to 2.77%

& & 6 $51,248,688,0005 7T( —
— =4 :1,021,118,0005 7T ) 7E
BE  BEAKHBR—FREH

= Included in borrowings are HK$1,248,688,000 (2013:
)= HK$1,021,118,000) at fixed-rate borrowings with the
contractual maturity dates within 1 year.

7e(
7T)

o

BEBETILIFAEBEERR A Included in borrowings are the following amounts
2 e EE 08 denominated in currency other than the functional currency

of the group entities to which they relate:

—ZT—NF —T—=F

2014 2013

FH&T FAET

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT HKD 140,000 =
=T usD 112,412 30,882

D AUD 86,139 155,981




Bt 7§63 % FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2014 ANNUAL REPORT
27 EERIEBEE

U B4 EEE R X BETH
HRE(EE)RRAFR LFR
BHED

YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FEMBREME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

27.Deferred Tax Liabilities

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

A BEEF
ZHARH
MEBERE Withholding
Accelerated tax on
tax BIEFE undistributed Hith st
depreciation Tax losses profits Others Total
T THT THT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i)
(Note)
RZZ—=%F—F—HAt 1 January 2013 2,305 (295) 6,020 3,243 11,273
RO REEEITERT  Reversal of withholding tax
upon distribution - - (2,858) - (2,858)
GENEIES S (Credit) charge to profit or loss (85) 131 4,260 (607) 3,699
RZZ—=F At 31 December 2013
+-A=1+—"H 2,220 (164) 1,422 2,636 12,114
RO REFEEITERTS  Reversal of withholding tax
upon distribution - - (2,954) - (2,954)
(FFA)IBRER (Credit) charge to profit or loss 958 (264) 3,940 (605) 4,029
RZZ—MmF At 31 December 2014
+-A=1+—"H 3,178 (428) 8,408 2,031 13,189
Mzt - H b EBRERNRUEN B A AR Note: Others mainly represent deferred tax liabilities arising from fair

H
AR EFHBERRBEE(ANELE
B BNTEekDE  BEK
s

B MEL ZEERAAE -

MEIGEMBHRAEME » BT
ECHBBEERBEDEHE - A
BV BHRERAR 2 BEERBEL S
T :

value adjustments on assets acquired (i.e. intangible assets,
prepaid lease payments and property, plant and equipment) on
acquisition of subsidiaries.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred taxation assets and
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of
the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

—E-mEF —T—=F
2014 2013
FBT T

HK$'000 HK$’'000

EETHTEBRE Deferred tax liabilities 13,189 12,114
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27. BEEHIBEEE 2

RZZE—WNF+=—A=+—H"
AEBBRFERMBEEED
808,647,000 7L( = & — = 4 :
697,754,000 7T ) A 4 3K 85 K %
e RZE—WFEF+=—A=+—
HG BERR—ABHMERRREE
182,593,000 T( = & — = F :
992,000/ 7T ) B2 AN &= B 1 7] 2 E
MR EERINAEEHBEE -
R PR K B8 78 B oK 2R A9 & A =
oK A 1 7R #4 806,054,000 7T
(—ZF— =% 696,762,000/ 7T )
BETRIBEE - AERMEHEE
701,267,000 T( =& — = F :
581,062,000/ 7T ) AJ #& [R HA 4% 82 -
BRERN =T — NFEKZAEE -

ANEE BRI B BOE L R
HPEMNBARAE-—ZEEN\F—A
— B #E B BREX £934 A1) 2k A AR S,
% T B A Bl R 5 B v A AE SRR I
FRIE - FBEATEB BRI RF S
&k B HE5% 2 10% 89 Tl 2R 40 4 78 4=
o R E B3R A A5 B A2 5 #
EIER=EERM MEREER
AERAGRATRET S BE - AL
B ERPEMNBARE ST )N
F—A—BEERONETARES
iR 1R 28 %% F2,154,060,00058 7T( =
T — = £ :1,822,620,0005% JT ) &
RIRIERTE o

—T-mrEsR

HEZZ—WFE+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

27.Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued)

At 31 December 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$808,647,000 (2013: HK$697,754,000)
available to offset against future profits. As at 31 December
2014, a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of HK$2,593,000 (2013: HK$992,000) of such losses
from a Hong Kong subsidiary which set off with taxable
temporary differences of the relevant group entity. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$806,054,000 (2013: HK$696,762,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in the unrecognised tax losses, HK$701,267,000 (2013:
HK$581,062,000) may be carried forward indefinitely and
the remaining balance will expire at various dates up to and
including 2019.

Deferred taxation on undistributed profits of subsidiaries
has been recognised taking into accounts the dividends to
be distributed from profits earned by certain subsidiaries
in Mainland China starting from 1 January 2008 under
the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law of Mainland
China that requires withholding tax with tax rate ranging
from 5% to 10% upon the distribution of such profits to
the shareholders. Deferred taxation has not been recognised
in respect of certain undistributed retained profits earned
by the subsidiaries in the Mainland China starting from
1 January 2008 amounting to HK$2,154,060,000 (2013:
HK$1,822,620,000) as the directors are of the opinion that
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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28.Share Capital

EE ERITREE
Authorised Issued and fully paid
—Z—JO4F
RZFT—=% —ZT-mF —F—=
2014 & 2013 2014 2013
FET FHET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHEEEO0.10/8 T 2 %D Shares of HK$0.10 each 80,000 56,276 56,228

FRARRBZEHTRABAT

Movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are as follows:

BHEE

Number &8

of shares Amount

& FAT

‘000 HK$'000

W—_ZE—=F—H—H At 1 January 2013 561,865 56,186

Tk s Ak (P eka) Exercise of share options (Note a) 300 30

PARR A B (Bt aED) Scrip dividend (Note b) 116 12

R-B—=F+—-_F=+—H At 31 December 2013 562,281 56,228

1T AR AE (B 5EC) Exercise of share options (Note c) 474 48

R_ZF—WE+=—A=+—H At 31 December 2014 562,755 56,276
Bt - Notes:

(a)

RBE-_ZT—=F+-A=1+—
B It F E - £ 5300,0001) 8 %
EETE ARFREE S RIET
150,000% * 40,0008% 110,000
BEREE 0BT ZRG %
{EfE 5 Bl A4.050/8 7T  1.950/% 7T
$4.536 7T ©

RZZ—=FtA ' REUBRKES
E(HBHERAPAE T —=4F
NAZ+—RZ@EK)  RARF
RRBEWDBEORE=-Z—=F
BRI & AR BBF » 3£17116,0000%
FREEC10B T 2D - BIIE
B7.6378 7T °

REBEE-_Z—NF+=-A=1+—
B Ik F E - £ BF474,00005 B8 A&
BRETE - ARRE LS BIE1T
400,0000% K74,0000% & B @ &
0108 T2 R%D  BRIEES A
1.5907% 7T & 4.536/8 7T °

FECRTROBEMBHEREE
BZRERNZFERSEA -

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2013, 300,000 share
options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 150,000
shares, 40,000 shares and 110,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at a price of HK$4.050, HK$1.950 and HK$4.536
per share, respectively.

(b) InJuly 2013, 116,000 shares of HK$0.10 each were issued at a
price of HK$7.637 per share upon election by shareholders to
receive shares in the Company in lieu of the 2012 final dividend
in cash, pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as detailed in a
circular dated 21 June 2013.

() During the year ended 31 December 2014, 474,000 share
options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 400,000 shares
and 74,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price
of HK$1.590 and HK$4.536 per share respectively.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares
in issue in all respects.
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AEBEEREEEAARKRBBENL
BERERAERBRRFRES
HEAKRERFREAELE -
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HEZZ—WFE+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

29.Capital Risk Management Objectives

and Policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
mainly include the borrowings disclosed in note 26, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves including retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new share issues as well as the issue of new
debts or the redemption of existing debts.
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30.Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

—F-mF —F=
2014 2013
FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SMEE Financial assets
B R ER R Loans and receivables (including cash
(BEERESRIREEEEAE)  and cash equivalents) 4,987,193 4,793,436
AHEERE Available-for-sale investment - 24,113
S@as Financial liabilities
BN Amortised cost 4,476,495 4,311,083
TESMT A : Derivative financial instruments:
—EERAHHAITA — designated as hedging instruments 3,879 4,057
— JER g R A — not under hedge accounting 22,791 26,359

R EEEEREBER

AEET T ABHEE KRR NE
WERE - EEYRR - TESE
TR -AHHERE  BHRTHE
R RITBHREAE  BERKK
BE ZELRIAFBEREWE
WE - ZEeRmITAERAERES
EmERR(INERR - T X @R K
HERAR) EERRERSE
TR - TIE 2 RIEZE
Rz BEK BEREEEREEZ
ZRk - AR RR G B REUE
BN - AEEAEYZ TSR R
S HEE R EZER T B E

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and bills
receivables, other debtors, derivative financial instruments,
available-for-sale investment, short-term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, creditors and borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
There has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risk or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk

HEZZ—WFE+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014
30, T B
MR EE B ZEBUER
(%)
T 3% BB
HMEE [ B

AR E)FE T M B R B LA INEE HE 1T 8
%&ﬁ%'ﬁ$%lﬁﬁwmm
B o REBMAA%(ZT—=F14%)
%%%M%mmﬁﬁ%%m%EQ
BB EHESIE - mAI85% (=T —
=F : 81%) B LB S E QR
KITNEEEHEI(E -

AEBUINEINENEBEERR
BRI E HR Z BREE R A8 R it
BE - -RBE_T—=F1+-A=
T—HLFE AEECFTIER
BHHEH - R RINER S M E
2 VRTTHIENIRITEENINE
R\ B K B o B IR JE R AR B S
KRk YN ETERZ B
BEARMSNE L

BUBES 17

ARBMEBELRT  E7T AR

M&%n%f%ﬂ%o?%ﬁﬁ$
DA 2T R E SN T

&mﬁ:- =F 5% )MBIESE o
5% (ZEB—= 5% ) &% 12 8 4

SNEME R A IR 2 & B E# BT
fly o BURE DT EIE 8 KA B LASN
BIEMNEEIEE - HERERS%
—E & 5%)BEELIRA
o BRKE DT B IERUR R R IE
WZEE - RITH R - B ERRRE
B (LURITEHE 2 HEE IS 54 44K
EEDRRRITIEERRIN) - TEFAE
MERT » THESIENEEE L
R EEHAES%(ZE—=F:5%)
By - B & s R ARG M - a7EF
EEMBETANER - EURER
HAEEEHKS%(ZF—=F:5%)

B - 6 B B 0 F B A S AR R 0
pe-

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 4% (2013: 4%) of the Group's
sales are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities making the sale, whilst
almost 85% (2013: 81%) of purchases are denominated in
the relevant group entities’ functional currency.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. During
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group entered
into a cross currency swap contract to reduce its exposure
to potential variability of foreign currency risk arising from
changes in foreign exchange exposure in AUD denominated
bank borrowings. The management continuously monitors
the foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of AUD, USD,
RMB and Hong Kong dollars. The following table details the
Group'’s sensitivity to a 5% (2013: 5%) increase and decrease
in functional currency of respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2013: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the period end for a 5% (2013: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes trade and bills
receivables, bank balances, creditors as well as borrowings
(except for those AUD denominated bank loans hedged
economically with the cross currency swap contract). A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit after
taxation where functional currency strengthens 5% (2013: 5%)
against the relevant foreign currency for net liability position
and vice versa. For a 5% (2013: 5%) weakening of functional
currency against the relevant foreign currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit after taxation.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

miERkE ) Market risk (Continued)
SMER R (2) Currency risk (Continued)
BBEDN(E) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
—2-nmF —F—=F
2014 2013
FET FH&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
I usb 8,447 6,658
AR RMB 4,795 9,977
BT Hong Kong dollars 5,533 (406)

DY B S E A R FRIEAIE
HEREE QRN ERIIE A%
EEmMEmEIINERR - 2 AR
HBBE®E A% (T — =4 :
5%) B 7N 55 B bR B 12 i B 8 18
1n57,363,000%8 (= F — = F ¢
61,265,000/ 7T) * Rz AlE REH
RE% -

AEEZERRERENIBERES
TR AH 2 M ERRREKE

ERERA BRELARTTR
BRERBR - EBE TR
FNESNERR -

The Group is also exposed to currency risk concerning the
amounts due from/to group entities, which are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. When RMB strengthens 5% (2013:
5%) against the relevant foreign currency, profit after
taxation of the Group will increase by HK$57,363,000 (2013:
HK$61,265,000) and vice versa.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure on the cross
currency swap contract is disclosed in other price risk of this
note.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and bank loans (see note
26 for details of these borrowings). However, since the bank
deposits and the majority of the fixed-rate bank loans will
mature within one year, the management considers the risk
is insignificant to the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank deposits carried interest at prevailing market
deposit rate and floating-rate bank loans (see notes 22 and
26 for details). In order to keep the Group’s bank loans at
fixed rates, the Group entered into interest rate swaps to
hedge against its exposures to changes in cash flows of
certain bank loans. The critical terms of these interest rate
swaps are the same to those of hedged bank loans. Interest
rate swaps are designated as effective hedging instruments
and hedge accounting is used (see note 25 for details).

The Group’s bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors consider
the Group’s exposure of the short-term bank deposits
with original maturity of less than three months and bank
balances to interest rate risk is not significant as interest
bearing bank balances are within short maturity period and
thus it is not included in sensitivity analysis.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For interest
bearing bank deposits with original maturity of more than
three months and borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole period. A 50 basis points (2013: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.
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30.Financial Instruments (continved)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates on interest bearing borrowings (excluding
bank loans under cash flow hedges of HK$1,444,583,000
(2013: HK$1,251,250,000)) and short-term bank deposits
with original maturity of more than three months had been
50 basis points (2013: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all of
other variables were held constant, the profit after taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2014 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$1,443,000 (2013: decrease/
increase by approximately HK$1,837,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
interest bearing short-term bank deposits and variable-rate
borrowings which are not hedged against their exposures
to cash flow interest rate risk at the end of the reporting
period.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its derivative
financial instruments. The Group’s other price risk is mainly
concentrated on the interest rate swaps and cross currency
swap contracts.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the

exposure to other price risks for derivatives at the end of the
reporting period:

o if (i) the forward exchange rate of the cross currency
swap contract had been 5% higher; (ii) the forward
exchange rate of the cross currency swap contract
had been 5% lower; and (iii) the interest rate of the
cross currency swap contract had been 50 basis points
higher, and all other variables were held constant, the
profit after taxation for the year ended 31 December
2014 would (i) increase by HK$5,625,000 (2013:
HK$9,537,000), (ii) decrease by HK$5,426,000 (2013:
HK$8,961,000) and (iii) increase by HK$208,000 (2013:
HK$633,000), respectively.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

° if the forward interest rate of interest rate swap
contracts had been 50 basis points (2013: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the debit side of hedging reserve
would decrease/increase by HK$12,703,000 (2013:
HK$10,615,000) as a result of fair value change on
interest rate swap contracts.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to perform an obligation by the counterparties are
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated the responsible personnel for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and other debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of bills receivables, the credit risk is limited as the
Group has procedures and policies in place to ensure they
are from banks or rural cooperative banks with acceptable
credit quality.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are mainly banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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30.Financial Instruments (continved)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and bills receivables mainly from banks with good
reputation in Mainland China, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk on trade and
other debtors. Trade receivables consist of a large number
of customers, which spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2014, the Group had available
unutilised bank facilities of approximately HK$1,801,845,000
(2013: HK$1,562,098,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. For
derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted
net cash outflows are presented.
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30.£@ T B o) 30.Financial Instruments (continued)
R EEEEREBEER Financial Risk Management Objectives
(#) and policies (continued)
hEESEEEE) Liquidity risk (Continued)
nEBEERAEREER Liquidity and interest risk tables
—EULE  WENLE  ANFEER
—-ERNLE  FEERE TRELE RERELE
MEFHE FEA-F  Morethan  More than Total
Weighted —fEAR Tmonth  fyearbut 2yearshut  contractual KEE
average Less than to less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 1 year 2 years 5years  cash flows amount
% Tin TR Tin Fin Tn Tin
%  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
R=%-BE At 31.12.2014
TZR=1-H
FteRak Non-derivative financial liabilities
EREXREMENE  Creditors and other payables - 706,413 686,672 - - 1,393,085 1,393,085
A& Borrowings
-%8 - at variable rate 1.88 44,843 626,825 582,080 638,901 1,892,649 1,834,722
-8 - at fixed rate 159 1,073,833 75,004 57,328 48,019 1,254,184 1,248,688
1,825,089 1,388,501 639,408 686,920 4,539,918 4,476,495
fTEIR-BLE Derivatives - net settlement
ki Cross currency swap contract 3,489 11,382 8,147 - 23,018 2,191
fTETR-MEEE  Derivatives - gross settlement
L Interest rate swap contracts
—-RA - inflow (2,752) (26,733) (20,100) (14,630) (64,215) (62,484)
— i - outflow 3,043 29,024 20,386 15,223 68,176 66,363
291 2,291 786 593 3,961 3,879
RZB-=F At 31.12.2013
tZB=1+-A
it eRAR Non-derivative financial liabilities
ERERRAMEME  Creditors and other payables - 810,350 742,384 - - 15273 1,552,734
£ Borrowings
-i%8 - at variable rate 223 35,247 517,237 692,961 553,906 1,799,351 1,737,231
) - at fixed rate 1.63 887,085 75,739 41,060 20,774 1,024,658 1,021,118
1,732,682 1,335,360 734,021 574,680 4,376,743 4,311,083
fTETA-BLE Derivatives - net settlement
ety Cross currency swap contract 1979 721 11,050 6,543 26,784 26,359
fTETB-MEEE  Derivatives - gross settlement
HEERHaA Interest rate swap contracts
=iA - inflow (2,047) (20,280) (14.813) (7,559) (44,699) (43,602)
— i - outflow 2,371 22,978 16,100 7362 48,811 47,659
324 2,698 1,287 (197) 4112 4,057
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30.Financial Instruments (continved)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The Group’s derivative financial instruments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.

DAERERERERGARE

LRERE ARE AAEHR  Fair value valuation techniques
Financial liabilities Fair value as at Hierarchy and key input(s)
R=g-mE R-F-=F
+=A=t-8 +-F=F-8
31.12.2014 31.12.2013
REAEBRAE  BRBREF BE(REH R =R BUUGRE  AABARE AR
PERITESR =67 g8 h RASEL EERR (fHiEA) R AR
TAMHREE ~ 3,879,000 T ; — 4,057,000/87C : 2 B (e 5 R ] B AR s o
aH %?Eﬁ)&%%@*‘J%(E%@%EEL@%EEE)
fbat o
Interest rate Liabilities (under Liabilities (under Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
swap contracts hedge accounting) hedge accounting) — are estimated based on forward interest
classified as - HK$3,879,000; HK$4,057,000; rates (from observable yield curves at

derivative financial
instruments in
the consolidated
statement of
financial position

N NN S 8
NEAITESR — 22,791,000} 7T ;
TARNBEERE
BH4

Cross currency Liabilities
swap contract - HK$22,791,000;
classified as
derivative financial
instruments in
the consolidated
statement of
financial position#

# BASERERSHEZETERER=
& 5 % JLBBR-BBSW 3 511.25/2 5t
BHIRITAESBIMK =MAS
TBEBRITRERE S M1.80E T
BRBLEZEDH -

the end of the reporting period) and
contracted interest rates, discounted at
an applicable discount rate taking into
account the credit risk of the counter-
parties and of the Group as appropriate.

BE —4 BRBLNE - RRBEERENTRRS
— 26,359,000/ T : 7 RASE 7 EERR (HER)HER
R R AR R ((aR SRR AT 8
R R iR ) e AINEER R
BRE(RERME EAR ) Mkt o
Liabilities Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash
- HK$26,359,000; flows are estimated based on forward
currency exchange rate and market
interest rate (from observable yield
curves at the end of the reporting
period) and contracted foreign currency
exchange rate and market interest rate,
discounted at an applicable discount
rate taking into account the credit risk
of the counter-parties and of the Group
as appropriate.

Tﬂdi
=

# Swapping AUD notional amount with an interest at AUD 3-month
BBR-BBSW plus 1.25% to HK$ notional amount with an interest
at HK$3-month HIBOR plus 1.80% at a fixed foreign exchange
rate for the principal notional amount.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

In addition, the Group’s investment in unlisted equity interest
classified as available-for-sale investment was measured at
cost less impairment as at 31 December 2013 because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates was so significant
that the directors of the Company were of the option that
the fair value could not be measured reliably.

Financial assets and liabilities subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements

The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association (“ISDA”) Master Agreements for its derivatives
financial instruments. The amounts recognised for the
derivatives financial instruments do not meet the criteria for
offsetting in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position since there is no cash collateral pledged in respect of
the Group's derivative transactions.
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BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

31.Share Option Scheme

On 25 May 2012, the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting approved the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) and
the termination of the old share option scheme (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) which was adopted by the Company
on 3 September 2002. Options granted under the Old Share
Option Scheme prior to such termination will continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules of the Old
Share Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme will
expire on 24 May 2022 in order to comply with the terms of
Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange. The purpose of the New Share
Option Scheme is to recognise and motivate the participants
and to provide incentives and a direct economic interest in
attaining the long term business objectives of the Company.
The principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme are
similar to those of the Old Share Option Scheme, the Board
may grant options to any eligible employees of the Group,
including directors of the Company or its subsidiaries,
legal, financial, management and technical advisers and
consultants, major customers and raw material and machinery
suppliers of the Group, to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The exercise period of options granted shall not
be more than ten years from the date of grant and the Board
may impose restrictions on the exercise of options during the
period options may be exercised. A nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of options. The
subscription price of the option share is not less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares on the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of the shares. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted may not
exceed in nominal amount of 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the date of approval of the New Share
Option Scheme. However, the total maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
shares options must not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital from time to time. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue from time to time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders.
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31. R AEFT &l e

RIZE BB AR AT 81 2 B AU B
BB MSEEER R AIRIEER
Pt &) 2 AR T LATTEE ©

31.Share Option Scheme (continued)

AR Z BB 2 HARTTER
Ptz B8 o HARRE 2 #1917

EERSERSHRHEIDT

BE_Z-NF+-A=+—-HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

The share options granted before under the Old Share Option
Scheme vest immediately and will continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the rules of the Old Share
Option Scheme.

A summary of the movements of the outstanding options
and their related weighted average exercise prices during
each of the reporting periods under the Company’s share
option scheme is as follows:

BREHE
Number of share options
RZZ-Bf
RZZE-BF =
-A-H =t-A
HATE FRERE  FABAE  FREHE  HROE
{1/ Outstanding Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Outstanding
RHAH Exercise at during during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2014 the year the year the year  31.12.2014
BT
HKS
EBMRETE  Old Share Option Scheme —FZRERA LA 1590 400,000 - (400,000) - -
17.5.2004
“FFRFTA-TEA 2004 576,000 - - - 576,000
24.10.2005
“ERLEMA=A 4.050 678,000 - - - 678,000
3.4.2007
“TR\E+A=1-H 1950 540,000 - - - 540,000
31.10.2008
ZZZNETARA 453 1,480,000 = (74,000) (20,000) 1,386,000
5.10.2009
3,674,000 - (474,000) (20,0000 3,180,000
#EMIESE  New Share Option Scheme ZE—=4—F+—H
11.1.2013 5942 7,430,000 - - (350,000) 7,080,000
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$
MEFHER  Weighted average exercise
IEE price per share 5.084 - 2.050 5.866 5.19%




Bt 7§63 % FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2014 ANNUAL REPORT

31. BT &l

BE-Z-—=-F+-A=t+—-HLEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

REMBREMRE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BE-ZT—WF+=-F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

31.Share Option Scheme (continued)

BREHA
Number of share options
RZF-=F
R-E-=E +-8
-A-H Er=F
WATE ERERE  FRETE  EREHEH HARTE
{iffff Outstanding  Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Outstanding
RiLAH Exercise at during during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2013 the year the year the year  31.12.2013
AT
HK§
ERJEE  Old Share Option Scheme —EZMERAT+H 1500 400,000 - - - 400,000
17.5.2004
“ETRETA-THA 2.004 576,000 - - - 576,000
24.10.2005
“ZTHENA=H 4.050 828,000 = (150,000) = 678,000
3.4.2007
ZEEN\ETA=T-H 1.950 580,000 = (40,000) = 540,000
31.10.2008
“ETNETAERA 453 1,590,000 - (110,000) - 1,480,000
5.10.2009
3,974,000 - (300,000) - 3,674,000
HBMiEtE  New Share Option Scheme =E—=4—F+—H
11.1.2013 5.942 - 7,520,000 - (90,000) 7,430,000
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$ HKS HKS HK$ HK$
MELHER Weighted average exercise
{168 price per share 3394 5.942 3.948 5.942 5.084
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31. B EST &l

BEBERALENRANEERE

BB ZFHBWT

31.Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of the options held by the directors included in the
above table are as follows:

BE-Z-—NE+-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

BREHE
Number of share options
RZZ-BE
R=B-IF t=A
-B-B S=
AR FRERE FREFE  AHKTE
i Outstanding  Granted  Exercised Outstanding
RLAH Exercise at during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2014 the year the year  31.12.2014
BT (RfzE)
HKS (Note)
ERRETE Old Share Option Scheme “EENERATLA 1,590 300,000 - (300,000) -
17.5.2004
“EZRETA-THA 2004 200,000 - - 200,000
24.10.2005
“ZE+ENA=A 4.050 200,000 = = 200,000
3.4.2007
“ZZ\F+A=1-H 1950 100,000 - - 100,000
31.10.2008
“EENETARA 4536 200,000 - - 200,000
5.10.2009
1,000,000 = (300,000) 700,000
FERETE New Share Option Scheme “E-Z5-At-H
11.1.2013 5.942 600,000 - - 600,000
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31. BT &l

BE-F-=Ft-A=+—HLHFE
For the year ended 31 December 2013

31.Share Option Scheme (continued)

EREHA

Number of share options

et _t
T oy I
i HAE FRCEE  FREAR  MAOE
7% Outstanding  Granted  Exercised Outstanding
at

RiA Exercise at during during
Date of grant pg@ 1.1.2013 the year the year  31.12.2013
BT
HKS
] 0ld Share Option Scheme ZZENERATHA 1590 400,000 - = 400,000
17.5.2004
S S i 2.004 400,000 - = 400,000
24.10.2005
“ZTLENAZA 4,050 400,000 = = 400,000
3.4,007
ZEE\E+A=T-H 1950 200,000 = - 200,000
31.10.2008
“EENETARA 4536 400,000 - - 400,000
5.10.2009
1,800,000 - - 1,800,000
HERE 2 New Share Option Scheme “2-=£-A+-H
11.1.2013 5.942 = 600,000 = 600,000

Mz EEEREHERER -2 —=F
+=—B=t+—HszmAEE 2
B EERIET R ESEFE 2
200,000 B A% - BEER =T
—ME—A—BREERTANITE
= EERREHEREZERL
A 4575 2.1,000,00017 BE AR (E b
800,00017 % A% #E 4R 1% &5 B8 AR M 51
2155 }200,00017 BE B #E 4R 15 3
BREEEE)  TREERS
T—=F+-A=1+—HBlREKKE
BAERTES  YHRRBREZTA
NEEFER o

Note: The number of share options of directors includes 200,000
share options under New Share Option Scheme held by Mr.
Kwong Kwok Chiu, who was an employee on or before 31
December 2013. Mr. Kwong was appointed as an executive
director on 1 January 2014. The number of share options of
employees includes 1,000,000 (of which 800,000 share options
under Old Share Option Scheme and 200,000 share options
under New Share Option Scheme) share options held by Mr.
Li Wai Man, Peter. Mr. Li retired as an executive director on
31 December 2013 and was appointed as a consultant of the
Group on the same day.

FATT {5 B B 4 B HA AT &Y hn e S35 %
BAS.5298 T (ZT—=4 : 7.922
YBI0) o REEE R MARITEBREZ
FHRIGRA L FEH A6.58F (=T —
=% :735%)

HE_Z—=F+-_A=+—81Lt
FE - REBEFERESTE - AQA]
RITEE S M R #ES.942%8 7T [
AERSEE(BEALRNESRE
8 )% A #7,520,00017 B AR # -
RE L B HRAR N T — &R
RETEEABEETONREREALE
#7,755,000/8 7T ©

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the
Company immediately before the dates on which the share
options were exercised was HK$5.529 (2013: HK$7.922). The
options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
average remaining contract life of 6.58 years (2013: 7.35
years).

During the year ended 31 December 2013, a total of 7,520,000
share options were granted to qualified participants,
including the directors and employees of the Company, at
an exercise price of HK$5.942 per share option under the
terms of the New Share Option Scheme. The fair values of
the options determined at the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model were HK$7,755,000.
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31.Share Option Scheme (continued)

All share options granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme vested immediately at the dates of grant with the
exercisable period of ten years from the dates of grant. The
share options granted under the New Share Option Scheme
during the prior year are exercisable commencing from 11
January 2015 to 10 January 2023.

BRstEgz—_E—NFE+-_A= The following inputs into the model were used to calculate
+— EIEEJ*E%%/\QT;. 2 Bl 2 the fair values of share options being granted to qualified
B BRI A 72 B AR = A B A SR participants for the year ended 31 December 2014:

U
RELHBAH
At the date of grant
= &8
Directors Employees
X B HRE Grant date share price 5.8607 7T 5.8607 7T
HK$5.860 HK$5.860
7B Exercise price 5 94235 5T 59425 T
HK$5.942 HK$5.942
T8 B HA Expected life 5.6834F 3.8604F
5.683 years 3.860 years
TEH R i Expected volatility 34.426% 32.475%
B = Dividend yield 3.751% 3.751%
o a8 i 61 2 Risk-free interest rate 0.477% 0.284%
et R e Option type Bl il
Call Call

B BREN DR ERFEAMA
- FBEAERECEER T E
BREAABERMEANEHE LR
BN EENREMTAELE - &
HRBEANEES - 1JaEBER
EERARIEWE -

NREBMREBEE-_ZT—NE+_/A=
+—8 ¢¢&ZE¢$A AR 2 AR
e W SR 42 59 523,878,000/ ;T ( — =
—=4F : 3,877,000/ 7T) °

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used to
estimate the fair values of the options. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair values of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate. Changes in
variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair
values of the options.

The Group recognised the total expenses of HK$3,878,000
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK$3,877,000)
in relation to share options granted by the Company.
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32. 74 32.Commitments
—E-mF —E—=%F
2014 2013
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BREWEYE « BE  Capital expenditure in respect of the
BN EHFEARE  acquisition of property, plant and equipment
ZEARRE and land use rights
—2EI#B4: 4817 - contracted for but not provided in the
RER R TRE consolidated financial statements 225,765 90,439
— B REERETH — authorised but not contracted for 303,059 487,139
528,824 577,578
33. K& RIE 33.0perating Lease Commitments
EEEEREEA The Group as lessee
RERAEEAS - A E 0 T 5 4 = At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
EﬁZ%ﬁE%%ZKE}ﬁ&%%ggﬁ outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
A E AR R R SR EFRIE payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of rented properties which fall due as follows:
= —F—=
2014 2013
FET FHIT
HK$000 HK$'000
— &R Within one year 15,528 12,783
FE_EZERF In the second to fifth year inclusive 25,652 23,269
(HERMEREEA)
hE1E After five years 28,204 32,964
69,384 69,016
BFEAREG L 2HL - HEK Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease terms

REHEHOEAZ=TFTE - and rentals are fixed from four months to thirty years.
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33. A RIE )

REBEE/EEA

RB|ERKR > AEEEABEFH T
AREEREFRIBT LA

33.0perating Lease Commitments
(Continued)
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with a tenant for the following future minimum lease

payments:
—E—F —FE—=F
2014 2013
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
—&FR Within one year 1,380 3,312
FEFERF In the second to fifth year inclusive - 1,242
(BEMEBEEAN)
1,380 4,554

RRF—F  HENNESEORE
BT -

34.FEEA TR B

FW - AEE 5 5 960,000
7T( =T — =4 : 960,000/& 7t ) &
600,000/8 70(=Z— =4 : 600,000
BIL)ZHE TEREERBRAA
([BE)kEEREFRAR( =
B AREZEBTEEREER
EFHAEDFINBEREZEFA

PERRAERS o

TEEEABRARRZEZERA
RRAIZEMERE - REFMZF
TBEEHIEG ©

The properties held have a committed tenant for the next
year.

34.Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group paid rent of HK$960,000
(2013: HK$960,000) and HK$600,000 (2013: HK$600,000)
to Goldex Investments Limited (“Goldex”) and Galsheer
Investments Limited (“Galsheer”) respectively in which Mr.
Ip Chi Shing and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, directors of the Company,
have controlling interests over Goldex and Galsheer
respectively.

The key management personnel are the directors of the
Company and the management executives of the Company.
The details of the remuneration paid to them are set out in
note 6.
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B RS2 T B KET 8 ([ B R IRET
EDRBERESKIN_"FTF
FHoARZz®EEF8I([87E
FHE]) c REHEZEEEAE
BrBENRTAR BAXRAEE
ZERESHFR - £@RS S
FXALZ B - R AR RIKET IR B
ZE B ERMEES MR RN
B REDHE MER=-F
ZERF+ - F— BRI AR
KEZEEF2ERESE -

RRARRHEAEZHEAREE
Tyi R B BTE 2 BIRE ERK
BAFEZKE - LEHBRARZ
KR REEFEZETADL £
RZBRRBEHNFEZES - AEE
ZME— B ERRAZRKENGER
HEFERHSK -

T A8 25 2 A AN B41,067,00078 7T
(== — = 4 : 38,537,000/ 7t )
REAEBIZFTEFRETRA 2 L=
RASHHFAERZETEIEL X
NEER 2B R —FE+
—A=+—8 BBREHEEMLZ
f# 3X530,0008 T( =& — = F :
455,000% 70) AR Tz a8l -
ZEFHEERREHRE I -
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35.Retirement Benefit Plan

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to
the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice
of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
plan operated by the government of Mainland China. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

The costs charged to profit or loss of HK$41,067,000 (2013:
HK$38,537,000) represent contributions paid or payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the plans in respect of the current accounting period. As at
31 December 2014, contributions of HK$530,000 (2013:
HK$455,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not
been paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid over
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

191



192

ER{EIERERRAE —T - FEFR

ZEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZ—WFE+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2014

36. W iE —EHE D F

RZE—=F+=ZA+=H" ' K
SERBEEEELAORBERER
NAE0%ZIRE  RERARE
6,000,000 (4148 & 747,688,000/

7)) RRMBEEABEEIALRK -

WEELAZBERBERRSES

6,308,000/8 TC ° BEIE X & KI5 g
ERABNELEEMBES KB
WU A B IR R AN ER R 575 o

36.Acquisition of a Subsidiary

On 13 December 2013, the Group acquired 60% of
the equity interests of 2 F ZE ¥ & X # 5 B R 2 7] for
consideration of R\MB6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,688,000). This acquisition had been accounted for
using the purchase method. The amount of a gain from a
bargain purchase arising as a result of the acquisition was

HK$6,308,000. fEEZER &K EIAE AR A is engaged in the
manufacture of resin and it was acquired so as to continue
the expansion of the Group’s coatings operations.

FHBT
EEERE Consideration transferred HK$'000
RE Cash 7,688
AU B EARESE Z BB A Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date FHT
EERAGBWOT : of acquisition are as follows: HK$'000
Y~ RS MR (I RE13) Property, plant and equipment (note 13) 38,426
B S Prepaid lease payments 15,388
FE Inventories 1,564
JE U BR SR N EL At R UK BR FR Trade and other receivables 2,404
RITHEBR LIRS Bank balances and cash 940
FE A BR R B B FE AT AR SR Trade and other payables (159)
BE ——FRNEH Borrowings — amount due within one year (35,236)

23,327

FET
WEELE 2 BEWE RS : Gain from a bargain purchase arising on acquisition: HK$'000
EEZEAE Consideration transferred:
LARR & By cash 7,688
n: BEELZAKEIEEMR~AA Plus: Non-controlling interests 9,331

40% 2 FEE R = (40% in EREEXSKEREBRAT)

B EBAFEE Less: Net assets acquired (23,327)
UeHs A 7 s B e Gain from a bargain purchase arising on acquisition (6,308)
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7 58 AR U B 128 BE FE R & Bk A5 AR B PR
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36.Acquisition of a Subsidiary (continued

Gain from a bargain purchase of HK$6,308,000 was
recognised upon completion of the acquisition of & & %
% & B4 Pg B R A B). The gain from a bargain purchase
was mainly attributable to the immediate exit opportunity
offered to the vendor and the consideration that was
mutually agreed between the parties, with reference to the
residual value of the subsidiary acquired. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the above was the key factor
leading to the recognition of a gain from the acquisition.

KB EEER S RBE Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of T

BRARGIEZREFERY BEEVSRBEERAR HK$'000

EAEEREH) Cash consideration paid (Note) 5,478
" ERERE Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired

RREEEER B (940)

4,538

MiE (B2 IR & 82,210,000/ 7T (T A
RZB—=F+ZA=+—HHR
PABEER-_T—HFE—AHK
SEZf -

BHE—_Z—=F+=-A=+—HL
FEMGANBIEEEELANEES
MRA B EA R EINER B R AR
1,174,000 7T © {EUHE B 5T - &
E-FE—=HF+-A=+—HItE
B EEREVAKEEERARL
EEERE -

HKBER=—ZE—=F—A—H=%
K B#EZFT—=F+=ZA=+
—BEFEAFEERL KA
9,956,536,000/ 7T * K& & & 4b Fl| %
/299,205,000 T © HZEELHENE
HARRAMABHBBR_E—=4
—A—BERASESERNER
Weas REBEET - I EREAER
BIRIREELR ©

Note: The remaining cash consideration of HK$2,210,000, which was
included in current liabilities as at 31 December 2013, was
settled by the Group in January 2014.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
a loss amounted to HK$1,174,000 attributable to the additional
business generated by 7ZEEZER S KIAEERAF]. No revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2013 was generated from {2
ELABAEIEER A A since the date of acquisition.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2013, total
group revenue for the year ended 31 December 2013 would
have been HK$9,956,536,000, and profit for the year would
have been HK$299,205,000. The pro forma information
was for illustrative purposes only and was not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2013, nor was it intended to
be a projection of future results.
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36.WE—EMB AR @

REEREBEHMEBRBARASE
MNERWBNBER T2 HE | ha®
RANE  EFEEAECWENY
¥ BEERENTENAREBEMNT
WHE  BEBRBAH AL
BRAaRE - MIFRBER M BRSE
NFER R AREE

—T-mrEsR

36.Acquisition of a Subsidiary (continued

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of
the Group had the new subsidiary been acquired at the
beginning of the current year, the directors had calculated
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments acquired on the basis of the fair values
arising in the initial accounting for the business combination
rather than the carrying amounts recognised in the pre-

acquisition financial statements.

37. HEM B A E]

() R=ZB—=fFFA=+—8" (i)

ANEBEBIE=FTRIZRE
KRB AE#2,100,0007T (4948
& 742,658,000/ 7T ) H & HE R
MEARRIAKFESRBRA
AIDRINAKF D) B2 BE AR HEET
Y EE W o RIIKBESER
HYRRIBED  RRHER
—E—=FXATtB®EK-

(il W=ZFE—=FtA=+H & (i)

SEES—ZBIE=FHIE
&R (E AR #26,500,0007C
(%9 %8 & 133,729,000/ T )
HEERHBRARETESE
BRARAR(ELES]DH
PERERT M B B s o T
EENEHBRRERESE
B RERRGENRZZE—=FN
A=+—HB%& -

37.Disposals of Subsidiaries

On 31 May 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party
for disposal of its entire equity interests in a subsidiary,
FYIAFEH AR AT (“SDL”), at a cash consideration
of RMB2,100,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,658,000). SDL was engaged in the provision of
logistic services and the transaction was completed on
17 June 2013.

On 30 July 2013, the Group entered into another sale
and purchase agreement with another independent
third party for disposal of its entire equity interests in a
subsidiary, Zhanjiang Best Lubricant Blending Limited (/&
TEBEBmARAF]) (“ZBLB"), at a cash consideration
of RMB26,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$33,729,000). ZBLB was engaged in the manufacture
and trading of lubricants and the transaction was
completed on 31 August 2013.
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37.Disposals of Subsidiaries (continueq)

The net assets of subsidiaries at dates of disposal were as

B : follows:
BE
Total
FA&T
BWRRE : Consideration received: HK$'000
BUIRE Cash received 36,387
&5t
Total
KEEFIENEER FA&T
BENDHT : Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: HK$'000
e Property, plant and equipment 3,486
FEUTBR TR
K E At PR UL BR 5K Trade and other receivables 4,455
RITEHR LIRS Bank balances and cash 29,274
BEHEFEE Net assets disposed of 37,215
HEMBATINEE : Loss on disposals of subsidiaries:
B U & A AE Consideration received and receivable 36,387
BEHEFEE Net assets disposed of (37,215)
HEMRBAR/ER Loss on disposals of subsidiaries (note 7)
(FI%E7) (828)
HEZREFEHEAA :  Net cash inflow arising on disposals:
RERE Cash consideration 36,387
W B RE 2 RITEERR
KIR& Less: bank balances and cash disposed of (29,274)

7,113
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38. X EMBE QT

38.Principal Subsidiaries

ARARIZ FEBMBARIZFBUNT: Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
ARER AL/ BRfRS/ HRERZEE REEEEREERARE/ EEK
Name of company Place of Nominal value of Rl A Principal activities
incorporation/ issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
registration registered capital issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group
“g-mf 3=
2014 2013
[EEERARAA &8 ERR- 281 100% 100% WERE
Base Rich Development Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
SAECI(L8)ERAR  hEAR-BENALE BAER - ARH2,000,0007C 100% 100% EERERZH
Bauhinia Chemical (Shanghai) ~ Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Trading in solvents and coatings
Company Limited owned foreign enterprise RMB2,000,000
i EHEBARA 3 ERR- 18T 100% - REAR
Bauhinia Coatings Group Hong Kong Ordinary - HK§1 100% - Investment holding
Limited
ZHEER(DR)ERAT  HEAR-BENMELE ERER - 40,800,005 100% 100% SHEREEAERAH
Bauhinia Coatings Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacturing of and trading in solvents
Manufacturing (Shanghai) owned foreign enterprise USD40,800,000 and coatings
Co., Limited
Bauhinia Paints Limited ZERER ERk- 100057 100% 100% RERR
British Virgin Islands Ordinary-HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
SHERAERAY  PEAE-BENEARE BRER- 100% 100% BEREFAEREH
AR 28,000,000
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing ~ Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in Solvents and
(Chengdu) Company Limited ~ owned foreign enterprise RMB28,000,000 coatings
A ARERAT (3 ERR- 2087 100% 100% EERERZR
JEIERR - 600,000 7 i3 fiit
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing  Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$20 100% 100% Trading in solvents and coatings
Limited Deferred - HK$600,000 Note Note
SHRER(DRERAT  REAE-BENELE BAEH- 6,100,000ET 100% 100% ZEREEAENER
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing ~ Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in solvents and
(Shanghai) owned foreign enterprise USDs, 100,000 coatings
Company Limited
ZHEHROIBERAR  PEAE-BENERE EAEE - 16,000,000 100% 100% ZEREEAHREH
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing ~ Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in Solvents and

(Shantou) Co., Ltd.

owned foreign enterprise

HK$16,000,000

coatings
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38.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

AFER R/ BRfRS/HRERZERE AEEREREERARE/ EEE
Name of company Place of Nominal value of EMERZER Principal activities
incorporation/ issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
registration registered capital issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group
SERE ZFC
2014 2013
SHERR(DERRR  PEAE-BEMELX BRER - 28,800,000 100% 100% BEREERERER
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing ~ Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in solvents and
(Shenzhen) Company owned foreign enterprise HK$28,800,000 coatings
Limited
FERRE(TIARAR  HEAE-BENALE BRERI- 100% 100% ZEREERH
AR88,000,0007
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in coatings
Chemicals (Hebei) Limited owned foreign enterprise RIMB88,000,000
FEMRBCAT)ERAR  hEAR-BEMELE BAZH- 15,000,000%7 100% 100% HEREERR
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in coatings
Chemicals (Zhejiang) Limited ~ owned foreign enterprise USD15,000,000
FEMRE(PL)ERAR  hEAR-BANALE EAEH - 180,000,000%7 100% 100% HEREEAK
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in coatings
Chemicals (Zhongshan) owned foreign enterprise HK$180,000,000
Limited
RS RRRARAT B4 ERR- 281 100% 100% EEH&H
Best Lubricant Blending Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100% Trading in lubricants
RBRERRAT & LR~ 1000087 100% 100% #ERE
Big Youth Investments Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
A TR EERAT &8 LRI 16000087 75% 5% RERRREERY
Concord Chemical Storaging ~ Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$160,000 75% 75%  Investment holding and trading in solvents
Limited
REHEEM ERAT hEAR-BANALE EAEH - 24,500,000%7 100% 100% BEREEZH
Da Chang Polymers (Huizhou)  Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in coatings
Limited owned foreign enterprise HK$24,500,000
BRCREEFARK(M)  PEAR-BRNALE EAER- 2300000087 100% 100% GFERRKHRS
ERAR
Dao Ming Business Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100%  Corporate management and consultation
Management Consultancy owned foreign enterprise HK$23,000,000 Services

Service (Shenzhen) Company
Limited
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38. X EMB ARl 38.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
AFER R/ BRfRS/ ERERZERE AEEREREERARE, EEE
Name of company Place of Nominal value of EMERZER Principal activities
incorporation/ issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
registration registered capital issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group
3B %=
2014 2013
REATHERERNER  PEAE-BENELX ZRER - 50,000,000 100% 100% BEREEEZM
Rl
Dongguan Pacoil Lubricant Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in lubricants
Company Limited owned foreign enterprise HK$50,000,000
SRARAT B EER- 281 100% 100% WERE
Goldchain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100% Property investment
ERERAR EER ERR- 1% 100% 100% HEER
Great Success Limited Samoa Ordinary - USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
AR TERARAT 3 LRI~ 60000087 100% 100% REBRRERRY
Handsome Cheical Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$600,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading in solvents

Development Limited

e IRBERAA Bk £AMkR- 6000057 100% 100% fR{tAIERTE

Handsome Chemical Services  Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$60,000 100% 100% Provision of treasury services
Limited

B2 (B BRAT HEAR-BEMELE EAEH- 20,000,000%7 100% 100% HEREEAHREH

Hang Cheung Coatings Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in solvents and
(Hui Yang) Limited owned foreign enterprise USD20,000,000 coatings

EE2H(HT)ERAR hEAE-BEIMELE AR~ 25,000,000%7 100% 100% ZEREEAMREH

Hang Cheung Coatings Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in solvents and
(Zhejiang) Limited owned foreign enterprise USD25,000,000 coatings

Hang Cheung Petrochemical ~ REBRZES LEk- 1% 100% 100% REZR
(International) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding

BERH TARAT B LRIk 800,000%T 100% 100% ZEREEAEREH

Hang Cheung Petrochemical ~ Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$800,000 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in solvents and
Limited coatings

EERBERDARAR 3 ERR- 281 100% 100% HRERERER

Hang Cheung Procurement &  Hong Kong Ordinary - HKS2 100% 100%  Merchandising of solvents and coatings

Logistics Limited
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3. X EMIB AT w)

38.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

AFER R/ BRfRS/HRERZERE AEEREREERARE/ EEE
Name of company Place of Nominal value of EMERZER Principal activities
incorporation/ issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
registration registered capital issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group
3B =
2014 2013
Hang Cheung (W.S) Limited ~ BEZ Rk 13T 100% 100% #ERR
Samoa Ordinary - USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEANCHACNPR)ER AR ERR- 1496655 T 100% 100% H&E#R
A7 Bt 33587 Hit fird
Hong Kong Bauhinia Paints Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$ 149,665 100% 100%  Investment holding
Manufacturing (Greater Deferred - HK$335 Note Note
China) Company Limited
SR TARDA HEAE-BEMELE BAEH- 75% 5% HEREERE
ARE15,000,0007
Huizhou Shengda Chemical Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 75% 75% Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Company Limited owned foreign enterprise RMB15,000,000
IFRECIERARAR  EAE-2ERELX BAREH- 149,800,007 75% 5% BEREERE
Jiangmen Handsome Chemical ~ Mainland China - equity joint  Capital contribution - 75% 75%  Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Development Limited venture HK$149,800,000
IFRARERRERAR  PEAE-BEMELE BRER - 53,000,000 75% 5% HEREERE
Jiangmen Thansome Solvents  Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 5% 75% Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Production Limited owned foreign enterprise HK$53,000,000
RFRREERNERAR A% ERR- 1000057 100% 100% REREERDA
Pacific Special-Lube Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in lubricants
Primer Limited EED LER- 157 100% 100% REBR
Samoa Ordinary - USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Prophet Investments Limted ~ RERZEE LEk- 1% 100% 100% REZR
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - USD1 100% 100% Investment holding
ERERA(LE)RRARY  REAE-BANELE EREH - 25000057 100% 100% EEEAEE
Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Trading in lubricants

owned foreign enterprise

UsD250,000
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Company Limited

38. X EMB ARl 38.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
ARER R/ BRfRS/ ERERZERE AEEREREERARE, EEE
Name of company Place of Nominal value of EMERZER Principal activities
incorporation/ issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
registration registered capital issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group
—8-pE “F-=
2014 2013
FRSTIEIZARAA  PEAR-BENMELE EAFH - 396,800,000%7 75% 5% HEREERY
Taixing Jinjiang Chemical Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 75% 75% Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Industry Company Limited owned foreign enterprise HK$396,800,000
RE&SERRARAR hEAE-BENELE ARER - 8,400,000 100% 100% SEREERDA
Tianjin Best Lubricant Blending ~ Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in lubricants
Co., Limited owned foreign enterprise HK$8,400,000
TW Holding (Hong Kong) &% LEk- 28T 100% 100% #ERE
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HKS2 100% 100% Holding of trademark
TM Holding Limited ABRLES LRk 151 100% 100% fAEmEE
British Virgin lslands Ordinary - HK$1 100% 100%  Holding of trademark
Yip's Chemical (BV) Limited ~ EBR&EE LER- 50057 100% 100% REZR
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$500 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERUIHZRR(LA)ER  PEAE-BANMELR EAEH- 17,000,005 100% 100% HERFE
]
Yip's Chemical Research & Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Research and development
Development (Shanghai) owned foreign enterprise UsD17,000,000
Company Limited
ERES(RE)BRAR 3 LRI 99,5005 100% 100% REBRREERS
Yip's H.C. (Holding) Limited LR - 5007 iR (iR
Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$999,500 100% 100%  Investment holding and provision of services
Deferred - HK$500 Note Note
ERT#ARERAA (3 ERH- 1000037 75% 5% REPRREERY
Yip's Industrial Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 15% 75%  Investment holding and trading in solvents
Limited
SRREERAR BB EBR- 20087 100% 100% EEZH
Yip's Ink and Chemicals Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$200 100% 100% Trading in coatings
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38.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

ARER R/ BRfRS/HRERZERE AEEREREERARE/ EEE
Name of company Place of Nominal value of EMERZER Principal activities
incorporation/ issued share capital/ Proportion of nominal value of
registration registered capital issued share capital/registered
capital held by the Group
ZE-ME 2=
2014 2013
ERhE(£E)RRAR B ERk- 2871 100% 100% REMRREZZH
Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Group) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading in coatings
Limited
ERERM(SE)ARAT R EA%- 29000057 100% 100% BERRERRA
Yip's Lubricant Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$290,000 100% 100% Manufacture of and trading in lubricants
Yip's Pacific Limited RREAHE LB - 36,251,000 100% 100% REAZR
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$36,251,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
EREVARBIRERAR  MEAE-SERELX £k~ 9,300,005 60% 60% BEREERE
Mainland China - Ordinary - USD9,300,000 60% 60% Manufacture and trading in resins

equity joint venture

M ERAEEFE 2 ETR D EE
W B kA Z A RBREAE
ZRENEFEEMZABREKR
ERETLERE- EFEER M
TERFEANAEE)EES
HRENZERMN I 2EARL
100,000,000,000/% 7t + A& & i
BEBASBRIEZARFGBEE
PEREFRERZERTERD I
LB o

K Yip's Chemical (BVI) LimitedfZx
ANEIEERAEIN MBEETHEAR
A AMEERE BREARBE X
B2 WEER ARSI - FTE L
BRARIZEEEEWH A RERE
BXSZ Ef2 HhfE o

ERFAIAEE B RAINES
REBFEAREXENEELR
BZEIEMBRAR - EERRIIE
HMBERAR 2FBERBR T K
2E -

BENBRABAIR -_ZE-—WHE+_-_H=
+— B 85 R ] By B A A A

Note: The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry
no right to dividend or to receive notice of or to attend or
vote at any general meeting of the company. On a winding-
up, the holders of the deferred shares are entitled out of the
surplus assets of the company to a return of capital paid up
on the non-voting deferred shares but only when holders of
ordinary shares, namely, the Group, have received in full the
return of capital paid on them and, in aggregate, a total sum
of HK$100,000,000,000.

Except for Yip’s Chemical (BVI) Limited which is held directly
by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held.
Except for the investment holding companies which have
no specific place of operation, all the above subsidiaries
operate principally in their respective place of incorporation/
registration.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets or liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
31 December 2014 or at any time during the year.
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38. X EMB ARl 38.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

TRERFEBEANIERE R 2 A
SEFEREMB AR ZFFE

The table below shown details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interests:

FERERREZ
ML S FrEggER
REELEHY RERLLA
Place of Proportion of RitFERER
incorporation ownership interests and S E T FERER 2 B7| Accumulated
HWEARZHR and principal place  voting rights held by Profits allocated to non-controlling
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests interests
Z2-mFE _—T-=f ZB-RF _T-=f ZB-MF _T-=F
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
TARL TATL TARL TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
IARECIRRERARRANBAR B 25% 25% 19,939 29338 190,346 195,008
(IMIFHERE])
Jiangmen Handsome Chemical Development  Mainland China 25% 25% 19,939 29,338 190,346 195,008
Limited and its subsidiary (the “Jiangmen
Handsome Group”)
B IR RERARREMEAR BB 25% 25% 29,943 32217 252,769 231,504
(MpAEE])
Concord Chemical Storaging Limited and its  Hong Kong 25% 25% 29,943 32,217 252,769 231,504

subsidiaries (the “Concord Group”)

ERASERAERNIFZERERD
MERRZMBEN(RIEE B
HBEERGSDBEERHINWT - LT
BRI ERIEIHEBRE R Z Al
2 -

Summarised financial information, which is prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts before elimination of intragroup
transactions.
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38. X EMB ARl 38.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
—E-MmE —E-=F
2014 2013
FTERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
IMRERE Jiangmen Handsome Group
) Turnover 3,627,215 3,507,757
ogun Expenses (3,547,461) (3,390,406)
INEHER Profit for the year 79,754 117,351
REZHEN BT Total comprehensive income for the year 60,136 138,495
FnBEE Non-current assets 307,894 301,102
mENEE Current assets 1,309,594 1,265,294
nEaE Current liabilities (855,274) (785,128)
EREBAE Non-current liability (830) (1,259)
s Total equity 761,384 780,009
sz 7 BeREAE Net cash outflow from operating activities (37,437) (45,538)
WEER 7BREFEAE  Net cash outflow from investing activities (40,169) (84,941)
BMEEKZIREFEAAN  Net cash inflow from financing activities 74,373 71,281
BEFERY Net cash outflow (3,233) (59,198)
ST IR RE RS AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (19,690) (5,898)
—B-RmE —F-=F
2014 2013
FERx THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
R Concord Group
HER Turnover 2,767,870 2,612,424
SZfut] Expenses (2,648,098) (2,483,555)
INEUEF Profit for the year 119,772 128,869
AEEERREE Total comprehensive income for the year 85,060 162,041
EREBEE Non-current assets 301,594 215,782
MENEE Current assets 1,307,308 1,236,843
mEBE Current liabilities (620,664) (550,256)
FnBaH Non-current liability (9,610) (8,800)
Ak Total equity 978,628 893,569
B 7 RS FHER Net cash inflow from operating activities 19,154 268,242
KEEK 2R FER Net cash outflow from investing activities (107,345) (387,117)
RMEER ZHEFER Net cash inflow from financing activities 70,779 192,312
ReFRORd)mA Net cash (outflow) inflow (17,412) 73,437
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39.Information about the Statement of

Financial Position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the

BREEIE Company at the end of reporting period includes:
—2-mE —F=f
2014 2013
FTERT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RHB AR ZAEMIRE  Unlisted investment in subsidiaries 322,394 330,358
JEY — KT A B FIE Amount due from a subsidiary 924,681 921,554
SRITE B Bank balances 575 340
B EE Other current assets 145 145
REE Total assets 1,247,795 1,252,397
FE{SH— IR B A R 2B Amount due to a subsidiary (241,726) (193,097)
et B REMERARE  Accrued charges and other financial liabilities (27,118) (36,446)
FEE Net assets 978,951 1,022,854
e L) Share capital (note 28) 56,276 56,228
i (f5E) Reserves (Note) 922,675 966,626
@i Total equity 978,951 1,022,854
HiEE - Note:
RAFERBAFE KRR ZFHEEZ Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current and the
T prior years are as follows:
FHIT
HK$'000
R-_Z—=5—H—H At 1 January 2013 1,035,652
REERHEWEEEE Total comprehensive income for the year 65,618
RN ZHE AEERARA I Recognition of equity-settled share based payments 3,877
EEERERETEmE TG Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 1,151
ERFRE Dividend paid (140,546)
AR BEITR Issue of shares for scrip dividend 874
RZZE—=%+=A=+—H At 31 December 2013 966,626
REF2EREEE Total comprehensive income for the year 91,940
ERAURG ZHEAERRMD M  Recognition of equity-settled share based payments 3,878
R AT M B TR D Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 919
BERRE Dividend paid (140,688)
RZZE—WFE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2014 922,675
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